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Dave Yost - Auditor of State

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

City of Akron

Summit County

166 South High Street
Akron, Ohio 44308

To the City Council:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Akron, Summit County, Ohio, (the
City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, which collectively comprise the City’'s basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated August 27, 2012, wherein we noted the
City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54 and restated certain
beginning fund balances. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the
Comptroller General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as
a basis for designing our audit procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of opining on the effectiveness of the City’'s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we have not opined on the effectiveness of the City's internal control
over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. Therefore, we cannot assure that
we have identified all deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as
described in the accompanying schedule of findings we identified certain deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting, that we consider material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and timely
correct misstatements. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and timely corrected. We consider findings 2011-01 and
2011-05 described in the accompanying schedule of findings to be material weaknesses.

101 Central Plaza South, 700 Chase Tower, Canton, Ohio 44702-1509
Phone: 330-438-0617 or 800-443-9272 Fax: 330-471-0001
www.ohioauditor.gov

1




City of Akron

Summit County

Independent Accountants’ Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Required by Government Auditing Standards

Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of reasonably assuring whether the City’s financial statements are free of material misstatement,
we tested its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could directly and materially affect the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and accordingly, we do not express an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of
noncompliance or other matters we must report under Government Auditing Standards which are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings as items 2011-01 through 2011-04.

We also noted certain matters not requiring inclusion in this report that we reported to the City's
management in a separate letter dated August 27, 2012.

The City’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings. We did not audit the City’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

We intend this report solely for the information and use of management, City Council, federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities, and others within the City. We intend it for no one other than these
specified parties.

)

Dave Yost
Auditor of State

August 27, 2012



Dave Yost - Auditor of State

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

City of Akron

Summit County

166 South High Street
Akron, Ohio 44308

To the City Council:
Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Akron, Summit County, Ohio, (the City) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133,
Compliance Supplement that could directly and materially affect each of the City’s major federal programs
for the year ended December 31, 2011. The summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings identifies the City’s major federal programs. The City’s management is responsible
for complying with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each major
federal program. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit.

Our compliance audit followed auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits included in the Comptroller General of the United States’
Government Auditing Standards; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. These standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to reasonably assure whether noncompliance occurred with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could directly and materially affect a major federal program. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with these requirements and performing
other procedures we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’'s
compliance with these requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Akron complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that could directly and materially affect each of its major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2011. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of
noncompliance with these requirements that, while not affecting our opinion on compliance, OMB Circular
A-133 requires us to report. The accompanying schedule of findings lists these instances as Finding
2011-06 and 2011-07.

101 Central Plaza South, 700 Chase Tower, Canton, Ohio 44702-1509
Phone: 330-438-0617 or 800-443-9272 Fax: 330-471-0001
www.ohioauditor.gov
3



City of Akron

Summit County

Independent Accountants’ Report on Compliance with Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

Page 2

Internal Control Over Compliance

The City’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’'s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could directly and materially affect a major federal program, to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of opining on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
opining on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we have not opined on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, we cannot assure we have
identified all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below,
we identified a certain deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a material
weakness and a deficiency that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or to timely detect and correct, noncompliance with a federal program compliance requirement.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance
with a federal program compliance requirement will not be prevented, or timely detected and corrected.
We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule
of findings as item 2011-06 to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a federal program compliance requirement that is
less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiency in internal control over
compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings as item 2011-07 to be a significant
deficiency.

The City’s responses to the findings we identified are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings. We did not audit the City’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

We also noted matters involving federal compliance or internal control over federal compliance not
requiring inclusion in this report, that we reported to the City’s management in a separate letter dated
August 27, 2012.
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Supplemental Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have also audited and issued our unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Akron, Summit County, Ohio, (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, and
have issued our report thereon dated August 27, 2012, wherein we noted the City restated certain
beginning fund balances. Our opinion also explained the City adopted Governmental Accounting
Standard No. 54 during the year. Our audit was performed to form opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying
Supplemental Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards provides additional information required by
the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule is
management’s responsibility, and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. This schedule was subject to the auditing
procedures we applied to the basic financial statements. We also applied certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling this information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
this information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole.

We intend this report solely for the information and use of management, City Council, federal awarding
agencies, and pass-through entities, and others within the City. It is not intended for anyone other than
these specified parties.

/

Dave Yost
Auditor of State

August 27, 2012
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CITY OF AKRON, OHIO

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed through the Ohio Department of Health:
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children (WIC)
Child Nutrition Cluster:
Summer Food Service Program for Children
Total Department of Agriculture

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Direct Programs:
ARRA - Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Direct Programs:
Rehabilitation Services-Vocational Rehabilitation Grants to States
Passed-Through the Ohio Department of Education
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers
Total Department of Education

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Direct Programs:
CDBG - Entitlement and (HUD-Administered) Small Cities Cluster:
ARRA - Community Development Block Grant Entitlement Grants (CDBG-R)
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants
Neighborhood Stabilization Program
Total Community Development Block Grants Cluster

Emergency Shelter Grants Program

HOME Investment Partnership Program

ARRA - Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program
Lead-Based Paint:

Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing

Lead Hazard Reduction Demonstration Grant Program

Passed through the Ohio Department of Development:
Community Development Block Grants/State's program and Non-Entitlement Grants
ARRA - Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program
Neighborhood Stabilization Program
Total Department of Housing and Urban Development

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Direct Programs:
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grants
Violence Against Women
Passed through the Governor's Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program
Northern Ohio Violent Fugitive Task Force

ARRA - Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants
Total CFDA No. 16.710

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grants Cluster:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance-Formula Grants

ARRA - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grants to Units of Local Government

Passed through the Ohio Office of Justice Programs:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance - Formula Grants
Total Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grants Cluster
Total Department of Justice

Federal
CFDA No.

10.557

10.559

81.128

84.126

84.287

14.253
14.218
14.218

14.231
14.239
14.257

14.900
14.905

14.257
14.228

16.523
16.588

16.607
16.609

16.710
16.710

16.738

16.804

16.738

Federal
Expenditures

$ 170,322

179,832
350,154

945,849

212,505

1,331,939
1,544,444

414,814
10,098,995
2,659,275
13,173,084

315,912
909,081
575,953

47,405
1,219,432

299,576
1,011,994
17,552,437

15,305
44,989

13,884
8,290

1,877,227
20,862
1,898,089

99,892
259,378
2,694

361,964
2,342,521



CITY OF AKRON, OHIO

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Passed through the Ohio E.P.A.:
Brownfields Assessment and Cleanup

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Passed through the Federal Aviation Administration:
Airport Improvement Program

Passed through the Ohio Department of Highway Safety:

Alcohol Traffic Safety and Drunk Driving Prevention Program
Safety Incentives to Prevent Operation of Motor Vehicles by Intoxicated Persons

Total Highway Safety:

Highway Planning and Construction:
Akron Metropolitan Area Transportation Study
ODOT- ADA Ramps
ODOT- Smith Riverview Road
ODOT - Evans Avenue
ODOT - Manchester Road, Phase |
ODOT - Manchester Road, Phase Il
ODOT - Mill Street Bridge
ODOT - Seiberling Way, Phase 11
ARRA - ODOT - AES Trail and Barges Bridge
ODOT - AES Trail and Barges Bridge
ODOT - Parkside East Towpath Trail
ARRA - ODOT - Frank Boulevard
ODOT - Hilbish Avenue
ODOT - Hilbish Avenue Pavement
ODOT - Hilbish over Springfield Lake
ODOT - Tallmadge Avenue Widening
ODOT - Waterloo Sidewalk
ARRA - ODOT - Hilbish over Springfield Lake
ARRA - ODOT - State Street
ARRA - ODOT - South Main Street
ODOT - South Main Street
ODOT - All American Bridge
ARRA - ODOT - All American Bridge
Total CFDA No. 20.205
Total Department of Transportation

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Passed through the Ohio Department of Health:
Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome (AIDS) Activity
Immunization Grants
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Investigations and Technical Assistance
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants
Federal Aids Education
Preventive Health Services - Sexually Transmitted Disease Control Grants
Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant
Child and Family Health Services
Total Department of Health and Human Services

Federal
CFDA No.

66.818

20.106

20.601
20.605

20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205

93.118
93.268
93.283
93.576
93.940
93.977
93.991
93.994

Federal
Expenditures

72,223

13,851

55,416
30,379

85,795

1,317,127
205,096
232,788
104,385
377,705
359,755

2,651,009
524,848

1,749,882
711,206
124,229
921,879
346,461

24,465
340,018
1,823,452
30,683
131,166
187,057
1,778,891
9,932
788,369
1,943,550
16,683,953
16,783,599

35

961
2,784
21,481
26,366
6,077
6
8,194
65,904



CITY OF AKRON, OHIO

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT
Office of National Drug Control Policy
Passed through the City of Shaker Heights, Ohio:
High Intensity Drug Trafficing Area (HIDTA)

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Direct Programs:
Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER)
Passed through the Federal Emergency Management Agency
Assistance to Firefighters Grant
Total Department of Homeland Security
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

See notes to supplemental schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

Federal
CFDA No.

95.001

97.083

97.044

Federal
Expenditures

50,400

2,972,897

9,693
2,982,590

$42,690,121



CITY OF AKRON, OHIO

NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying supplemental schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
activity of the City of Akron, Ohio, and is presented on the cash basis of accounting. The information in
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

2. SUBRECIPIENTS

Of the federal expenditures presented in this schedule, the City of Akron, Ohio, provided federal awards
to subrecipients as follows:

Amount
Federal  Provided to
Program Title CFDA No. Subrecipients
Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants and Children 10.557 $112,101
CDBG- Entitlement and (HUD-Administered)
Small Cities Cluster - Community Development Block
Grant/Entitlement Grants 14.218 810,539
Neighborhood Stablization Program - Federal Direct 14.218 651,850
Neighborhood Stablization Program - Pass thru 14.228 521,600
Emergency Shelter Grants Program 14.231 284,724
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 202,500
ARRA - Community Development Block Grant Entitlement Grants (CDBG-R) 14.253 12,471
ARRA - Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program - Federal Direct 14.257 570,214
ARRA - Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program - Pass thru 14.257 299,576
Lead Hazard Reduction Demonstration Grant Program 14.905 992,739
Edward Byrne Memorial Formula Grant Program 16.738 38,172
ARRA - Grants to Units of Local Government 16.804 22,633
ARRA - Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program 81.128 22,816
Rehabilitation Services: Vocational Rehabilitation Grants 84.126 212,505
Total $4,754,440

3. LOANS OUTSTANDING

The City of Akron, Ohio, had the following loan balances outstanding at December 31, 2011, which had
continuing compliance requirements.

Federal Balance
Program Title CFDA No. Outstanding
Community Development Block GrantyEntitlement Grants 14.218 $ 66,898
Empowerment Zone Program 14.244 917,819
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 3,502,877

10



CITY OF AKRON
SUMMIT COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505

DECEMBER 31, 2011

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

(CE;

Type of Financial Statement Opinion

Unqualified

(d)(2)(ii)

Were there any material control weaknesses
reported at the financial statement level
(GAGAS)?

Yes

(d)(2)(ii)

Were there any significant deficiencies in
internal control reported at the financial
statement level (GAGAS)?

No

(d)(2)(ii)

Was there any reported material
noncompliance at the financial statement level
(GAGAS)?

Yes

(d)(2)(iv)

Were there any material internal control
weaknesses reported for major federal
programs?

Yes

(d)(2)(iv)

Were there any significant deficiencies in
internal control reported for major federal
programs?

Yes

(d)(2)(v)

Type of Major Programs’ Compliance Opinion

Unqualified

(d)(21)(vi)

Are there any reportable findings under
§.510(a)?

Yes

(d)(1)(vii)

Major Programs (list):

CFDA #84.287 - Twenty-First
Century Community Learning
Centers

CDBG - Entitlement and (HUD-
Administered) Small Cities Cluster:
CFDA# 14.253 - ARRA -
Community Development Block
Grant Entitlement Grants
(CDBG-R)
CFDA# 14.218 — Community
Development Block Grant
Entitlement Grants
CFDA# 14.218 - Neighborhood
Stabilization Program

CFDA# 16.710 - ARRA-Public
Safety Partnership and
Community Policing Grants

CFDA# 16.710 - Public Safety
Partnership and Community
Policing Grants

11




City of Akron
Summit County
Schedule of Findings

Page 2

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’'S RESULTS (continued)

(d)(Q)(vii) Major Programs (list): (continued) CFDA # 20.205 - Highway

Planning and Construction

CFDA# 97.083 - Staffing for
Adequate Fire and Emergency
Response (SAFER)

(d)(@)(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs Type A: > $1,280,704

Type B: all others

(d)(Q)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? No

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

1. Income Tax Allocation

Finding Number 2011-01

NONCOMPLIANCE AND MATERIAL WEAKNESS

City of Akron Ordinance No. 282-2003, passed after approval by voters of the City on May 6,
2003 levied an additional 0.25% municipal income tax to provide funds for the purpose of
acquiring, constructing, renovating, repairing, enlarging, adding to, reconstructing, maintaining,
equipping, furnishing, acquiring interests in real property in connection therewith, improving the
sites thereof, and otherwise improving community center (the “Community Learning Centers”).

The Community Learning Center Fund was underallocated by $2,046,024 during 2011 due to an
error in calculating the municipal income tax allocation.

We recommend the City implement internal control procedures to ensure the municipal income
tax allocation is calculated properly and reviewed for accuracy to reduce the risk of future
misstatements to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been adjusted to reflect an interfund receivable/payable at
December 31, 2011 which is to be repaid subsequent to year end.

Official’s Response: As evidenced by the correction made with the January of 2012 allocation,
the City has implemented internal control procedures to ensure the municipal income tax
allocation is calculated properly and reviewed. The City has also developed an approach to
ensure the GAAP basis financial statements reflect any future corrections.

12




City of Akron
Summit County
Schedule of Findings
Page 3

2. Appropriations Exceeding Estimated Resources

Finding Number 2011-02

NONCOMPLIANCE

Ohio Rev. Code Section 5705.39 requires that total appropriations from each fund shall not
exceed the total of the estimated revenue available for expenditure from each fund, as certified by

the budget commission.

Total original appropriations exceeded total original estimated resources in the following funds:

Original

Estimated Original
Fund Name Resources Appropriations  Deficiency
Emergency Medical Services $9,196,288 $11,938,997 ($2,742,709)
Street and Highway Maintenance 7,693,133 8,680,968 (987,835)
Community Development 12,659,315 24,897,629 (12,238,314)
Akron Metropolitan Area Transportation Study 1,687,639 2,022,284 (334,645)
Joint Economic Development Districts 15,293,892 15,961,929 (668,037)
Police Grants 2,279,018 3,540,012 (1,260,994)
Various Domestic Violence 86,455 99,009 (12,554)
Safety Programs 4,628,481 7,585,790 (2,957,309)
City Facilities Operating (4,967,295) 14,280,695 (19,247,990)
Non-appropriated Capital Projects 533,148 2,030,467 (1,497,319)
Road and Bridge improvement 6,232,023 7,634,887 (1,402,864)
Total final appropriations exceeded total final estimated resources in the following funds:

Final

Estimated
Fund Name Resources Appropriations Deficiency
Community Environment Grants $646,643 $653,129 (%$6,486)
Tax Equivalency 2,361,635 2,361,983 (348)
Joint Economic Development Districts 40,843,892 40,961,929 (118,037)
Water 43,760,269 50,190,972 (6,430,703)
Sewer 67,834,492 71,523,082 (3,688,590)
Off-Street Parking 5,287,868 5,906,450 (618,582)

Ensuring total appropriations from each fund do not exceed the total official estimate or amended
official estimate is not only required by statute, but is a key control in the budgetary process to
assure funds are not appropriated for spending when there are not adequate resources available.
To improve control over the budgetary process and to help avoid overspending, we recommend the
Director of Finance compare estimated resources to appropriations each time an amendment is
made to these amounts. This comparison should be documented to help ensure appropriations do
not exceed estimated resources.

13



City of Akron
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Page 4

Finding Number

Official’s Response:

2011-02 (Continued)

The City is comparing the estimated revenue available for each fund as

certified by the county budget commission with the appropriation ordinance. The City has not
historically submitted an amended official estimate of resources to the county budget commission,
but beginning with 2011 the City did request an amendment resulting in a significant reduction in
the number of funds exceeding estimated resources by approximately 35%. The City will continue
to implement procedures to align its appropriation with its official estimate of resources.

3. Appropriations Exceeding Available Resources

Finding Number 2011-03

NONCOMPLIANCE

Ohio Rev. Code Section 5705.36(A)(4) provides that upon a determination by the fiscal officer
of a subdivision that the revenue to be collected by the subdivision will be less than the amount
included in an official certificate and that the amount of the deficiency will reduce available
resources below the level of current appropriations, the fiscal officer shall certify the amount of
the deficiency to the county budget commission, and the commission shall certify an amended
certificate reflecting the deficiency.

For 7 of 10 funds tested at December 31, 2011, the amount of fund level revenue deficiencies
would reduce available resources below the current level of appropriations as follows:

Available

Fund # Fund Name Resources Appropriations Deficiency

2080 Community Development  $6,229,381 $24,297,629 $(18,068,248)
2320 City Facilities Operating 3,082,583 18,015,695 (14,933,112)
4060 Streets 24,305,809 39,667,966 (15,362,157)
4175 Economic Development 35,883,624 37,718,066 (1,834,442)
5000 Water 36,976,832 50,190,972 (13,214,140)
5005 Sewer 49,346,432 71,523,082 (22,176,650)
5030 Off-Street Parking 5,279,349 5,906,450 (627,101)

In addition, Ohio Admin. Code 117-2-02(C)(1) also states in part: all local public offices should
integrate the budgetary accounts, at the legal level of control or lower, into the financial
accounting system. This means designing an accounting system to provide ongoing and timely
information on unrealized budgetary receipts and remaining uncommitted appropriation
balances.

The City does not record in its ledgers the estimated revenue available for expenditure from
each fund as certified by the county budget commission.

Various fund balances were restated as of January 1, 2011 due to consolidation and elimination
of certain funds. However, the City did not file an amended certificate of estimated resources
reflecting restated unencumbered fund balances. Therefore, the City did not have accurate
estimated resources and available resources by fund to ensure appropriations were maintained
within these limits.

14



City of Akron
Summit County
Schedule of Findings
Page 5

Finding Number 2011-03 (Continued)

The City should record the estimated revenue available for expenditure from each fund as
certified by the county budget commission in the City’s Banner accounting system. The City also
should frequently compare actual revenues to estimated revenues and obtain a reduced
amended certificate, if necessary. If changes are made to beginning of the year unencumbered
cash balances, the City should request an amended certificate of estimated resources reflecting
these changes. Finally, the current level of appropriations should be reduced accordingly to
prevent an over-appropriation of funds.

Official’s Response: The City is comparing the estimated revenue available for each fund as
certified by the budget commission with the appropriation ordinance. The City has not
historically submitted a amended official estimate of resources to the county budget commission,
but beginning with 2011 the City did request and amendment resulting in a reduction in the
number of funds exceeding estimated resources. The City will continue to implement
procedures to align its appropriation with its official estimate of resources.

4. Negative Cash Fund Balances

Finding Number 2011-04

NONCOMPLIANCE

Ohio Rev. Code Section 5705.10(H) requires that monies paid into any fund be used only for
the purposes for which such fund is established. As a result, a negative fund balance indicates
that money from one fund was used to cover the expenses of another fund.

At December 31, 2011, the following funds (aggregated at the level used for preparing the
financial statements) had negative cash fund balances:

Fund No. Fund Name Cash Balance

2005 Emergency Medical Service $ (3,398,837)
2030 Street & Highway Maintenance (183,201)
2080 Community Development (500,174)
2127 AM.AT.S. (144,749)
2295 Police Grants (309,613)
4060 Streets (2,474,267)
5015 Golf Course (124,334)
6000 Motor Equipment (536,257)
6010 Storeroom (297,704)
6025 Engineering (403,956)
6030 Data Processing (745,832)

Negative cash fund balances are an indication that revenues from other sources were used to
pay obligations of these funds. Additionally, money spent for purposes other than specified in
grant agreements could result in the loss of future grant awards.
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Finding Number 2011-04 (Continued)

For reporting purposes, the deficit cash balances were reported as part of the “Due to Other
Funds” liability, and funds with positive cash balances offsetting these deficits reported a “Due
from Other Funds” asset. Since the City’s cash is pooled, there was no method to determine
which funds’ cash was used to offset the deficit balances and consequently the “Due from Other
Funds” amounts related to the deficit cash balances were assigned by the City using certain
assumptions.

Maintaining positive cash fund balances is not only required by statute, but is a key control in the
cash management process to assure funds are available to pay obligations. To improve controls
over cash management and disbursements and to help reduce the possibility of the City’s funds
not having adequate balances to pay incurred obligations, we recommend the City monitor fund
activity to prevent future expenditures in excess of available resources. In those cases where
additional funds are required, the resources should either be transferred or advanced to the fund
in accordance with the Ohio Rev. Code. Use of formal advances, approved by the City Council,
will allow management to determine exactly which fund’s cash is being used to offset deficit cash
balances. This should help ensure compliance with grant and other funding restrictions as well
as provide a reasonable basis for assigning “Due from Other Funds” receivables.

Official’s Response: The City has been implementing changes in its accounting procedures to
minimize the number of funds with negative cash balances as evidenced by the 45% reduction in
number of funds and 84% reduction in dollar amount. Significant progress towards resolving the
current negative cash balances has occurred, the City will diligently continue to attempt to
resolve existing negative cash balances.

5. Miscellaneous Revenue

Finding Number 2011-05

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

During the financial statement compilation process, the City made an adjustment to increase
miscellaneous revenue in the General Fund, Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund, and Other
Governmental Funds by approximately $77,000,000. The adjustment was to reclassify amounts
recorded as transfers-in on the cash-basis of accounting, representing the consolidation of funds
and reimbursement of prior year expenditures. The adjustment caused miscellaneous revenue
to be reported for governmental funds in the amount of $107,374,188. Of that amount
$8,648,968 was reported in the General Fund, $7,401 in the Community Learning Centers Fund,
$4,382,732 in the Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund, and $94,335,087 in other
governmental funds.

Instead of being recorded as miscellaneous revenue, the fund consolidations and
reimbursement of prior year expenditures should have been classified as restatement of
beginning fund balances. The City subsequently revised their adjustment to decrease
miscellaneous revenue by making adjustments to restate the beginning fund balances, resulting
in revised miscellaneous revenue being reported at $30,174,782 in the governmental funds,
including $4,546,590 in the General Fund, $7,401 in the Community Learning Centers Fund,
$459,862 in the Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund, and $25,160,929 in the Other
Governmental Funds.
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Finding Number 2011-05 (Continued)

The City should ensure all adjustments to the financial statements are accurate and the City
should limit transactions classified as transfers-in on their cash-basis accounting system to
actual transfers. Additionally, the City should apply analytical procedures when reviewing their
financial statements to ensure the amounts reported are reasonable, including consistency with
the prior year and any known factors that would cause increases or decreases in the financial
statements in the current year.

Official’s Response: The City has consolidated approximately 700 individual reporting funds
representing 85%. The consolidation of each fund resulted in extraordinary amount of detail
data. The City was able to resolve concerns that the auditor’s staff had with the original entry
and was successful in reconciling the volumes of data and reclassified as restatement of fund
balance. We agreed with the suggestion, not realizing this would be a finding and a material
weakness. Given the unusual event of consolidating a massive number of individual reporting
funds, the City will not be facing the tedious task in the future.

3. FINDINGS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

1. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act for the CDBG Program

Finding Number 2011-06

CFDA Title and Number CDBG - Entitlement and (HUD-Administered) Small
Cities Cluster — CFDA # 14.253 and 14.218

Federal Award Number / Year 2011

Federal Agency U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Pass-Through Agency N/A

NONCOMPLIANCE AND MATERIAL WEAKNESS

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2008 requires prime recipients
of Federal awards who make awards to first-tier subrecipients and contractors exceeding
$25,000 to report the awards in the Funding Accountability and Transparency Subaward
Reporting System (FSRS), which is contained on usaspending.gov. The prime recipient must
report key award data, which includes the subaward date, subawardee DUNS, and the amount
of the subaward, by the end of the month following the month in which the subaward was made.
The requirement does not apply to subawards made from funds received under the American
Reinvestment and Recovery Act of 2009.

During our testing of the Community Development Block Grant Program, five out of five
subrecipients tested exceeding the $25,000 award threshold were not reported in the FSRS.
During our inquiry of staff administering the Community Development Block Grant Program for
the City, staff was unaware of the reporting requirement and did not report any of its
subrecipients exceeding the $25,000 in the FSRS.

The City should ensure all awards to subrecipients exceeding $25,000 are reported in the FSRS
on usaspending.gov, no later than the end of the month following the award.
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Finding Number 2011-06 (Continued)
Official’s Response/Corrective Action Plan:
A. Name of Contact Person: Diane L. Miller-Dawson, Director of Finance
B. Corrective Action Plan:
1. The City’'s Planning Department has been made aware of the reporting
obligations required under the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act of 2008 and will ensure all awards to subrecipients

exceeding $25,000 are reported in the FSRS system.

C. Proposed Completion Date:
1. This issue will be resolved during 2012.

2. Highway Program Monthly Prevailing Wage / EEO reports

Finding Number 2011-07

CFDA Title and Number Highway Planning and Construction
Federal Award Number / Year 2011

Federal Agency U.S. Department of Transportation
Pass-Through Agency Ohio Department of Highway Safety

NONCOMPLIANCE AND SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

The Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) Manual of Procedures, Local Public
Agencies (LPA) Construction Contract Administration Chapter states in part that the LPA is
required to monitor the Contractor and Subcontractors to ensure prevailing wages are paid to all
laborers and mechanics employed on the project.

It is the LPA’s responsibility to spot check 30% of the payrolls submitted to ensure those
employees working in crafts covered by the prevailing wage laws are being paid the correct
wage and fringe benefits for the craft they are performing. These should be the prevailing wages
supplied in the bidding documents. Additionally, apprentice ratios must be monitored to ensure
that not more than the allowable number of apprentices for any given craft are being used by the
Contractor.

The LPA will be required to submit the LPA Prevailing Wage / EEO Report monthly to the ODOT
District Prevailing Wage / EEO Coordinator detailing prevailing wage and EEO monitoring efforts
for the previous month for each active project.

Of the fourteen Highway program payments selected for review, the City was unable to locate
any of the EEO monthly reports. Since these reports were not filed, there is no assurance
controls are in place to ensure prevailing wages are being monitored.

We recommend the City file with ODOT and maintain the required monthly prevailing wage /
EEO reports for each active project.
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Finding Number 2011-07 (Continued)
Official’s Response/Corrective Action Plan:
A. Name of Contact Person: Diane L. Miller-Dawson, Director of Finance
B. Corrective Action Plan:

1. The City has been monitoring Contractors and Subcontractors to ensure
prevailing wages are paid to all laborers and mechanics employed on
projects. The City will file monthly reports with ODOT and maintain these
reports for all active projects.

C. Proposed Completion Date:

1. The City has implemented a new process to ensure these reports are being
submitted monthly. This issue has been resolved during 2012.
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CITY OF AKRON
SUMMIT COUNTY

DECEMBER 31, 2011

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 § .315 (b)

Finding
Number

Finding
Summary

Fully
Corrected?

Not Corrected, Partially
Corrected; Significantly
Different Corrective Action
Taken; or Finding No Longer
Valid; Explain

2010-01

Ohio Rev. Code Section
5705.36(A)(4) Certain
funds had total
appropriations that
exceeded available
resources.

No

Partially Corrected, reissued
as Finding 2011-03

2010-02

Ohio Rev. Code Section
5705.39 — Certain funds
had total appropriations
that exceeded total
estimated resources.

No

Partially Corrected, reissued as
Finding 2011-02

2010-03

Ohio Rev. Code Section
5705.10(H) - Certain funds
had negative cash fund
balances which indicates
that money from one fund
was used to cover the
expenditures of another
fund.

No

Partially Corrected, reissued as
Finding 2011-04

2010-04

Restatement of
Beginning Balances -
Various prior years capital
project costs were
reimbursed with 2010
revenue from funds other
than the funds incurring
the original cost.

No

Partially Corrected, reissued as
a management letter comment.

2010-05

Financial Statement
Adjustments — Various
material and immaterial
audit adjustments were
identified.

No

Partially Corrected, reissued as
Finding 2011-05 and a
management letter comment.

2010-06

Allowable Costs/Cost
Principles - COPS Grant
Questioned Cost - The
City was reimbursed
$92,108 in excess salaries
and benefits.

Yes

Finding no longer valid.
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DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
502 Municipal Building / 166 South High Street / Akron, Ohio 44308
(330) 375-2316 FAX: (330) 375-2291

August 27,2012

The Honorable Donald L. Plusquellic
and Members of City Council
The City of Akron, Ohio

Dear Mayor Plusquellic and Council Members:

I am pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of
Akron for the year ended December 31, 2011. This report presents financial and operating
information about the City’s activities during 2011 that should be useful to citizens and
taxpayers. The report, prepared by the Department of Finance, contains a comprehensive
analysis of the City’s financial position and activities for the year.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of
the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City of Akron. To the best of our
knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects; it is presented in a
manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the City as
measured by the financial activity of our various funds; and all disclosures necessary to enable
the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the City’s financial activities have been
included.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that has been
established for this purpose. The cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits;
therefore, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstatements. The Audit and Budget Division prepared all
of the financial statements and assisted the external independent accountants in their performance
of the annual audit. The Treasurer’s Office assisted in drafting the statistical section.

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to



complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Akron’s MD&A
can be found immediately following the Independent Accountants’ Report.

As background for the reader of this report, the City of Akron is a charter city. The City is the
fifth largest Ohio municipality in terms of population based on the 2010 Census population of
199,110. The City’s land area is approximately 62 square miles and is located in the northeastern
region of the state in the County of Summit.

The City is directed by a mayor and council form of government. Legislative authority is vested
in a 13-member Council, three members of which are elected at-large and ten by wards. The
Council determines the compensation of City officials and employees and enacts ordinances and
resolutions relating to City services, tax levies, appropriation and borrowing of money, licensing
and regulating businesses and trades, and other municipal purposes.

The Mayor is elected for a four-year term and has the responsibility as the City’s chief executive
and administrative officer. The Mayor may veto any legislation passed by Council. A veto may
be overridden by a two-thirds vote of all members of Council. The Director of Finance is
appointed by the Mayor and serves as the City’s chief financial officer and chief accounting
officer. The Director of Finance has comprehensive responsibility for the City’s fiscal activities,
including budget preparation and control, employee benefits, payroll and general accounting,
investment and debt management, purchasing, local income tax administration, information
processing, and financial reporting.

The City provides the full range of municipal services mandated by statute or charter, including
police and fire protection, health, parks, recreation, street maintenance, planning, zoning, and
other general government services. The City has management control of the following enterprise
activities: water, sewer, oil and gas development, golf course, airport, and off-street parking.

Economic Conditions and Outlook

Major revenue sources for the City continue to be the City’s income tax, property taxes, local
fees, charges for services, and state-shared local government revenue. The City’s cash income
tax collections increased by approximately 5.4% in 2011. On a cash basis for 2011, property
taxes in the general fund decreased by 9.5% and the state’s local government revenue to the City
decreased by approximately 1.1%. Income tax receipts from the 12 largest economic sectors in
the City have increased by 0.71% since 2007 and, combined, account for over 81% of total tax
collections. Receipts from the 12 fastest growing economic sectors have increased by 13.66%.
No one sector makes up more than 20% of the total collected.

Despite economic concerns in 2011, the City of Akron remains in a stable financial state. Efforts
to reduce expenses and operate more efficiently have allowed the City to function at a
continuously high service level at lower costs. These efforts ensure the City will be in strong
position for growth as the economy rebounds. The revenue collected from the four Joint
Economic Development Districts (JEDDs) is an additional funding source to encourage and
promote economic development and to secure a solid tax base.



Long-term Financial Policies

Unassigned fund balance in the general fund (5.6% of the general fund expenditures) is over the
City’s 5% threshold policy guidelines set by the Administration for budgetary and planning
purposes. The Administration intends to review this policy in the near future to determine if this
policy meets the City’s current needs.

The City completes a five-year capital budget that is updated annually. In this document, the
City attempts to forecast its capital requirements for the next five years.

Relevant Financial Policies

The City has a charter requirement that the 2% income tax (the City’s largest revenue source)

used specifically for City services, be allocated so that 73% of net revenue is used for operations
and the balance is used for capital needs.

Major Initiatives

Defining the major initiatives for the City of Akron can be summed up into three parts: creating

and retaining jobs, neighborhood growth and security, and alliance with other governmental
entities.

In 2011, the City of Akron continued to attract foreign companies looking to establish a presence
in North America. Over 30 companies have come to Akron from Europe, Asia and Israel
bringing over 2,000 jobs to the City and region. Rochling Automotive, a high-performance
plastics manufacturer based in Germany, brought 120 jobs to Akron and invested $20M in a
75,000 square foot facility in the Massillon Road Industrial Park. The BioFinland Technology
Bridge Initiative resulted in Finnish company 7signal Ltd locating to the Akron Global Business
Accelerator. A3T LLC opened offices at the University of Akron’s Innovation Campus on Wolf
Ledges. A3T LLC is owned by The Triangle Group, China’s largest tire manufacturer based in
the city of Weihai. Nervomatrix graduated from the Israeli business incubator Targetech, which
Akron invested in six years ago, and came to the City.

The City is also creating and retaining jobs with companies closer to home. Goodyear has begun
construction of its new 700,000 square foot World and North American Headquarters on
Innovation Way, and its 3,000 employees have been retained. Bridgestone has opened its own
new technical center and a new parking garage near Firestone Stadium, amounting to a $100M
investment in the City that keeps 1,000 jobs. The City played a critical role in the development of
both of these projects. Summit Data Communications in the Akron Global Business Accelerator
is the fastest growing technology company in Northeast Ohio. It was awarded the National
Business Incubation Association’s Client Company of the Year Award. Echogen, creator of a
thermal engine system that converts industrial-grade waste heat into electricity, grew from 13 to
31 employees. The City and Echogen have restored the Hamlin Building to house Echogen’s
world headquarters. Akron Polymer Systems redeveloped 44-62 North Summit Street in the

City’s Biomedical Corridor. The company has 12 employees now and plans to hire 40 more
within five years.



The City is making its communities more secure in its initiative to control neighborhood
nuisances. Nuisances such as housing violations, high weeds, junk cars and graffiti directly
impact a community’s safety and sense of well-being. Building off the successes of “hot spot”
law enforcement in the Summit Lake area, which reduced crime reports and calls for services in
that community by 12%, the City will utilize police officers and inspectors to identify nuisances
City-wide. This will bring a laser-like focus to weeding out the problems that plague
neighborhoods while setting them up for future growth.

One specific nuisance the City is combating is the number of abandoned homes in
neighborhoods. Abandoned homes often go hand-in hand with criminal activity. Over the past
ten years, the City has removed 2,508 housing structures that were abandoned or dilapidated. In
2011, the number demolished was 476. It is anticipated that over 600 houses will be taken down

in 2012. These lots are sold to new developers or neighborhood businesses to help them expand
and help communities grow.

The City also encouraged growth and security in its neighborhoods by engaging the community
in various programs and events. People visited Lock 3 for weekend concerts and festivals in the
summer, and ice skating and sledding in the winter. On Akron’s 5™ Annual Neighbor’s Day,
community organizations, churches and businesses sponsored activities at 140 sites throughout
the City. Fifteen Akron neighborhoods participated in the National Night Out Against Crime,
more than any other city in Ohio. Young people in the Peacemakers program volunteered over
3,000 hours to improve the City and 40 community organizations.

By partnering with Akron Public Schools, the City continues to help provide better opportunities
for education to its young citizens. Since the City and APS started the Community Learning
Center building project in 2003, 25 new schools have been built. The City helps support “Akron
After School” in partnership with APS with $190,000 in funding annually. With grants, the
school system is able to leverage that money into a $2M program that serves over 4,000 students
each year. Students get at least one hour of mandatory tutoring in core curriculum plus tutoring in
areas such as theater, voice and dance. These students score higher on standardized tests than
those who don’t participate, and show noticeably better behavior in the classroom. The National
Inventors Hall of Fame STEM school has earned national recognition, and the new teaching and
training techniques learned there are being used throughout the district.

The City looks for alliances with other governmental entities to continue to provide quality
service to its citizens. After successfully merging Health Departments, Weights & Measures
Divisions and Building Departments, the City and Summit County are examining ways to
leverage investments in the City’s 9-1-1 dispatch center. The City and County are also looking
for ways to save resources together in areas such as personnel, purchasing, information
technology, employee benefits and fleet management. The City continues to use grant money for
projects to improve roads and bridges. Projects completed with federal stimulus funds in 2011
included work on the All-American Bridge, State Street Bridge, Frank Boulevard, Hilbish
Avenue Bridge and South Main Street.

These are just a few of the initiatives that, when taken together, contribute to the strength and
diversity of the City’s economy.



Reporting Standards

The City’s accounts are organized as funds. Each fund is a separate accounting entity with its
own self-balancing set of accounts, assets, liabilities, and fund balance/equity. Following are the
titles of these fund types with a brief description.

Governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City and is
appropriated. It is used to account for all financial resources traditionally associated with
government that are not required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds — The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues
derived from specific taxes, grants, or other restricted revenue sources. City ordinances or
federal or state statutes specify the uses and limitations of each Special Revenue Fund.
During 2011, the City had 27 Special Revenue Funds.

Debt Service Funds — The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related
costs. During 2011, the City had 11 Debt Service Funds.

Capital Projects Funds — The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial
resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those
financed by proprietary funds. During 2011, the City had 9 Capital Projects Funds.

Permanent Funds — The Permanent Funds are used for the purpose of accounting for
resources that are legally restricted to the extent that earnings, and not principal, may be used

for purposes that support the reporting governments. The City does not have any Permanent
Funds.

Proprietary funds:

Enterprise Funds — The Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed
and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, in that the intent of the
governing body is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The City has six
Enterprise Funds.

Internal Service Funds — The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of
goods or services provided by one division or agency to other divisions or agencies of the
government, generally on a cost-reimbursement basis. The City has eight Internal Service
Funds.



Fiduciary funds:

Private Purpose Trust Funds — The Private Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for other
trust arrangements which benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments.
During 2011, the City had three Private Purpose Trust Funds.

Agency Funds — The Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent

for individuals, private organizations, and other governments. During 2011, the City had
three Agency Funds.

Other Fiduciary Funds — The Other Fiduciary Funds include pension trust funds and
investment trust funds. The City does not utilize any such Other Fiduciary Funds.

Basis of Accounting:

Except for budgetary purposes, the basis of accounting used by the City conforms to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to
governmental units and is consistent with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Cod. Sec. 1600, “Basis of Accounting.” All governmental funds are accounted for using a
current financial resources-current assets and current liabilities measurement focus. The
modified accrual basis of accounting is utilized for governmental funds. Revenues are
recognized when they are susceptible to accrual (both measurable and available). Expenditures

are recognized when the related liability is incurred, except for interest on long-term debt which
is recorded when due.

The measurement focus on the City’s proprietary and fiduciary funds is on the flow of total
economic resources (all assets and liabilities). The accrual basis of accounting (revenues are

recognized when earned and expenses when incurred) is utilized by the City in its proprietary
funds.

The City’s basis of accounting for budgetary purposes differs from GAAP in that revenues are
recognized when received rather than when susceptible to accrual (measurable and available),
and encumbrances are included as expenditures rather than as an allocation of fund balances.

Accounting policies are further explained in Note 1 to the basic financial statements.

Cash Management

Effective cash management is recognized as essential to good fiscal management. The primary
objectives of the City’s investment activities are the preservation of capital and the protection of
investment principal. The Treasurer’s Office within the Department of Finance invests all cash,
following the City’s own investment ordinance, in various securities which consist of fixed-rate
City bonds and notes, certificates of deposit, fully collateralized repurchase agreements, and U.S.
government obligations. The City’s investment ordinance was modified in late 1986 to take
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advantage of State of Ohio investment opportunities. However, the local investment policy
continues to be conservative with the highest priority given to safeguarding assets. For 2011,
investment interest income averaged a yield of 0.54% compared to a yield of 1.53% in 2010.

The interest earnings are maximized by investing to projected payment dates on a competitive
bid basis and by investing bank balances daily.

Risk Management

The City has been self-insured for liability coverage for non-auto-related incidents since 1985.
This program was established in response to the dramatic rise in premiums in the mid-1980’s and
the increases in exclusions written into standard insurance policies. Additionally, the City is
primarily self-insured for employee medical benefits, including major medical, dental, and vision
care. This has proven to be the most cost-effective program for this type of coverage. The City
also has in place reserve funds for workers’ compensation and medical benefits. For other types
of coverage, such as property insurance, airport liability, employee life, auto liability, and boiler
and machinery coverage, the City has secured traditional insurance. The City is assisted in its
insurance program by an independent consulting firm that writes no insurance but has expertise
in the insurance industry. The City relies on the advice offered by the consultant in securing any
insurance.

Pension

The City contributes to two state-administered retirement plans covering various groups of City
employees. Police and firefighters participate in the statewide Ohio Police and Fire Pension
Fund. Substantially, all other City employees participate in the statewide Ohio Public Employees
Retirement System (OPERS). The City’s total contributions to these plans were equal to 100%
of the required employer contributions for the year. The financial statements of these state-
mandated plans are not included in the City’s financial reports as the plans are outside of our
control and are independent of our financial resources or influence.

Independent Annual Audit

We appreciate the cooperation of State Auditor Dave Yost and his staff in completing the City’s
audit in a timely and highly professional manner.

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Akron, Ohio,
for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.
The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing conformance with
the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents



conform to program standards. Such a CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period
of one year only. The City of Akron, Ohio, has received Certificates of Achievement for the last
27 consecutive years (1984 through 2010). We believe our current report continues to conform
to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA.
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The 2011 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report could not have been accomplished without
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practices. We trust that this timely, complete, and fully readable Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report satisfies your needs and those of City Council for responsible financial planning
and reporting.
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Director of Finance
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Dave Yost - Auditor of State

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

City of Akron

Summit County

166 South High Street
Akron, Ohio 44308

To the City Council:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Akron, Summit
County, Ohio (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, which collectively comprise the
City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Comptroller General of the
United States’ Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to reasonably assure whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Akron, Summit County, Ohio, as of December
31, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and where applicable, cash flows, thereof for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

As described in Note 27 to the financial statements, during 2011 the City of Akron adopted Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions and the City adjusted various beginning fund balances at January 1, 2011 for
reclassification of funds and the implementation of GASB Statement No. 54.

101 Central Plaza South, 700 Chase Tower, Canton, Ohio 44702-1509
Phone: 330-438-0617 or 800-443-9272 Fax: 330-471-0001
www.ohioauditor.gov
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City of Akron

Summit County

Independent Accountants’ Report
Page 2

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 27,
2012, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. While we did not opine on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance, that
report describes the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards. You should read it in conjunction with this report in assessing the
results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require this presentation to
include Management's discussion and analysis and required budgetary comparison schedules as listed in
the table of contents, to supplement the basic financial statements. Although this information is not part of
the basic financial statements, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board considers it essential for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any other assurance.

We conducted our audit to opine on the financial statements that coliectively comprise the City's basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section, the financial section’s combining
statements, individual fund statements and schedules, and the statistical section information provide
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The financial section’s
combining statements, individual fund statements and schedules are management's responsibility, and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. These statements and schedules were subject to the auditing procedures we
applied to the basic financial statements. We also applied certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling this information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financiat statements themselves, in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, this information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. We did
not subject the introductory section and statistical section information to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion or any other
assurance on them.

/

Dave Yost
Auditor of State

August 27, 2012
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CITY OF AKRON, OHIO
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management’s discussion and analysis of the City of Akron, Ohio financial performance
provides an overview of Akron’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2011. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter on page 7 and the City’s financial
statements, which begin on page 36.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

o The assets of the City of Akron, Ohio exceeded its liabilities at December 31, 2011 by
$760,302,327 (net assets). Of this amount $73,710,612 is restricted for debt service.

o The City’s total net assets increased by $41,194,793 during the current year.
Governmental activities’ total net assets increased by $36,363,826 and the business-type
activities’ total net assets increased by $4,830,967.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Akron’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $119,904,886, a decrease from the prior year
which is attributed to the expenditures associated with federally funded grant programs
along with previously issued bonds.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$7,901,719 or 5.9% of total general fund expenditures.

e The City of Akron’s total debt outstanding decreased by $13,412,281 (1.76%) during the
current year. During 2011, the City issued $44,094,434 in General Obligation Bonds for
various purpose improvements and $27,165,000 in Special Revenue Bonds to pay for the
cost of improving the Waterworks System ($15,215,000) and the Sanitary Sewer System
($11,950,000).

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Akron’s basic
financial statements. The City of Akron’s basic financial statements are comprised of the
following: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to
the financial statements. This report also contains required and other supplementary information
in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Akron’s finances in a manner
similar to a private sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Akron’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of the financial position of the City of
Akron.
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The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Akron that
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities)
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through
user fees and charges (business type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Akron
include general government, public service, public safety, community environment, public health
and recreation and parks. The business-type activities of the City of Akron include water, sewer,
oil and gas, golf, airport and off-street parking operations.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 36 — 37 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of
Akron, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Akron can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Akron maintains 48 individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, the Community
Learning Centers (CLC) Fund and the Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund, which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.
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The City of Akron adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund, and for special
revenue, some debt service, enterprise and internal service funds. The General Fund,
Community Learning Centers Fund, and Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund budgetary
schedules (non-GAAP budgetary basis) have been provided as Required Supplementary
Information (RSI) to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 38-41 of this report.

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. During 2011, the
City implemented GASB 54 — Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.
The new standard replaces the previous reserved, unreserved, and designated fund balance
categories with five classifications: nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Fund balances are the differences between assets and liabilities in a governmental funds. 1)
Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that are not in spendable form, or amounts that are
required to be maintained intact. 2) Restricted fund balance include amounts that can be spent
only for the specific purposes stipulated by external providers, such as grantors or bondholders, as
well as amounts that are restricted through enabling legislation. 3) Committed fund balance
includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes that are determined by a formal
action of the government’s highest level of decision making authority. 4) Assigned fund balance
applies to amounts that are intended for specific purposes as expressed by the governing body or
authorized official and applies to remaining resources in any governmental funds other than the
general fund. 5) Unassigned fund balances include all amounts not contained in other
classifications for the general fund, and deficit fund balances in any other governmental funds.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s total governmental funds reported an ending
fund balance of $119,904,886 a decrease of $20,525,831 in comparison with the prior year. As a
measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance
and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 5.9% of
total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 6.82% of that same amount.

Proprietary Funds. The City of Akron maintains two different types of proprietary funds,
enterprise and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City of
Akron uses enterprise funds to account for its water, sewer, oil and gas, golf, airport, and off-
street parking operations. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate
and allocate costs internally among the City of Akron’s various functions. The City of Akron
uses internal service funds to account for its vehicle maintenance, medical self-insurance,
workers’ compensation self-insurance, other self-insurance costs, storeroom (providing City-
wide copy center, mailing operation and central storeroom), management information systems
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(responsible for all data processing and computer operations of the City), telephone system (with
outside cable plant consisting of underground and aerial wires and telephone cables), and
engineering bureau (responsible for design and construction for City streets, sidewalks, sewer
and water utilities, bridges, and City facilities). Because most of the internal services
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been
included within the governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Water, Sewer, and Off-Street Parking operations, which are considered to be
major funds of the City of Akron. Conversely, the internal service funds are combined into a
single aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data
for the nonmajor enterprise and the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 42 — 44 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide
financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City of
Akron’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 45 — 46 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 47-107 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain Required Supplementary Information (RSI) concerning the City of
Akron’s General Fund, Community Learning Centers Fund, and Income Tax Capital
Improvement Fund budgetary comparison. Required Supplementary Information (RSI) can be
found on pages 109-113 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds,

enterprise funds and internal service funds are presented immediately following the Required
Supplementary Information (RSI) and can be found on pages 116-183 of this report.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City of Akron, assets exceeded liabilities by $760,302,327 at the close
of the most recent fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City of Akron’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The City of Akron uses these capital assets to provide services to
the citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City
of Akron’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other resources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City of Akron’s net assets (9.7%) is restricted for the payment of
debt service. The City’s net assets increased by $41,194,793 during the current year. The net
assets of the governmental activities increased by $36,363,826 and business-type activities
increased by $4,830,967.

Summary Statement of Net Assets
as of December 31, 2010 and 2011
(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011
Assets:
Current and other assets $ 380,693 $ 368,055 $ 35345 $ 32,385 $ 416,038 $ 400,440
Capital assets 953,795 973,493 476,516 477,482 1,430,311 1,450,975
Total assets $ 1,334,488 $ 1,341,548 $ 511,861 $ 509,867 $ 1,846,349 $ 1,851,415
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities 762,126 732,217 104,825 96,741 866,951 828,958
Other liabilities 239,459 240,134 20,832 22,021 260,291 262,155
Total liabilities $ 1,001,585 $ 972351 $ 125,657 $ 118,762 $ 1,127,242 $ 1,091,113
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets net of related debt 320,611 336,791 368,334 382,353 688,945 719,144
Restricted 76,133 64,060 11,956 9,650 88,089 73,710
Unrestricted (63,841) (31,654) 5914 (898) (57,927) (32,552)
Total net assets $ 332,903 $ 369,197 $ 386,204 $ 391,105 $ 719,107 $ 760,302
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Governmental Activities. Changes in net assets before transfers was an increase in the amount
of $36,893,000.

For the governmental activities, the unrestricted deficit results from having insufficient assets set
side for long-term obligations such as compensated absences and OPEB liability. The City
finances such obligations on a year-to-year basis as they come due and also has ongoing capital
projects that are debt-financed.

The following table shows total revenues for 2011 were $351,076,000 which reflects a slight
decrease from the prior year. Program revenue showed a decline as Charges for services and
Operating grants and contributions decreased by $14,171,000 and $21,217,000, respectively.
Expenses for 2011 were lower than 2010 by approximately $60 million. Even as the City
monitored spending, the expenditures for community environment show an increase relating to
existing commitments. Key events contributing to the changes are as follows:

e The increase in income tax revenue is evidenced by the change in the state of the
economy.

e Unemployment shows a slight decrease to 9.4% which is a result of employees returning
to the work force.

e Charges for services and Public Health expenditures decreased due to the consolidation
of the Akron Health Department with the Summit County Health District.

e The decrease in operating grants and contributions was expected as the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funded projects draw to a close.

e Miscellaneous revenues increase is attributed to a single payment that is not an ongoing
revenue stream.

o Significant efforts are still in place to keep expenditures in line with revenue.

e The increase in community environment expenditures is solely due to the Community
Learning Center Projects that has significant long-term benefit to the community.
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Changes in Net Assets
For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2010 and 2011

(in thousands)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 50,074 $ 35903 $ 85406 $ 90,298 $ 135,480 $ 126,201
Operating grants and contributions 38,519 17,302 - - 38519 17,302
Capital grants and contributions 38,468 38,779 5,838 4,416 44,306 43,195
General revenues:
Income taxes 119,258 134,473 - - 119,258 134,473
Property taxes 29,014 25,831 - - 29,014 25,831
JEDD revenues 15,191 16,826 - - 15,191 16,826
Investment earnings 534 644 7 1 541 645
Unrestricted shared revenues 57,043 51,162 - - 57,043 51,162
Miscellaneous 20,122 28,418 2,824 1,351 22,946 29,769
Gain on sale of capital assets 2 96 - - 2 96
Total revenues $ 368,225 $ 349,434 $ 94,075 $ 96,066 $ 462300 $ 445,500
Expenses:
General government $ 57325 $ 48,718 $ - $ - $ 57325 $ 48,718
Public service 104,776 50,269 - - 104,776 50,269
Public safety 112,984 109,951 - - 112,984 109,951
Community environment 36,971 56,713 - - 36,971 56,713
Public health 16,585 3,517 - - 16,585 3,517
Recreation and parks 5,705 5,801 - - 5,705 5,801
Interest on debt 24,845 22,213 - - 24,845 22,213
Unallocated depreciation 14,741 15,359 - - 14,741 15,359
Water - - 34,400 35,228 34,400 35,228
Sewer - - 39,299 46,731 39,299 46,731
Oil & gas - - 479 250 479 250
Golf course - - 1,270 1,193 1,270 1,193
Airport - - 686 1,006 686 1,006
Off-street parking - ~ 7,249 7,356 7,249 7.356
Total expenses 373,932 312,541 83,383 91,764 457,315 404,305
Changes in net assets before
transfers (5,707) 36,893 10,692 4,302 4,985 41,195
Transfers (393) (530) 393 530 - -
Changes in net assets $ (6,100) $ 36,363 $ 11,085 $ 4,832 $ 4,985 $ 41,195
Net assets - beginning , as restated 339,003 332,833 375,119 386,274 714,122 719,107
Net assets - ending $ 332,903 $ 369,196 $ 386,204 $ 391,106 $ 719,107 $ 760,302

—— | ————— | E———— ———— ————— —————
F————— I ——— ————— - ———— I — ————
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities
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The above chart shows the revenue generated by the various programs of the City of Akron and
the expenses relating to each program. As shown below, the primary source of revenue that
funds these programs is reported in the financial statements as income taxes.

Revenues By Sources Governmental Activities

Other revenues Charges for services
13% 10%

Grants and contributions
Shared revenues 16%

15%

Property taxes
7%

Income taxes
39%
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City of Akron uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of Akron’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City of Akron’s financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Akron’s governmental funds reported a
combined ending fund balance of $119,904,886, a decrease in comparison to the prior year. The
unassigned fund balance at the end of the current year is a deficit of $32,721,534. The remainder
of fund balance is distributed to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has
already been dedicated. The City’s major governmental funds are the General Fund, the
Community Learning Centers (CLC) Fund and the Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Akron. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $7,901,719, while the total fund
balance is $9,144,191. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to
compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unassigned fund balance represents 5.9% of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund
balance represents 6.82% of that same amount.

The fund balance of the City of Akron’s General Fund increased by $6,450,902 during the
current fiscal year. Key factors in this change are as follows:

e Revenues as a whole increased by $3,673,730 from the prior year. The increase is
reflective primarily to Income Tax revenues.

¢ Expenditures are under careful review not to exceed available resources is evidenced by
expenditures remained stable with a slight decrease of $608,257.

e The close-out of expired funds resulted in a one-time transfer into the General Fund of
$558,143.

e The practice of transferring monies from the General Fund, $5,938,822, to subsidize
various operations and provide the local match for grants is a method used annually by
the City to provide resources to these funds.

The Community Learning Centers Fund has a total fund balance of $81,330,401. The net

decrease in the Community Learning Centers Fund from the prior year was $14,336,770 which is
attributed to the payment of expenditures for debt service and project specific costs.
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The Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund has a total fund balance of $6,784,301.
Expenditures exceeded revenue by $9,391,139 in 2011 attributing to the decrease in the fund
balance. The Fund is responsible for debt service payments and relies heavily on the collection
of Income taxes.

Other Governmental Funds have a combined fund balance of $22,645,993. The decrease in the
combined fund balance was $3,248,824. This majority of the change is attributed to projects
within the capital project funds. The City has been diligent in addressing several special revenue
funds and the capital project funds as reflected in the Net change in fund balance in the
following: City Facilities Operating Fund and the Streets Fund.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY OVERVIEW

During the year, actual revenues and other sources were over budgetary estimates by $4,554,547
(3.0%). Income tax revenue, the major revenue source, was more than the budgeted amount by
$5,957,736. Service revenues during 2011 were lower than budgeted by $5,160,030 basically
offsetting the increase in Income tax revenue. Miscellaneous revenue reflects a one time
increase attributed to the reclassifying of various funds.

Through restraint on spending, the budgeted draw on General Fund resources was avoided and
actual results were an excess of revenues and other sources over expenditures of $3,031,987.
The actual expenditures were slightly under the final budget by $1,938,854.

Key events contributing to the changes in the General Fund budget amounts are as follows:

e The excess revenue was allocated to both the Police and Fire Departments where the final
budget was $3 million greater than original budget.

e The Department of Public Service final budget was adjusted to allow for reclassifying
various funds revenue and expenditures into the General Fund.

o The City’s expenditures include the payment of some of the deferred liabilities negotiated
during more difficult economic times.
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities
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The above chart shows the revenue generated by the various business-type activities of the City
of Akron and the expenses relating to each activity. As shown below, the majority of the
revenue that funds these activities is reported in the financial statements as charges for services.

Revenues by Sour ces - Business-type Activities
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Business-Type Activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Akron’s net assets by
$4,830,967 compared to an increase of $11,084,812 in the prior year. Total program revenues
increased by $3,468,745 coupled with an increase in expenses of $8,380,752 account for the
change in net assets.

Proprietary Funds. The City of Akron’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The City’s major
enterprise funds are the Water, Sewer, and Off-Street Parking.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water Fund at the end of the year was $1,371,002; for the Sewer
Fund was $317,465, and for the Off-Street Parking Fund was a deficit of $75,237. The increase
reported in net assets for the Water and Sewer Funds were $291,140 and $5,425,815,
respectively. The decrease reported in net assets for Off-Street Parking was $1,158,540.

The Water Department services the City and 11 surrounding communities which account for
83,794 customer accounts and 1,225 miles of water mains. All bonds of the Water Fund are paid
from water enterprise revenues. A ten-year comparison of certain water enterprise data is shown
in Schedule 15 of the Statistical Section. Water rates remained stable and results of operations
yielded an increase in net assets due to cost containment.

The Sewer Department services the City and 12 surrounding communities which account for
78,653 customer accounts and 1,340 miles of sewer lines. All bonds of the Sewer Fund are paid
from sewer enterprise revenues. A ten-year comparison of certain sewer enterprise data is shown
in Schedule 15 of the Statistical Section. Sewer rates remained virtually unchanged with only
slight increases to a small population of non-resident customers and results of operations yielded
an increase in net assets due again to cost containment.

The Off-Street Parking Fund experienced a decrease in charges for services revenue coupled

with a slight increase in operating expenses. The decrease in net assets directly relates to a lower
amount of capital contributions compared to prior year.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets. The City of Akron’s investment in capital assets for its government and
business-type activities as of December 31, 2011, amounts to $1,450,974,784 (net of
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, construction in
progress, buildings, improvements other than buildings, equipment, and infrastructure. The total
increase in the City of Akron’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was
$20,663,865 (a 2.07% increase for governmental activities and a 0.20% increase for business-
type activities).

Capital Assets
(net of accumulated depreciation)
(in thousands)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011
Land $156,634 $156,826 $26,607 $26,688 $183,241 $183,514
Construction in progress 96,083 91,040 17,109 17,262 113,192 108,302
Buildings 251,339 275,473 110,635 111,655 361,974 387,128
Improvements 95,319 97,958 193,078 185,461 288,397 283,419
Equipment 21,341 17,486 7,200 6,117 28,541 23,603
Infrastructure 333,079 334,710 121,887 130,299 454,966 465,009
$953,795 $973,493 $476,516 $477,482 $1,430,311 $1,450,975

———— | E———— ——— e p——— S —————— o———
= ————— B ——— ——— B ——————————— I - ——————————— - ———

The City of Akron displays additional information relating to the capital assets of the City that
can be found in Note 1. G. and Note 7.

Major capital assets added during the current fiscal year included the following:

Community Learning Centers Construction In Progress - $22,690,098
Massillon Road Sewer - $2,517,218

Tallmadge Avenue Widening - $2,092,868

Mill Street Bridge - $2,911,599

South Main Street Roadway Improvements - $1,382,738

WPCS Step Feed PH 1 - $1,065,906
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Long-Term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Akron had total debt
outstanding of $747,586,000. All general obligation bonds are backed by the full faith and credit
of the City. Special assessment bonds and notes are covered by special assessment collections
and are backed by the full faith and credit of the City. The remainder of the City of Akron’s debt
represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources.

City of Akron
Outstanding Debt
(in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011

General Obligation Bonds $ 248,559 $ 240,483 $ 633 $ 638 $ 249,192 $ 241,121
General Obligation Notes 33,865 52,650 - - 33,865 52,650
OPWC Loan 10,751 10,706 2,147 1,946 12,898 12,652
Ohio Department of

Development Loan 845 5,689 - - 845 5,689
Non-Tax Revenue Bonds 55,795 50,835 - - 55,795 50,835
Income Tax Revenue Bonds 240,105 234,095 - - 240,105 234,095
Special Revenue Bonds 35,115 27,165 - - 35,115 27,165
Special Assessment

Bonds and Notes 22,000 21,859 - - 22,000 21,859
SIB Loan 5,783 4,476 - - 5,783 4,476
Mortgage Revenue Bonds - - 43,925 40,365 43,925 40,365
Revenue Bonds - - 27,260 23,470 27,260 23,470
OWDA Loan - - 34,217 33,209 34,217 33,209

$ 652,818 $ 647,958 $ 108,182 $ 99,628 $ 761,000 $ 747,586

The City of Akron’s total debt outstanding decreased by $13,414,000 (1.76%) during the current
fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year the City issued $44,094,434 in General Obligation Bonds for
various purpose improvements and $27,165,000 in Special Revenue Bonds to pay for the cost of
improving the Waterworks System ($15,215,000) and the Sanitary Sewer System ($11,950,000).

The Ohio Revised Code provides that the outstanding general obligation bonds less self-
supporting debt (e.g., income tax-backed projects) of the municipal corporation, whether or not
approved by the electors, shall not exceed 10.5% of the assessed value of all property in the
municipal corporation as listed and assessed for taxation. In addition, the unvoted net debt of
municipal corporations cannot exceed 5.5% of total assessed value of property. The City of
Akron’s total debt limit (10.5%) is $280,571,736 and the total unvoted net debt limit (5.5%) is
$146,966,147.
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The City’s general obligation bonds are rated “AA-" by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services,
“AA-” by Fitch Ratings and “Aa3” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. The insured Water and
Sewer Revenue bonds were originally rated AAA from Fitch, AAA from Moody’s and AAA
from Standard & Poor’s.

Additional information on the City of Akron’s long-term debt can be found in Notes 10-12.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e Akron’s average annual unemployment rate at year-end was 9.4%, which is down slightly
from the prior year.

e The City of Akron budgeted income tax collections to increase by 2.5%, Local
Government and Property Tax revenue to decrease.

In the 2012 budget, the General Fund unencumbered fund balance is projecting a slight decrease
of $4,528.

Fiscal Analysis

On September 30, 2011, the City was declared in Fiscal Caution by the Auditor of State. City
management’s has prepared and provided an acceptable plan to the Auditor of State. The City is
implementing changes and is on schedule addressing remaining items.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Akron’s finances
for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or request for additional information should be addressed to
the Director of Finance, Municipal Building, 166 South High Street, Room 502, Akron, Ohio
44308.
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Assets
Current assets
Pooled cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Receivables, net
Loans receivable
Due from other governments
Internal balances
Inventories, at cost
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets;
Recetvables, net
Loans receivable
Unamortized bond costs and deferred loss
Deposits
Assets held for resale
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities

Deposits
Due to other governments
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Accrued wages
Accrued vacation and leave
COPs and obligations under capital lease
Liability for unpaid claims
Bonds, notes and loans payable
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
COPs and obligations under capital lease
Liabilities due in more than one year
Deferred charges and other liabilities
Bonds, notes and loans payable
due in more than one year

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net assets

City of Akron, Ohio

Statement of Net Assets

December 31,2011

Exhibit 1

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
43,841,845 § 9,557,523 $ 53,399,368
81,024,888 9,650,185 90,675,073
87,296,408 13,504,539 100,800,947
469,072 - 469,072
2,573,272 53,891 2,627,163
4,866,675 (4,866,675) -
893,013 2,921 461 3,814,474
220,965,173 30,820,924 251,786,097
98,105,753 - 98,105,753
15,532,732 - 15,532,732
7,441,212 1,564,468 9,005,680
22,924,591 - 22,924,591
3,085,645 - 3,085,645
247,866,168 43,949,168 291,815,336
725,626,857 433,532,591 1,159,159,448
1,120,582,958 479,046,227 1,599,629,185
1,341,548,131 509,867,151 1,851,415,282
16,838,237 5,103,629 21,941,866
433,094 679,528 1,112,622
2,579,072 94,727 2,673,799
122,824,481 - 122,824,481
2,591,148 1,298,709 3,889,857
3,274,928 528,659 3,803,587
10,445,053 1,320,200 11,765,253
7,149,430 66,758 7,216,188
3,472,530 - 3,472,530
70,526,740 12,928,522 83,455,262
240,134,713 22,020,732 262,155,445
68,365,346 387,151 68,752,497
71,451,845 7,535,545 78,987,390
18,772,251 2,118,515 20,890,766
573,627,197 86,699,660 660,326,857
732,216,639 96,740,871 828,957,510
972,351,352 118,761,603 1,091,112,955
336,791,218 382,353,490 719,144,708
64,060,427 9,650,185 73,710,612
(31,654,866) (898,127) (32,552,993)
369,196,779 § 391,105,548 § 760,302,327

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio
Statement of Activities

Exhibit 2

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Gover tal type
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Functions/Programs
Governmental activities:
General government $ 48,717,920 §$ 9,674,230 § - 8 - § (39043,690) $ - § (39,043,690)
Public service 50,268,506 25,094,315 9,320 32,527,498 7,362,627 - 7,362,627
Public safety 109,950,785 847,335 3,617,236 - (105,486,214) - (105,486,214)
Community environment 56,713,838 7.607 13,099,449 3,508,509 (40,098,273) - (40,098,273)
Public health 3,517,378 37,132 416,007 - (3,064,239) - (3.064,239)
Recreation and parks 5,801,457 242,837 160,463 2,742,619 (2,655,538) - (2,655,538)
Interest 22,212,625 - - - (22,212,625) - (22,212,625)
Unallocated depreciation* 15,358,939 - - - (15,358,939) - (15,358,939)
Total governmental activities 312,541,448 35,903,456 17,302,475 38,778,626 (220,556,891) - (220,556,891)
Business-type activities:

Water 35,228,188 34,718,912 - 339,936 - (169,340) (169,340)
Sewer 46,730,809 49,610,750 - 2,668,413 - 5,548,354 5,548,354
Oil & gas 250,643 373,269 B - - 122,626 122,626
Golf course 1,193,071 807,693 - - - (385,378) (385,378)
Airport 1,005,792 76,912 - 226,032 - (702,848) (702,848)
Parking facilities 7,355,958 4,710,310 - 1,181,921 - (1,463,727) (1,463,727)
Total business-type activities 91,764,461 90,297,846 - 4,416,302 - 2,949,687 2,949,687
Total Government § 404,305,909 § 126,201,302 § 17,302,475 § 43,194,928 $  (220,556,891) § 2,949,687 $ (217,607,204)

General Revenues:

Taxes:

Income taxes $ 134,473,083 § - § 134,473,083
Property taxes 25,831,020 - 25,831,020
JEDD revenues 16,826,153 - 16,826,153
Investment earnings 643,612 626 644,238
Unrestricted shared revenues 51,162,387 - 51,162,387
Miscellaneous 28,418,459 1,350,658 29,769,117
Gain on sale of capital assets 95,999 - 95,999
Transfers (329,996) 529,996 -
Total general revenues and transfers 256,920,717 1,881,280 258,801,997
Change in net assets 36,363,826 4,830,967 41,194,793
Net assets - beginning, as restated 332,832,953 386,274,581 719,107,534
Net assets - ending $ 369,196,779 $ 391,105,548 § 760,302,327

* Excludes depreciation included in program expenses.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Akron, Ohio Exhibit 3
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
December 31, 2011
Income
Community Tax Other Total
Learning Capital Governmental Governmental
General Centers Improvement Funds Funds

Assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 1,798472 § 14,041,144  § 992,557 $ 21,668,315 $ 38,500,488
Restricted cash and investments - 63,531,521 - 17,493,367 81,024,888
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles 44,860,836 68,704,362 4,504,263 42,492,467 160,561,928
Loans receivable 63,836 - - 15,937,968 16,001,804
Due from other governments 12,761 - 5,050 3,797,485 3,815,296
Due from other funds 4,661,071 2,046,024 4,500,000 3,795,687 15,002,782
Deposits - - - 22,924,591 22,924,591
Advances to other funds 86,648 - - - 86,648
Assets held for resale - - - 3,085,645 3,085,645
Total assets $ 51,483,624 § 148323051 $ 10,001,870 $ 131,195,525 $ 341,004,070
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,323,524  § 65,185 § 112,459 % 4,609,624 $ 6,110,792
Deposits 91,096 - - 341,998 433,094
Advances from other funds - - - 86,648 86,648
Due to other governments 1,428,064 - 2,351 2,696,301 4,126,716
Due to other funds 1,248,875 49 144,154 10,975,546 12,368,624
Due to others 416,419 - - 1,064,038 1,480,457
Deferred grant revenue 12,761 - - 3,605,824 3,618,585
Deferred revenue 32,223,651 66,927,416 1,752,883 35,863,456 136,767,406
Matured interest payable - - - - -
Accrued liabilities 3,243,963 - 39,654 2,365,713 5,649,330
Accrued wages 2,272,644 - 15,944 770,936 3,059,524
Accrued vacation and leave 78,436 - - 29,572 108,008
Special Assessment Notes - - - 9,640,000 9,640,000
G.O. Notes - - 1,150,124 36,499,876 37,650,000
Total liabilities 42,339,433 66,992,650 3,217,569 108,549,532 221,099,184
Fund balances
Nonspendable - - - 3,085,645 3,085,645
Restricted - 81,330,401 6,784,301 54,735,320 142,850,022
Committed - - - 5,448,281 5,448,281
Assigned 1,242,472 - - - 1,242,472
Unassigned 7,901,719 - - (40,623,253) (32,721,534)
Total fund balances (deficits) 9,144,191 81,330,401 6,784,301 22,645,993 119,904,886
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 51,483,624 $ 148323051 § 10,001,870 § 131,195,525 $ 341,004,070

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Akron, Ohio

Exhibit 3a

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets - Governmental Funds

December 31, 2011

Total fund balances for governmental funds (Exhibit 3)

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
is different because:

Investments in City of Akron issued bonds and notes are eliminated in the
government-wide statement of net assets.

Capital assets used in governmental activities (excluding internal service fund capital
assets) are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Grant revenues

Income taxes

JEDD revenues

Property taxes

Special assessments

Shared revenues

Long-term accounts receivables are not available to pay for current period expenditures.

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in the governmental
activities in the statement of net assets.

Long-term liabilities including bonds payable and accrued interest payable
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities (26,030,688)

Due to other governments
Accrued interest payable

Accrued vacation and leave (45,246,662)
Bonds, notes and loans payable (581,863,937)
Obligations under capital lease (75,514,776)
Unamortized bond premium (18,772,251)

Unamortized bond issue cost

Deferred grant revenue reflected as a receivable in the funds, therefore, eliminated entity wide.

Total net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit 1)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Akron, Ohio Exhibit 4
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Income
Community Tax Other Total
Learning Capital Governmental Governmental
General Centers Improvement Funds Funds
Revenues
Income taxes $ 79,063,709 § 16,822272 § 32,169834 § 7,289,419 $ 135,345,234
Property taxes 15,924,550 - - 8,187,422 24,111,972
JEDD revenues 1,472,000 - 920,000 14,185,998 16,577,998
Special assessments 60,579 - - 6,252,268 6,312,847
Grants and subsidies:
Community development - - - 7,795,876 7,795,876
Other 32,228 1,079,676 705,631 44,023,754 45,841,289
Investment earnings 83,112 472318 - 216,679 772,109
Shared revenues 21,137,205 - - 31,354,613 52,491,818
Licenses, fees and fines 5,914,001 - 75 1,768,799 7,682,875
Charges for services 17,598,716 - 3,859 6,399,541 24,002,116
Miscellaneous 4,546,590 7,401 459,862 23,519,496 28,533,349
145,832,690 18,381,667 34,259,261 150,993 865 349,467,483
Expenditures
Current:
General government 14,422,409 178,462 10,589 27,788,825 42,400,285
Public service 26,407,039 - 1,343,820 43,762,881 71,513,740
Public safety 85,233,000 - 917,086 24,663,984 110,814,070
Community environment 1,854,121 14,944 866 8,920,794 51,317,487 77,037,268
Public health 2,685,401 - - 1,272,252 3,957,653
Recreation and parks 3313918 - - 2,166,929 5,480,847
Debt service:
Principal retirement 61,453 5,750,000 16,775,634 20,228,844 42,815,931
Interest 23,768 11,845,109 15,097,403 6,653,856 33,620,136
Bond issuance expenditures - - - 1,458,659 1,458,659
134,001,109 32,718,437 43,065,326 179,313,717 389,098,589
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 11,831,581 (14,336,770) (8,806,065) (28,319,852) (39,631,106)
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of bonds - - - 10,703,000 10,703,000
Premium on G.O. Debt - - - 205,387 205,387
Premium on refunding bonds - - - 4,360,193 4,360,193
Issuance of refunding obligations - - - 97,633,009 97,633,009
Payment for refund obligations - - - (93,235,293) (93,235,293)
Transfers-in 558,143 - 10,108 11,577,233 12,145,484
Transfers-out (5,938,822) - (595,182) (6,172,501) (12,706,505)
(5,380,679) - (585,074) 25,071,028 19,105,275
Net change in fund balance 6,450,902 (14,336,770) (9,391,139) (3,248,824) (20,525,831)
Fund balances (deficit), January 1, 2011, as restated 2,693,289 95,667,171 16,175,440 25,894 817 140,430,717
Fund balances (deficit), December 31, 2011 $ 9,144,191 § 81,330,401 3 6,784,301 § 22,645,993 $ 119,904,886

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Akron, Ohio

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

to the Statement of Activities - Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit 4)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets, which meet capitalization requirements, is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which capital outlays ($51,927,983) exceeded depreciation
($31,763,120) in the current period.

The net effect of selling capital assets increased net assets.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums and
deferred amount on refundings when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. The amount is the net effect of
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Issuance of debt

Payment of debt

Payment to refunding agent

Premium on debt

Bond issuance expenditures

Some of the expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

The revenues and expenses of the internal service funds are included in the
governmental activities in the statement of activities.

Change in net assets of governmental activities (Exhibit 2)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Akron, Ohio Exhibit §
Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds

December 31, 2011
Governmental
Other Activities-
Off-Street Enterprise Internal
Water Sewer Parking Funds Total Service Funds
Assets
Current assets
Pooled cash and investments $ 2435331 § 6,401,748 § 414,814 § 305,630 $ 9557523 § 9,146,606
Restricted cash and investments 2,987,801 6,662,384 - - 9,650,185 -
Recetvables, net of allowances
for uncollectibles 4,638,884 8,786,701 38,989 39,965 13,504,539 163,030
Due from other governments 43,887 - - 10,004 53,891 -
Due from other funds 2,388,527 20,152 - - 2,408,679 2,092,401
Inventories, at cost 1,874,969 987,700 - 58,792 2,921,461 893,013
Total current assets 14,369,399 22,858,685 453,803 414391 38,096,278 12,295,050
Noncurrent assets
Deferred loss on early retirement 339,866 507,386 - - 847252 -
Unamortized bond discount 47,956 - - - 47,956 -
Unamortized bond issue costs 383,558 285,702 - - 669,260 -
Property, plant and equipment,
net of accumulated depreciation 142,787,558 239,338,347 84,831,192 10,524,662 477,481,759 2,478,122
Total noncurrent assets 143,558,938 240,131,435 84,831,192 10,524,662 479,046,227 2,478,122
Total assets 157,928,337 262,990,120 85,284,995 10,939,053 517,142,505 14,773,172
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 1,008,726 2,685,707 466,927 11,434 4,172,794 657,966
Deposits 679,528 - - - 679,528 -
Due to other governments 70,236 24,491 - - 94,727 -
Due to other funds 967,491 3,766,897 56,667 136,387 4,927,442 2,207,796
Accrued interest payable 781,429 515,005 2,275 - 1,298,709 -
Accrued liabilities 698,224 186,072 822 45,717 930,835 1,505,229
Accrued wages 297,001 211,074 2,349 18,235 528,659 215,404
Accrued vacation and leave 761,304 518,450 - 40,446 1,320,200 674,698
Obligations under capital lease 52,973 - - 13,785 66,758 -
Liability for unpaid claims - - - - - 3,472,530
Debt:
General obligation bonds - - 3,377 - 3,377 -
General obligation notes - - - - - 2,000,000
Mortgage revenue bonds 3,190,000 - - - 3,190,000 -
Revenue bonds - 3,955,000 - - 3,955,000 -
OWDA loans 897,757 4,680,874 - - 5,578,631 -
OPWC loans 95,958 105,556 - - 201,514 -
Total current liabilities 9,500,627 16,649,126 532,417 266,004 26,948,174 10,733,623
Noncurrent liabilities
Obligations under capital lease 307,210 - - 79,941 387,151 -
Due in more than one year 4,051,009 3,158,919 - 325,617 7,535,545 7,902,651
Deferred charges and other liabilities 1,467,028 651,487 - - 2,118 515 -
Bonds, notes, and loans 44 482,544 41,582,666 634,450 - 86,699,660 13,000,000
Total noncurrent liabilities 50,307,791 45,393,072 634,450 405,558 96,740,871 20,902,651
Total liabilities 59,808,418 62,042,198 1,166,867 671,562 123,689,045 31,636,274
Net assets
Invested in capital assets net of related debt 93,761,116 193,968,073 84,193,365 10,430,936 382,353,490 2,478,122
Restricted for debt service 2,987,801 6,662,384 - - 9,650,185 -
Unrestricted (deficit) 1,371,002 317,465 (75,237) (163,445) 1,449,785 (19,341,224)
Total net assets $ 98119919 § 200,947,922 $ 84,118,128 $ 10,267,491 $ (16,863,102)
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds: (2,347,912)
Net assets of business-type activities 391,105,548

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Akron, Ohio Exhibit 6
Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Governmental
Other Activities-
Off-Street Enterprise Internal
Water Sewer Parking Funds Total Service Funds
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 34718912 § 49,610,750 $§ 4710310 § 1,257,874 $ 90,297,846 $ 50,539,900
Other 530,312 62,891 290,466 466,989 1,350,658 511,460
35,249,224 49,673,641 5,000,776 1,724,863 91,648,504 51,051,360
Operating expenses
Personal services 12,476,664 8,132,496 23,944 1,144,361 21,777,465 8,738,802
Direct expenses 13,073,140 25,668,572 2,759,542 737,645 42,238,899 13,187,373
Claims - - - - - 25,295,512
Rentals and lease 961,742 45,984 902,449 109,511 2,019,686 221,056
Utilities 1,265,409 2,074,830 675,360 120,768 4,136,367 208,018
Insurance 121,621 183,542 41,460 32,291 378,914 75,234
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 5,193,331 8,385,575 2,370,924 295,305 16,245,135 497,777
Other 34,542 63,516 511,663 3,360 613,081 8,900
33,126,449 44,554,515 7,285,342 2,443,241 87,409,547 48,232,672
Operating income (loss) 2,122,775 5,119,126 (2,284,566) (718,378) 4,238,957 2,818,688
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Interest income - 626 - - 626 54
Interest expense (2,163,116) (2,362,350) (55,731) - (4,581,197) (294,270)
Loss on disposal of capital assets (8,455) - - - (8,455) (14,823)
(2,171,571) (2,361,724) (55,731 - (4,589,026) (309,039)
Gain (loss) before transfers and contributions (48,796) 2,757,402 (2,340,297) (718,378) (350,069) 2,509,649
Transfers-in - - - 530,160 530,160 31,025
Transfers-out - - (164) - (164) -
Capital contributions 339,936 2,668,413 1,181921 226,032 4,416,302 -
339,936 2,668,413 1,181,757 756,192 4,946,298 31,025
Net change in net assets 291,140 5425815 (1,158,540) 37,814 4,596,229 2,540,674
Net assets, January 1, 2011, as restated 97,828,779 195,522,107 85,276,668 10,229,677 (19,403,776)
Net assets, December 31, 2011 $ 98,119,919 § 200,947,922 § 84,118,128 § 10,267,491 $ (16,863,102)
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds. 234,738
Change in net assets of business-type activities § 4830967

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 7
City of Akron, Ohio
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Governmental
Other Activities
Off-Street Enterprise Internal
Water Sewer Parking Funds Total Service Funds
Operating activities
Cash received from customers $ 38,590,625 $ 49,131,568 3 4,697,101 $ 1,254,432 $ 93,673,726 $ 50,585,397
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (15,899,250) (24,551,941) (4,529,801} (1,016,459) (45,997.451) (13,656,324)
Cash paid for salaries and employee benefits (12,407,332) (7,651,490) (86,674) (1,063,888) (21,209,384) (34,849,132)
Other revenues 530,312 62,891 290,466 466,989 1,350,658 511,460
Other expenses (34,542) (63,516) (511,663) (3,360) (613,081) (8,900)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 10,779,813 16,927,512 (140,571) (362,286) 27,204,468 2,582,501
Non-capital financing activities
Transfers from other funds - - - 530,160 530,160 31,025
Transfers in for negative cash balances - - - 124,334 124,334 1,983,749
Transfers out for negative cash balances - (1,838,283) - (735,227) (2,573,510) 2,419,050
Principal paid on bonds, loans and notes - - - - - (14,000,000}
Interest paid on bonds, loans and notes - - - - - (294,270)
Transfers to other funds - (164) - (164) -
Proceeds from notes - - - - - 13,000,000
Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital
financing activities - (1,838,283) (164) (80,733) (1,919,180) 3,139,554
Capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from the sale of bonds - - 8,279 - 8,279 2,000,000
Principal paid on bonds and loans (4,974,629) (3,220,802) (3,377) - (8,198,808) -
Interest paid on bonds and loans (2,689,234) (2,455,159) (55,443) - (5,199,836) -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (5,258,676) (5,902,071) (1,219,518) (22,825) (12,403,090) (49,994)
Capital contributions 339,936 2,668,413 1,181,921 226,032 4,416,302 -
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related
financing activities (12,582,603) (8,909,619) (88,138) 203,207 (21,377,153) 1,950,006
Investing activities
Purchase of investment securities (5,158,445) (5,082,762) - - (10,241,207) -
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investment securities 5,158,445 5,082,762 - - 10,241,207 -
Interest on investments - 626 - - 626 54
Net cash provided by investing activities - 626 - - 626 54
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,802,790) 6,180,236 (228,873) (239.812) 3,908,761 7,672,115
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1, 2011, as restated 7,225,922 6,883,896 643,687 545,442 15,298,947 1,474,491
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31, 2011 $ 5,423,132 $ 13,064,132 $ 414,814 $ 305,630 $ 19,207,708 $ 9,146,606
Operating income (loss) $ 2,122.775 $ 5,119,126 §  (2,284,566) $ (718,378) $ 4,238,957 $ 2,818,688
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 5,193,331 8,385,575 2,370,924 295,305 16,245,135 497,777
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Receivables (385,604) (459,030) (13,209) (39,965) (897,808) (29,416)
Due from other funds 4,213,430 (20,152) - - 4,193,278 74913
Due from other governments 43,887 - - 36,523 80,410 .
Inventories (317,287) 17,770 - 2,998 (296,519) (108,344)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable (214,123) 1,301,527 86,481 (4,893) 1,168,992 92,843
Due to other funds 16,934 2,126,235 (57 (14,349) 2,128,763 50,974
Due to other governments 30,045 (24,545) (237,414) - (231,914) (116)
Accrued liabilities 401313 275,342 164 27,008 703,827 230,271
Accrued wages (25,550) 29,300 (1) 2,179 5,928 5,618
Accrued vacation and leave (299,338) 176,364 (62,893) 51,286 (134,581) (7,339)
Estimated liability for unpaid claims - - - - - (1,043,368)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 10,779,813 $ 16,927,512 $ {140,571) $ (362,286) § 27,204,468 3 2,582,501

The notes to the financial statements are an integral par of this statement.

44



Assets
Cash and investments

Total assets

Liabilities

Due to others

Total liabilities

Net assets

City of Akron, Ohio

Statement of Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

December 31, 2011

Private
Purpose
Trust Agency
Funds Funds
$ 7,187 823,765
7,187 823,765
- 823,765
- 823,765
$ 7,187 -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Additions
Contributions

Deductions

Education and awareness
Change in net assets
Net assets, January 1, 2011

Net assets, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Private Purpose Trust Funds

For theYear Ended December 31, 2011

Private
Purpose
Trust
Funds

$ 14,031
14,031

13,013
13,013

1,018

6,169

$ 7,187

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Akron, Ohio
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31,2011
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Akron (the City) was incorporated in 1836 and is a home rule municipal corporation under
the laws of the State of Ohio. The City operates under a Council-Mayor form of government and
provides the following services as authorized by its Charter: public safety, public service, public
health, recreation and development. The accompanying financial statements comply with the
provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporting Entity, Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are
Component Units, and Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus in that the
financial statements include those activities and functions for which the City is accountable. The City
has no component units as defined by GASB 14 and 39. The City is associated with certain
organizations which are defined as jointly governed organizations and related organizations. These
organizations are presented in Notes 24 and 25 to the basic financial statements. These organizations
are the Akron Metropolitan Area Transportation Study (AMATS), the Akron/Summit Convention and
Visitors’ Bureau and the Summit Medina Business Alliance (SMBA). The accounting policies and
financial reporting practices of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units.

The following is a summary of the more significant policies followed during the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements.

A. Government-wide and fund financial statements

GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis — for State and Local Governments establishes requirements and a reporting model
for the annual financial reports of state and local governments. The Statement was developed
to make annual reports easier to understand and more useful to the people who use
governmental financial information to make decisions. Financial information of the City is
presented in the following format:

Basic Financial Statements:

1. Government-wide financial statements consist of a statement of net assets and a
statement of activities.

These statements report all of the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and gains
and losses of the City. Governmental activities are reported separately from
business-type activities. Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, whereas business-type activities are normally
supported by fees and charges for services and are usually intended by
management to be financially self-sustaining. Fiduciary funds of the City are not
included in these government-wide financial statements.

Interfund receivables and payables, and bonds and notes issued by the City and
held by the City as investments, within governmental and business-type activities
have been eliminated in the government-wide statement of net assets. Related
interest amounts are eliminated in the government-wide statement of activities.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

These eliminations minimize the duplicating effect on assets and liabilities within
the governmental and business-type activities total column.

Internal service net assets, whether positive or negative, have been eliminated
against the expenses and program revenues shown in the governmental activities
statement of activities.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for the different business-type activities of the City and for each
function of the City’s governmental activities.

Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program
revenue includes (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by
the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not
classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general
revenues.

2. Fund financial statements consist of a series of statements focusing on information
about the City’s major governmental and enterprise funds. Separate statements are
presented for the governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds.

The City’s major governmental funds are the General Fund, the Community
Learning Centers (CLC) Fund, and the Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund.
Of the City’s business-type activities, the Water, Sewer, and Off-Street Parking
Funds are considered major funds.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. It is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds.
Its revenues consist primarily of income and property taxes, investment earnings,
shared revenues, charges for services, and licenses, fees, and fines.

General Fund expenditures represent costs of general government, public service
(including sanitation and recycling collection), public safety (including police and
fire), community environment, public health, and recreation and parks. General
Fund resources are also transferred annually to support other services which are
accounted for in other separate funds.

The Community Learning Centers (CLC) Fund is used to account for the daily
activity relating to the CLC project. The primary sources of revenue are City
income tax and bond proceeds.

The Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund is used to account for the
accumulation of income tax revenue and the payments of costs for items
specifically designated as project costs and payment of debt service. The primary
revenue source is income tax revenue and some debt proceeds.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3.

The Water Enterprise Fund accounts for financial activity related to operating the
City’s water supply, treatment and distribution system. In addition to over 84,000
customers in the City, the Water Enterprise Fund also serves five other
municipalities and parts of six adjacent townships. Revenues consist primarily of
charges for services.

The Sewer Enterprise Fund accounts for the financial activity related to operating
the City’s wastewater collection and treatment system that serves the City and
twelve other subdivisions. Revenues consist primarily of charges for services.

The Off-Street Parking Fund accounts for the financial activity related to
operating the City’s parking facilities located throughout the downtown area.
Revenues consist almost exclusively of charges for services.

While not considered major funds, the City maintains Internal Service Funds used
to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or
division to another department or division of the City, generally on a cost-
reimbursement basis. The three largest of these funds account for the motor
equipment, engineering, and management information systems services. In
addition, the City also maintains Internal Service Funds to account for the
financial activity relating to self-insurance. The three largest of these funds
account for workers’ compensation, medical, and judgment and claims self-
insurance activity.

Notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a user’s
understanding of the basic financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information:

Required supplementary information such as Management’s Discussion and Analysis and
budgetary comparison schedules are also required by GASB Statement No. 34,

B. Financial reporting presentation

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set
of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance (equity), revenues,
and expenditures (expenses). The fund types and classifications that the City reports are as

follows:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

1.

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City and is
appropriated. It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to
be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds — Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues
derived from specific taxes, grants, or other restricted revenue sources. The uses and
limitations of each Special Revenue Fund are specified by City ordinances or federal
or state statutes.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3. Debt Service Funds — Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation

of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and
related costs.

4. Capital Projects Funds - The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial
resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital projects (other than
those financed by proprietary funds).

5. Permanent Funds — Permanent Funds are for the purpose of accounting for resources
that are legally restricted to the extent that earnings, and not principal, may be used for
purposes that support the reporting government’s programs. The City, however, does
not utilize Permanent Funds at this time.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

1. Enterprise Funds - The Enterprise Funds are used to account for the operations that
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where
the intent of the governing body is that costs of providing goods or services to the
general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

2. Internal Service Funds - The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the
financing of goods or services provided by one department to other departments or to
other governments on a cost-reimbursement basis.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

1. Private-Purpose Trust Funds — Private-Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for
other trust arrangements which benefit individuals, private organizations, or other
governments. For accounting measurement purposes, the Private-Purpose Trust
Funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus (essentially
the same manner as proprietary funds). The City utilizes three Private-Purpose Trust
Funds. The Claire Merrix Trust was established in memory of a former City of Akron
employee and is to fund tennis-related activities; the Holocaust Memorial Trust pays
for annual holocaust services throughout the City; and the Police/Fire Beneficiary
Trust was recently established to provide scholarships for dependents of those serving
in the Police and Fire departments.

2. Agency Funds — Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, and other governments. For accounting
measurement purposes, the Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal
liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. The City has
three Agency Funds, the first one is the Municipal Court Agency Fund and it is used
to account for assets held by the Municipal Court Clerk for individuals, private
organizations and other governments. The second one is the Police Property
Monetary Evidence Fund and is used to account for funds held by the Police
Department that will be returned to other agencies. The third one is the Unclaimed
Monies Fund and it is used to account for funds held until a claim is made by the
lawful owner.

3. Other Fiduciary Funds — Other Fiduciary Funds include pension trust funds and
investment trust funds. The City does not utilize any such trust funds.
Fiduciary Funds are not included in the government-wide statements.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting

Except for budgetary purposes, the basis of accounting used by the City conforms to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applicable to governmental units. The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to
a fund is determined by its measurement focus.

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting, except
Agency Funds because they are custodial in nature. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash
flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value
without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include income taxes, property
taxes, grants, shared revenue, and donations. On a full accrual basis, revenue from income
taxes is recognized in the period in which the taxpayer’s liability occurs and revenue from
property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. On a full accrual
basis, revenue in the form of shared revenue is recognized when the provider government
recognizes its liability to the City. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. The City generally considers all revenues reported in the
governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-
end. Expenditures are generally recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except
for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated
absences, which are recognized as expenditures only when payment is due. General capital
asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general
long-term debt are reported as other financing sources.

In applying the susceptible-to-accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, the following
revenue sources are deemed both measurable and available (i.e., collectible within the current
year or within sixty days after year-end and available to pay obligations of the current period).
These include income taxes, JEDD revenues, investment earnings, shared revenues, and a
portion of special assessments. Reimbursements due for federally funded projects are accrued
as revenue at the time the expenditures are made or, when received in advance, deferred until
expenditures are made. Property taxes and the balance of special assessments, though
measurable, are not available soon enough in the subsequent year to finance current period
obligations. Therefore, property tax and the balance of special assessment receivables are
recorded and deferred until they become available. Other revenues, including licenses, fees
and fines, and charges for services are recorded as revenue when received in cash because
they are generally not measurable until actually received. The City applies restricted
resources first when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net assets are available.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary

Funds and Other Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the City
follows GASB guidance as applicable to its governmental and business-type activities, and
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles
Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989
that do not conflict with or contradict GASB Pronouncements. The City does not apply FASB
Pronouncements subsequent to November 30, 1989 to its business-type activities and
Enterprise Fund statements. The City applies all applicable and effective pronouncements
issued by the GASB.

Proprietary Fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those
in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues,
such as rental revenue and connection fees, result from ancillary activities. Operating
expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or service that is the primary
activity of the fund.

D. Budgetary Procedures
The City Council follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data.
(1) The Mayor submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year

commencing January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the
means of financing them.

2) Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
3) According to state law, the budget must be enacted through passage of an ordinance
by April 1.

C)) The City Finance Director is authorized by City Council to transfer funds already
appropriated within departments within any fund or category of expenditures;
however, any revisions that alter the total appropriation of said department must be
individually approved by the City Council. During 2011, supplemental appropriations
were passed by City Council. The effects of these supplemental appropriations were
not material in relation to the original appropriations.

(5) Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g.,

purchase orders, contracts) outstanding at year-end are recorded as the equivalent of
expenditures. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(6) The majority of all funds have a legally adopted annual budget. Those funds include:

General Fund

Income Tax Collection

Emergency Medical Service

Special Assessment

Income Tax Capital Improvement
Street and Highway Maintenance
Street Assessment

Community Development

Air Pollution Control

Community Environment Grants
Akron Metro, Area Transportation Study
H.OME. Program

Tax Equivalency

E.D.A. Revolving Loans

Joint Economic Development Districts
Akron Muni Court Information System
Public Health

Police Grants

Various Domestic Violence

Safety Programs

Health Grants

City Facilities Operating

Various Purpose Funding

Deposits

Community Learning Centers
General Bond Payment Fund
Non-appropriated Capital Projects
Road and Bridge Improvements
Streets

Information Technology and Improvements
Transportation

Parks and Recreation

Public Facilities and Improvements
Public Parking

Economic Development

Water

Sewer

Oil and Gas

Golf Course

Airport

Off-Street Parking

Motor Equipment

Medical Self-Insurance
Workers' Compensation Reserve
Self-Insurance Settlement
Storeroom

Telephone System

Engineering Bureau
Management Information Systems
Holocaust Memorial Trust
Police/Fire Beneficiary Trust

N The City appropriates an annual budget for the Police Pension Employer’s Liability
Fund and the Fire Pension Employer’s Liability Fund which are required due to their
funding source. On a GAAP basis, the two funds are combined with the General

Fund.

E. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash balances of the individual funds are combined to form a pool of cash held by the City
Treasurer and invested in authorized investments (see Note 2). Earnings from these
investments are credited to the General Fund in accordance with the City Charter except
where the terms of a grant or regulation specify otherwise. Certain cash balances are held on
behalf of the City by outside agents (see Note 2). Earnings from these investments are
credited to the General Fund and certain other funds pursuant to the City Charter and federal

and state requirements.

Investments are stated at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded as a component of

investment earnings.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, equity in pooled cash and investments, as well

as segregated investments with original maturities of three months or less at the time they are
purchased by the City, are considered to be cash equivalents. Investments with maturities of
more than three months are not considered to be cash equivalents.

Inventories — Inventories are valued at cost (first-in, first-out) and adjusted to annual physical
counts which are then maintained on a perpetual basis until the end of the year.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

G.

Capital Assets — Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure
assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements
to the extent the City’s capitalization threshold is met. The City defines capital assets as assets
with an estimated useful life in excess of three years and an individual cost of more than
$5,000 for land; $10,000 for equipment and vehicles; $25,000 for land improvements,
buildings, and improvements other than buildings; and $100,000 for infrastructure. Assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical cost is not available.
Contributed capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the date
contributed. Infrastructure acquired prior to fiscal years ended after June 30, 1980, is also
reported as a component of the above-mentioned capital assets.

Capital assets in the proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund in which they are utilized.
The valuation bases for proprietary fund capital assets are the same as those used for the
governmental capital assets. Interest accrued during the construction of capital assets utilized
by the proprietary funds is also capitalized.

Costs for maintenance and repairs are expensed when incurred. However, costs for repairs
and upgradings that materially add to the value or life of an asset and meet the above criteria
are capitalized.

The City depreciates capital assets on a straight-line basis, half-year convention, using the
following estimated useful lives:

Asset Years
Buildings, bridges, and storm sewers 50
Improvements, skywalks, and paving 40
Sewer and water mains 40
Sidewalks, curbs, electrical and lighting 30
Traffic control system and bridge repairs 25
Land improvements 20
Equipment 3-20
CLC Building Equity Interest 70

Compensated Absences — Vacation, paid leave, and compensatory time benefits are accrued
as liabilities as the benefits are earned if the employees’ rights to receive compensation are
attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the City will compensate the
employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means. The City records a
liability for accumulated, unused vacation, paid leave, and compensatory time when earned for
all employees.

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the vesting method. An accrual for sick

leave is made to the extent that it is probable that benefits will result in payments. The
liability is an estimate based on the City’s past experience at making payments.

54
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L

Fund Balances — Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the
extent to which the City is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources
in the governmental funds.

The classifications are as follows;

(1) Nonspendable — Amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, or
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in spendable form”
criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash. It also includes the
long-term amount of interfund loans.

(2) Restricted — Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as
grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or
by enabling legislation.

(3) Committed — Amounts constrained to specific purposes by the City, using its highest level
of decision making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any
other purposes unless the same highest level of action is taken to remove or change the
constraint.

(4) Assigned — Amounts the City intends to use for a specified purpose; intent can be
expressed by the governing body or by the Director of Finance which has been designated this
authority.

(5) Unassigned — Amounts that are available for any new purpose: positive amounts are
reported only in the general fund.

Council establishes fund balance commitments by passage of an ordinance or resolution.
Assigned fund balance is established by City administration including the Director of Finance
through the issuance of requisitions, purchase orders, contracts, and directives.

The city applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for
which either restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) amounts are
available. Similarly, within unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first
followed by assigned, and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for
purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be
used.

Governmental funds of the City do not have specified fund balance targets. Recommended
levels of committed and/or assigned fund balance will be determined on a case by case basis,
based on the needs of each fund and as recommended by officials and approved by Council
where necessary.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for
the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the appropriation, is
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental funds.
Significant encumbrances as of December 31, 2011, total $ 1,237,472 in the General fund,
$34,127 in the Community Learning Centers fund, $346,980 in the Income Tax Capital
Improvement fund, and $1,774,157 in all other Governmental funds.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

J.

Interfund Transactions — During the course of normal operations, the City records numerous
transactions between funds including expenditures and transfers of resources to provide
services, subsidize operations, and service debt. The City has the following types of
transactions among funds:

() Reciprocal interfund services provided and used — Purchases and sales of goods and
services between funds for a price approximating their external exchange value.

2) Nonreciprocal interfund transfers — Flows of assets between funds without equivalent
flows of assets in return and without a requirement for repayment. This includes
transfers to subsidize various funds.

3) Nonreciprocal interfund reimbursements — Repayments from the funds responsible for
particular expenditures or expenses to the funds that initially paid for them.

The City’s interfund receivables and payables at December 31, 2011 are presented in Note 5.
Interfund transfers are presented in Note 21.

Post-retirement Benefits ~ In addition to the post-retirement benefits provided by the Ohio
Police and Fire Pension Fund and the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio, the
City provides post-retirement health care and life insurance benefits, in accordance with union
agreements and City Council ordinances, for retired employees (see note 9).

Debt Issuance Costs, Premiums, Discounts, and Losses on Refundings — Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds.
Losses on advance refundings are deferred and amortized over the life of the new debt, or the
life of the advance refunded debt, whichever is shorter.

Employment Related Liabilities — The City records a liability for employment related
liabilities relating to deferred longevity payments and former employees of the Building
Inspection Division and the Health Department (see note 14).

During 2009 and 2010, in accordance with union agreements and City Council ordinances, the
City entered into agreements to defer certain longevity payments. The liability is the actual
amount due to employees and the City recorded $1,089,127 as a current liability for the
amounts scheduled to be paid during 2012.

To improve governmental efficiency and economy, effective February 1, 2009, the City’s
Building Inspection and Plans and Permits Divisions consolidated with Summit County. In
the best interest of the public health, safety and welfare and to improve governmental
efficiency and economy, effective January 1, 2011, the City’s Health Department consolidated
with the Summit County Health District.

The former Building Inspection and Plans and Permits employees while employed by Summit
County must retire under Ohio Public Employees Retirement System to be entitled to receive
payment of the accumulated sick leave at the hourly rate the employee was receiving at the
time of resignation from the City along with the retirement differential. The City has recorded
a long-term liability of $170,948.
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The former Health Department employees while employed by Summit County must retire
under Ohio Public Employees Retirement System to be entitled to receive payment of the
accumulated sick leave at the hourly rate the employee was receiving at the time of resignation
from the City along with the retirement differential. The City has recorded a long-term
liability of $1,741,035. Additionally, the former Health Department employees are entitled to
staggered payouts for their accumulated vacation, paid leave, and compensatory time at the
hourly rate the employee was receiving at the time of resignation from the City. The liability
is the actual amount due to employees and the City recorded $330,891 as a current liability for
the amounts scheduled to be paid during 2012 and the balance of $204,925 is recorded as a
long-term liability.

N. New Accounting Standards ~ In February 2009, the GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This statement establishes fund
balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a
government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in
governmental funds. This statement was developed to enhance the usefulness of fund balance
information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently
applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions. For the City, this
statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2010. The City’s financial
statements have been prepared in conformance with this Standard.

In June 2010, the GASB issued statement No. 59, Financial Instruments Omnibus. This
Statement updates and improves existing standards regarding financial reporting and
disclosure requirements of certain financial instruments and external investment pools for
which significant issues have been identified in practice. For the City, this statement is
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2010. The City’s financial statements have been
prepared in conformance with this Standard.

In November 2010, the GASB issued statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Service Concession Arrangements. This Statement improves financial reporting by
addressing issues related to service concession arrangements (SCAs), which are a type of
public-private or public-public partnership. As used in this Statement, an SCA is an
arrangement between a transferor (a government) and an operator (governmental or
nongovernmental entity) in which (1) the transferor conveys to an operator the right and
related obligation to provide services through the use of infrastructure or another public asset
(a “facility”) in exchange for significant consideration and (2) the operator collects and is
compensated by fees from third parties. For the City, this statement is effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2011. The City’s financial statements have been prepared in
conformance with this Standard.

In November 2010, the GASB issued statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity:
Omnibus. This Statement improves financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting
entity. The Statement modifies certain requirements for inclusion of component units in the
financial reporting entity. The Statement also amends the criteria for reporting component
units as if they were part of the primary government (that is, blending) in certain
circumstances. This Statement also clarifies the reporting equity interests in legally separate
organizations. For the City, this statement is effective for periods beginning after

June 12, 2012. The City’s financial statements have been prepared in conformance with this
Standard.
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In December 2010, the GASB issued statement No. 62 Codification of Accounting and
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements. This Statement incorporates into the GASB’s authoritative literature certain
accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in various pronouncements issued
on or before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements. For the City, this statement is effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2011.

In June 2011, the GASB issued statement No. 63 Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This Statement improves
financial reporting by standardizing the presentation of deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources and their effects on a government’s net position. For the City,
this statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011.

Pooled Cash and Investments

City ordinances require that all cash, with the exception of certain debt service cash and cash held by
fiscal agents, be deposited with the City Treasurer. Each fund’s portion of these funds is displayed on
the statements of net assets or balance sheets as “pooled cash and investments.” Earnings on these
investments are allocated to the various funds based on City and state statutes, grant agreements and
various bond agreement requirements. Investments are also held separately by the Special Revenue,
Debt Service, Enterprise, and Internal Service Funds. City ordinances further authorize and direct the
permitted types of deposits and investments.

Deposits:

City ordinances require that all deposits be secured by collateral securities pledged at market value in
an amount equal to at least 100% of the deposit, less any amount covered by federal deposit insurance.
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the City will not be able to recover
deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. All deposits are
collateralized with eligible securities in amounts equal to at least 105% of the carrying value of the
deposits. Such collateral, as permitted by Ohio Revised Code, is held in collateral pools at Federal
Reserve Banks, or at member banks of the Federal Reserve System, in the name of the depository
bank and pledged as a pool of collateral against all public deposits held by the depository. The City
has no deposit policy for custodial credit risk beyond the requirements of State statute. Although the
securities were held by the pledging institutions’ trust department and all statutory requirements for
the deposit of money have been followed, noncompliance with federal requirements could potentially
subject the City to a successfully claim by the FDIC.

At December 31, 2011, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $11,113,114 and the bank
balance was $13,917,870. The difference in the carrying amount and bank balance was composed of
outstanding checks and other normal reconciling items. Of the bank balance, $2,219,928 was covered
by federal depository insurance, and $11,697,942 was uninsured but collateralized with unregistered
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department in the City’s name.
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Total cash and investments are reported as follows:

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds:
Pooled cash and investments $ 38,500,488
Restricted cash and investments 81,024,888

Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds:
Enterprise Funds

Pooled cash and investments 9,557,523
Restricted cash and investments 9,650,185
Internal Service Funds
Pooled cash and investments 9,146,606
Statement of Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds: 830,952
Total $ 148,710,642

Investments in City of Akron bonds and notes amounting to $3,805,249 are eliminated in the
government-wide statement of net assets at December 31, 2011.

Investments:

The City records all of its investments at fair value under the guidance set forth by Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools.

Under the fair value method of recording investments, the City is required to report realized and
unrealized gains and losses arising from market fluctuations as well as the sale and maturity of various
investments above or below their beginning-of-the-year fair value or their purchase price, when
purchased during the current fiscal year. Realized gains and losses, on investments that had been held
in more than one fiscal year and sold in the current year, may have been recognized as an increase or
decrease in the fair value of the investments reported in the prior year. The net effect of these realized
and unrealized gains and losses ($581,024 net unrealized loss in 2011) is reflected in the investment
income on the operating statement of the appropriate fund.

The repurchase agreement investment maturity is less than one year.

Interest Rate Risk. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rate
risk.

Credit Risk. City ordinances authorize the treasurer to invest in obligations of the United States
Treasury, agencies and instrumentalities and direct obligations of the State of Ohio, including any
subdivisions of the state. As of December 31, 2011, the investments held by the bond trustees and
STAROhio were rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s. All municipal bonds and notes are rated A2 or
better by Moody’s or A or better by Standard & Poor’s.

The City invests funds in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAROhio). STARONio is an
investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s office which allows governments within the state to
pool their funds for investment purposes. STAROhio is not registered with the SEC as an investment
company but does operate in a manner consistent with rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of
1940. Investments in STAROhio are valued at STAROhio’s share price, which is the price the
investment could be sold for on December 31, 2011.
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Bond trustees holding the investments are not registered with the SEC as an investment company but
do operate in a manner consistent with rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Bond
trustees and Community Learning Center trustees holding the investments are not registered with the

SEC as an investment company but do operate in a manner consistent with rule 2a7 of the Investment
Company Act of 1940.

Investments held by bond trustees, Community Learning Centers and STAROhio are not exposed to
custodial credit risk because their existence is not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book
entry form.

At December 31, 2011, $90,675,073 of cash and investments was restricted for the following
purposes: $94,700 was restricted for lease costs for Canal Park Stadium; $4,119,376 was restricted for
Off-Street Parking Deck COPs; $5,380,135 was restricted for Akron District Energy COPs;
$17,549,343 was restricted solely for retirement of City obligations; and the balance of $63,531,521
was held by the trustee for payment of debt service on the Community Learning Centers” Income Tax
Revenue Bonds.

As of December 31, 2011 the City had the following investments.

Investment Maturities (In Years)

Less
Investment Types Fair Value Then 1 1-5 6-1

Repurchase agreement $ 40,885,000 $ 40,885,000 $ - $ -
U.S. Treasuries or Agencies 95,994 95,994 - -
STAROhio 10,001,643 10,001,643
Municipal Bonds 600,000 35,000 565,000 -
City of Akron Assessment Debt 3,805,249 1,436,643 2,330,609 37,997
Investments held by bond trustees:

U.S. Treasuries or Agencies 8,670,983 8,670,983 - -

Municipal Bonds and Notes 94,700 94,700 - -

Cash Reserve 9,829,447 9,829,447 - -
Investments held by Community

Learning Center trustees:

Municipal Bonds and Notes 33,902,686 32,874,136 1,028,550 -

Money Market 29,628,837 29,628,837 - -
Total $ 137,514,539 $ 133,552,383 3,924,159 37,997
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3. Receivables

Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectible reported in the Statement of Net Assets, consist of the

following at December 31, 2011:

Special for
Assessments, Accrued Gross Uncol-
Taxes and Others Interest Receivables lec tibles Net
Governmental Activities
Assets,

Governmental Funds

General Fund $ 34992862 $ 11,504,968 $ - $ 46,497,830 $  (1,636994) § 44 860,836

Community Leaming Centers 2,376 504 66,000,000 327858 68,704,362 - 68,704,362

Income Tax Capital Improvement 4,504 263 - - 4,504,263 - 4504,263

Other Government | Funds 10,391 533 60,940,866 - 71,332,399 (4,162,729) 67,169,670

Total Govemmental Funds 52,265,162 138,445,834 327858 191,038,854 (5,799,723) 185239,131

Inemal Service Funds - 163,030 - 163,030 - 163,030

Total Assets: 52,265,162 138,608,864 327858 191,201,884 (5,799,7123) 185402,161
Business-ty pe Activities:

Enterprise Funds:

Waer - 12,144,675 - 12,144,675 (7,505,791) 4638,884

Sewer - 18,695,258 - 18,695,258 (9,908,557) 8,786,701

Qil& Gas - 20,735 - 20,735 - 20,735

Golf Course - 168 - 168 - 168

Airport - 19,062 - 19,062 - 19,062

Off-Stre et Parking - 38,989 - 38,989 - 38,989

Other Enterprise Funds - - - - - -

Total Enterprise Funds - 30,918,887 - 30,918,887 (17,414,348) 13,504,539

Total Receivables $  52265]62 $ 169,527,751 $ 327858 $ 222,120,771 $  (23,214071) § 198 906,700

Included in the amounts above are water and sewer unbilled charges for services of approximately $3,510,000

and $831,000, respectively.
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Receivables (Continued)

Delinquent special assessment receivables amounted to $4,162,729 at December 31, 2011 and were
fully reserved for in the allowance for uncollectibles in the Special Assessment Bond Payment fund.

Deferred revenue is reported in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be
available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various
components of deferred revenue reported in the Governmental Funds were as follows:

General Fund:
Property Tax Receivable $  22,848465
Intergovernmental Receivable 4,635,909
Income Tax Receivable 4,739,277
32,223,651
Community Leaming Centers Fund:
Income Tax Receivable 927,416
Community Learning Centers Receivable 66,000,000
66,927,416
Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund:
Income Tax Receivable 1,752,883
1,752,883
Other Governmental Funds:
Property Tax Receivable 10,391,533
Special Assessment Receivable 21,789,458
Grant Receivable 2,835,984
JEDD Receivable 846,481

35,863,456

$ 136,767,406

62



4. Due From/To Other Governments

Amounts due from other governments at December 31, 2011 consist of the following:

Federal State Total
Governmental Funds:
General Fund $ 12,761 $ - $ 12,761
Income Tax Capital Improvement 5,050 - 5,050
Other Governmental Funds 1,593,060 2,204,425 3,797,485
Total Governmental Funds $ 1,610,871 $ 2,204,425 $ 3,815,296
Enterprise Funds:
Water $ - $ 43,887 $ 43,887
Other Enterprise Funds - 10,004 10,004
Total Enterprise Funds $ - $ 53,891 $ 53,891
Amounts due to other governments at December 31, 2011 consist of the following:
Federal State County Local To tal
Governmental Funds:
General Fund $ - $ 45,179 $ 1,382,885 $ $ 1,428,064
Income Tax Capital Improvement - 2,351 - - 2,351
Other Governmental Funds 1,475,000 739,780 18,750 462,771 2,696,301
Total Governmental Funds $ 1,475,000 $ 787,310 $ 1,401,635 $ 462,771 $ 4,126,716
Enterprise Funds:
Water $ - $ - $ 70,236 $ - $ 70,236
Sewer - - 24,491 - 24,491
Total Enterprise Funds $ - $ - $ 94,727 $ - $ 94,727

The federal amount is comprised of a section 108 loan from the U.S. Department

Urban Development (HUD).

The state amount is comprised of an Ohio Department of Development loan.

of Housing and

The county amount recorded in Governmental Funds relates to City reimbursements to Summit
County for the debt service on debt issued by Summit County related directly to the cost of

construction of additional jail space to house City inmates.

The county amount recorded in Business-type Activities relates to a master meter sewer agreement in

the Mud Brook service area.
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Due From/To Other Funds

Interfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 2011 consist of the following individual
fund receivables and payables:

Receivable Payable
Governmental Funds:

General Fund $ 4,661,071 $ 1,248,875
Community Learning Centers 2,046,024 49
Income Tax Capital Improvement 4,500,000 144,154
Other Governmental Funds 3,795,687 10,975,546
$ 15,002,782 $ 12,368,624

Proprietary Funds:

Enterprise Funds:
W ater $ 2,388,527 $ 967,491
Sewer 20,152 3,766,897
Off-Street Parking - 56,667
Other Enterprise Funds - 136,387
$ 2,408,679 $ 4,927,442
Internal Service Funds $ 2,092,401 $ 2,207,796
Total $ 19,503,862 $ 19,503,862

Deposits

On December 15, 2003, the City of Akron entered into a cooperative agreement for Community
Learning Centers (CLC) with the Board of Education of the Akron City School District (District). The
cooperative agreement is the foundation for all the activity associated with the City’s .25% income tax
and the ownership relating to the CLCs. As of December 31, 2011, the District had $22,924,591 of
unspent City funds that are recorded as Deposits on the City’s Statement of Net Assets and are
recorded on the District’s financial statements as “due to City of Akron”.
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7.

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2011 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated;

Land

Construction in progress
CLC Land

CLC Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings

CLC Building Equity Interest
Improvements other than buildings
CLC Improvements other than buildings
Equipment & Intangibles

Infrastructure

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

CLC Building Equity Interest
Improvements other than buildings
CLC Improvements other than buildings
Equipment & Intangibles

Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2011 Additions Deletions 2011

155,737,633 $ 27,860 $ - $ 155,765,493
61,075,394 22,306,274 20,673,721 62,707,947
896,359 164,314 - 1,060,673
35,007,759 22,690,098 29,365,802 28,332,055
252,717,145 45,188,546 50,039,523 247,866,168
204,536,449 1,488,612 - 206,025,061
126,313,401 29,201,488 - 155,514,889
137,000,049 7,412,922 - 144,412 971
53,610 - - 53,610
105,728,640 1,103,684 1,473,149 105,359,175
597,100,637 17,117,059 - 614,217,696
1,170,732,786 56,323,765 1,473,149 1,225,583,402
75,115,536 4247972 - 79,363,508
4,395,373 2,307,899 - 6,703,272
41,733,853 4,771,012 - 46,504,865
1,340 2,681 - 4,021
84,387,363 4,947,004 1,461,670 87,872,697
264,021,630 15,486,552 - 279,508,182
469,655,095 31,763,120 1,461,670 499,956,545
701,077,691 24,560,645 11,479 725,626,857
953,794,836 $69,749,191 $50,051,002 § 973,493,025
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7.

Capital Assets (Continued)

Business-ty pe Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Equipment and intangibles
Infrastructure

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Equipment and intangibles
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2011 Additions Deletions 2011
$ 26,607,107 $ 80,500 $ - $ 26,687,607
17,108,626 13,061,544 12,908,609 17,261,561
43,715,733 13,142,044 12,908,609 43,949,168
186,773,027 4,022,339 - 190,795,366
448,458,433 - - 448,458,433
37,091,720 806,788 181,794 37,716,714
145,565,044 12,156,704 - 157,721,748
817,888,224 16,985,831 181,794 834,692,261
76,138,546 3,001,245 - 79,139,791
255,380,082 7,617,101 - 262,997,183
29,891,336 1,881,734 173,339 31,599,731
23,677,910 3,745,055 - 27,422,965
385,087,874 16,245,135 173,339 401,159,670
432,800,350 740,696 8,455 433,532,591
$

$ 476,516,083
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7. Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged during 2011 to functions of the government as follows:

Govermmental Activities:

General government $ 2,036,975
Public service 7,594,765
Public safety 2,131,166
Community en vironment 3,849,937
Public health 293,561
Unallocated depreciation 15,358,939
Capital assets held by the govemment's internal service funds are

charged to the various functions based on their usage of the assets 497,777
Total depreciation expense charged to governmental activities $ 31,763,120

Business-type Activities:

Water $ 5,193,331
Sewer 8,385,575
OffStreet Parking 2,370,924
Other Business-type activities 295,305

Total d epreciation, depletion and amortization expense

charged to businesstype activities $ 16,245,135
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Capital Assets (Continued)

Construction in progress and remaining capital commitments (including capitalized interest of
$595,838, of which $320,719 was capitalized in 2011) are comprised of the following:

Expended to
Project December3l,
Authorization 2011 Committed
Governmental Activities:
Govermnmental $ 62,609291 $ 62,096,166 $ 513,125
Business-type Activities:
Water 11,975,572 9,651,147 2,324,425
Sewer 9,498,005 6,442,764 3,055,241
Off-Street Parking 1,189,681 1,167,650 22,031

$ 85,272,549 §  79357,727 $ 5,914,822

Accrued Vacation and Leave

GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, requires a liability to be established
for all compensated absences as earned by the employees. At the time of the employee’s separation,
such compensated absences are paid to the employee from the fund to which the employee’s payroll is
charged.

Vacation, paid leave, sick leave and compensatory time accumulated by employees whose wages are
charged to governmental fund types have been recorded as liabilities in the governmental funds only if
they have matured. The balance has been recorded on the statement of net assets. Vacation, paid
leave, sick leave and compensatory time accumulated by employees whose wages are charged to
proprietary fund types are expensed when earned and recorded as liabilities in the government-wide
statement of net assets and in the proprietary fund statement of net assets,

Sick leave is earned by substantially all employees. Unused sick leave is accumulated up to 960 hours
per employee and vests upon reaching certain age and service requirements. The vested portion of
accumulated sick leave and amounts earned through December 31, 2011 and expected to vest in the
future has been accrued in the government-wide statement of net assets for all City employees.
Amounts related to the City’s proprietary fund operations are also accrued for in the proprietary fund
statement of net assets due to the nature of these funds.

The following governmental funds have typically been used in prior years to reduce or liquidate the
liability for compensated absences:

General Fund Street and Highway Maintenance
Income Tax Collection Community Development
Emergency Medical Service Police Grants

Special Assessment Fund Safety Programs

Income Tax Capital Improvement
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8. Accrued Vacation and Leave (Continued)

As of December 31, 2011, the accrued vacation, paid leave, sick leave, and compensatory time is
recorded as a current liability (due within one year) in the Statement of Net Assets as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Governmental Funds:
General Fund
Other Governmental Activities

Total Governmental Funds
Internal Service Funds
Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
Enteprise Funds:
Water
Sewer
Off Street Parking
Other Enterprise Funds

Totai Enterprise Funds/
Business-type Activities

Balance Balance

January 1, December 31,
2011 Additions Deletions 2011

$ 7,206,230 $ 7,226,722 $ (7,206,230) § 7,226,722
2,591,005 2,543,633 (2,591,005) 2,543,633
9,797,235 9,770,355 (9,797,235) 9,770,355
494,443 674,698 (494,443) 674,698
10,291,678 10,445,053 (10,291,678) 10,445,053
711,031 761,304 (711,031) 761,304
403,210 518,450 (403,210) 518,450
3,747 - (3,747) .
26,261 40,446 (26,261) 40,446
1,144,249 1,320,200 (1,144,249) 1,320,200
$ 11,435,927 $ 11,765,253 $ (11,435927) § 11,765,253

The following amounts are also included as long-term obligations in the government-wide statement of net assets (Note 14):

Governmental Activities:
Other Governmental Activities

Internal Service Funds
Total Governmental Activities
Business-type Activities:

Water

Sewer

Off Street Parking

Other Business-type Activities

Total Business-type Activities

$ 40,661,599 $ 13,373,925 $ (18,451,209) § 35,584,315
2,379,754 906,731 (1,094,325) 2,192,160
43,041,353 14,280,656 (19,545,534) 37,776,475
2,892,344 1,192,787 (1,542,398) 2,542,733
1,841,526 1,107,476 (1,046,352) 1,902,650
59,146 8,467 (67,613) -
158,568 68,819 (31,718) 195,669
4,951,584 2,377,549 (2,688,081) 4,641,052

$ 47,992,937 $ 16,658,205 $ (22,233,615) $§ 42,417,527
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Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

Police officers and firefighters participate in the statewide Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund (Police
and Fire), a cost-sharing, multi-employer defined-benefit public employee retirement system. Police
and Fire offers three types of service retirement: normal, service commuted, and age/service
commuted. In a normal retirement, a member is eligible at age 48 with 25 years of service with a
monthly pension equal to 60% of the average of the three highest years of allowable earnings. The
maximum pension of 72% of the average allowable earnings for the three highest years is paid after 33
years of service. Under the service commuted retirement, a member is eligible if they have at least 15
years of service, they have reached the age of 48 and 25 years has elapsed from the date of their full-
time hire. Under the age/service commuted retirement, a member is eligible if they have 15 years of
service and they have reached the age of 62. In the event of death, eligible survivors may qualify for a
monthly benefit and a one-time $1,000 lump sum benefit payment. Benefits are established by the
Ohio Revised Code.

The City also participates in a cost-sharing multi-employer post-retirement health benefits plan,
administered by Police and Fire, for these city employees. Substantially all other City employees
participate in the statewide Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS). OPERS administers
three separate pension plans. The traditional plan is a cost-sharing, multi-employer defined-benefit
pension plan. The member-directed plan is a defined- contribution plan in which the member invests
both member and employer contributions (employer contributions vest over five years at 20% per
year). Under the member-directed plan, members accumulate retirement assets equal to the value of
the member and vested employer contributions plus any investment earnings. The combined plan is a
cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined-benefit pension plan that has elements of both a defined-
benefit and a defined-contribution plan. Under the combined plan, employer contributions are
invested by the retirement system to provide a formula retirement benefit similar to the traditional plan
benefit. Member contributions, whose investment is self-directed by the member, accumulate
retirement assets in a manner similar to the member-directed plan. The City also participates in a cost-
sharing multi-employer post-retirement health benefits plan, administered by OPERS, for these city
employees.

In addition to participating in the plans described above, the City provides it’s own post-retirement
health and life insurance benefits plan which is administered as a single-employer benefit plan.

OPERS

OPERS provides retirement and death benefits, disability benefits, and annual cost-of-living
adjustments to plan members and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided
by state statute per Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code. OPERS issues a stand-alone financial
report. Interested parties may obtain a copy by making a written request to: 277 East Town Street,
Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 or by calling (614) 222-5601 or 1-800-222-PERS (7377).

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer contributions. The
employees of local governments are required to contribute 10.0% of their covered payroll to OPERS.
The 2011 and 2010 employer contribution rate for local government employer units was 14.00%, of
covered payroll including 4% during calendar year 2011 and 5.5 % from January 1 through February
28,2010 and 5.0 % from March 1 through December 31, 2010, which is used to fund post-retirement
health care benefits. The City’s total contributions to OPERS for pension benefits (excluding the
amount relating to post-retirement health care benefits) for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010,
and 2009 were $5,397,251, $5,178,025, and $5,313,261 respectively, which were equal to 100% of the
required employer contributions for each year.

OPERS members are eligible to retire at any age with 30 years of service, at age 60 with at least 5
years of service or at age 55 with at least 25 years of service. Those retiring with less than 30 years of
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Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans (Continued)

service or less than age 65 receive reduced benefits. Under the Traditional Pension Plan, eligible
employees are entitled to a monthly retirement benefit equal to 2.2% of the average of their three
highest years of earnings multiplied by the first 30 years of service plus 2.5% of the average of their
three highest years for each year in excess of 30. Under the Member-Directed Plan, eligible members
are entitled to a monthly benefit dependent upon the performance of the OPERS investment options
that the members selected. Under the Combined Plan, eligible members are entitled to a monthly
benefit equal to 1.0% of the average of their three highest years of earnings multiplied by the number
of years of service plus 1.25% of the average of their three highest years for each year in excess of 30.
Additionally, under the Combined Plan, a benefit is provided based on the performance of the OPERS
investment options the member selected. OPERS also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits
are established by the Ohio Revised Code.

In addition to the pension benefits, OPERS provides post-retirement health care coverage to age and
service retirees with 10 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit with either the traditional or
combined plans. Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is also
available. Members of the member-directed plan do not qualify for postretirement health care
coverage. The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered to be an “other
post-employment benefit” (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 45. A portion of each
employer’s contribution to the traditional or combined plans is set aside for the funding of post-
retirement health care based on authority granted by state statute. As noted above, the Ohio Revised
Code provides statutory authority for employer contributions. During 2011, 2010 and 2009,
$2,158,901, $2,958,178 and $3,871,281, respectively, of the City’s total contribution to OPERS were
used for post-retirement benefits which were equal to 100% of the required employer contributions for
each year.

In December, 2001, the Board adopted the Health Care “Choices” Plan. The Choices Plan will be
offered to all persons newly hired in an OPERS-covered position after January 1, 2003, with no prior
service credit accumulated toward health care coverage. Choices will incorporate a cafeteria
approach, offering a broader range of health care options. The Plan uses a graded scale from ten to
thirty years to calculate a monthly health care benefit. This is in contrast to the ten-year “cliff”
eligibility standard for the present Plan.

The benefit recipients will be free to select the option that best meets their needs. Recipients will fund
health care costs in excess of their monthly health care benefits. The Plan will also offer a spending
account feature, enabling the benefit recipients to apply their allowances towards specific medical
expenses, much like a Medical Spending Account.

Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund

The Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund provides retirement and death benefits, disability benefits, and
annual cost-of-living adjustments to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are
established by the Ohio State Legislature and are codified in Chapter 742 of the Ohic Revised Code.
The Police and Fire Pension Fund issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
information and required supplementary information for the plan. Interested parties may obtain a copy
by making a written request to: Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund, 140 East Town Street, Columbus,
Ohio 43215-5164.

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer contributions. Plan
members are required to contribute 10% of their annual covered salary, while employers are required
to contribute 19.5% and 24% respectively for police officers and firefighters. Required employer
contributions to the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund are equal to the amounts actually paid by the
City each year. The City’s total contributed amounts for Police (excluding the amount relating to
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Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans (Continued)

post-retirement health care benefits) for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 were
$3,380,960, $3,518,258, and $3,675,298, respectively, which were equal to 100% of the required
employer contributions for each year. The City’s total contributed amounts for Fire (excluding the
amount relating to post-retirement health care benefits) for the years ended December 31,2011, 2010,
and 2009 were $3,667,167, $3,707,534, and $4,247,254, respectively, which were equal to 100% of
the required employer contributions for each year.

In addition to pension benefits, the Police and Fire plan provides post-retirement health care coverage
for eligible persons who receive a monthly service, disability, or survivor benefit check. If eligible,
the plan subsidizes a spouse, survivor (which includes a dependent parent receiving a statutory
survivor benefit), child up to 28, or incapacitated child for medical and prescription drugs. The health
care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered to be an “other post-employment
benefit” (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 45. Police and Fire provides access to post-
retirement health care coverage for any person who receives or is eligible to receive a monthly service,
disability, survivor benefit check or is a spouse or eligible dependent child of such person. The health
care coverage provided by OP&F meets the definition of an Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB)
as described in GASB Statement 45. The Ohio Revised Code allows, but does not mandate OP&F to
provide OPEB benefits. The authority for the OP&F Board of Trustees to provide health care
coverage to eligible participants and to establish and amend benefits is codified in Chapter 742 of the
Ohio Revised Code. The Ohio Revised Code provides for contribution requirements of the
participating employers and of plan members to the Police and Fire (defined benefit pension plan).
Participating employers are required to contribute to the pension plan at rates expressed as percentages
of the payroll of active pension plan members; currently, 19.50% and 24.00% of covered payroli for
police and fire employers, respectively. The Ohio Revised Code states that the employer contribution
may not exceed 19.50% of covered payroll for police employer units and 24.00% of covered payroll
for fire employer units. Active members do not make contributions to the OPEB Plan.

Police and Fire maintains funds for health care in two separate accounts. One for health care benefits
under an IRS Code Section 115 trust and on for Medicare Part B reimbursements administrated as an
Internal Revenue Code 401(h) account, both of which are within the defined benefit pension plan,
under the authority granted by the Ohio Revised Code to the Police and Fire Board of Trustees. The
Board of Trustees is authorized to allocate a portion of the total employer contributions made into the
pension plan to the Section 115 trust and the Section 401(h) account as the employer contribution for
retiree health care benefits. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the employer contribution
allocated to the health care plan was 6.75% of covered payroll. The amount of employer contributions
allocated to the health care plan each year is subject to the Trustees’ primary responsibility to ensure
that pension benefits are adequately funded and is limited by the provisions of Sections 115 and
401(h). The Police and Fire Board of Trustees also is authorized to establish requirements for
contributions to the health care plan by retirees and their eligible dependents, or their surviving
beneficiaries. Payment amounts vary depending on the number of covered dependents and the
coverage selected. The City’s contributions for Police, which can be determined by multiplying actual
employer contributions by .346, for 2011, 2010, and 2009 used to pay post-retirement health care were
$1,789,920, $1,862,607 and $1,945,746, respectively, which were equal to 100% of the required
employer contributions for each year. The City’s contributions for Fire, which can be determined by
multiplying actual employer contributions by .281, for 2011, 2010, and 2009 used to pay post-
retirement health care were $1,434,978, $1,450,774 and $1,661,969, respectively, which were equal to
100% of the required employer contributions for each year.

Other Post-retirement Benefits (OPEB)
In addition to the post-retirement benefits provided by the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund and the
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio, the City provides post-retirement health care and

life insurance benefits, in accordance with union agreements and City Council ordinances, for retired
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Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans (Continued)

employees. The post-retirement healthcare coverage is a single self-insured plan, administered through
Medical Mutual, which provides medical, prescription drugs, dental, and vision benefits. The major
medical portion of the coverage, which includes prescription drugs, ends at age 65. All other benefits
continue for the lifetime of the participant. The life insurance amounts are dependent on age at
retirement and the retiree’s collective bargaining unit. All life insurance amounts are reduced by 50%
after the first year of retirement. Dependents are not eligible for life insurance during retirement. The
life insurance is fully insured. Substantially all of the City’s employees may become eligible for those
benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the City. Currently, 2,110 retirees meet
those eligibility requirements. The City pays 100% of the cost of health care and life insurance
benefits. These benefits are financed on a pay-as-you go basis; as such, the cost of retiree health care
and life insurance benefits is recognized as expenditure/expense as claims are incurred. For the years
ended 2011, 2010 and 2009 those costs were $4,182,621, $4,784,987 and $4,028,023 respectively.
Eligibility for OPEB benefits is receiving a pension benefit from OPERS, Police and Fire, or disability
retirement. Former employees who are term-vested for pension benefits are not eligible.

The City provides lifetime supplemental health coverage to OPERS and Police and Fire retirees and
their qualified dependents. The coverage is a single self-insured plan, administered through Medical
Mutual, which provides medical, prescription drugs, dental, and vision benefits. The major medical
portion of the coverage, which includes prescription drugs, ends at age 65. All other benefits continue
for the lifetime of the participant. The health benefits are self-insured.

The City also provides life insurance for the participant during retirement. The life insurance amounts
are dependent on age at retirement and the retiree’s collective bargaining unit. All life insurance
amounts are reduced by 50% after the first year of retirement. Dependents are not eligible for life
insurance during retirement. The life insurance is fully insured.

Pursuant to GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits, the City has recorded liabilities of
$22,846,994, and $2,581,104 in the government-wide statement of net assets, as liabilities due in more
than one year for Governmental Activities and Business-type Activities, respectively.

The following exhibits provide summaries of the annual required contributions, funded status,
expense, and net OPEB obligation (year-end accrued liability).

Annual
Required Actual Percentage
Year Ended Contributions Contributions Contributed
12/31/2009 8,285,000 3,954,000 47.7
12/31/2010 9,679,000 3,930,000 40.6
12/31/2011 11,686,000 4,335,000 37.1
Percentage
Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Year Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
12/31/2009 8,363,000 473 12,315,000
12/31/2010 9,825,000 40.0 18,210,000
12/31/2011 11,553,000 375 25,428,000
Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Percentage
Accrued Accrued Covered of Covered
Year Ended Liability Liability Payroll Payroll
12/31/2009 128,649,000 128,649,000 103,480,000 124.3
12/31/2010 149,961,000 149,961,000 114,340,000 131.2
12/31/2011 179,994,000 179,994,000 88,115,000 204.3
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Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans (Continued)

OPEB are advanced-funded using the entry-age normal actuarial cost method with a level percentage
of pay. The difference between assumed and actual experience (actuarial gains and losses) becomes
part of unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The UAAL is then amortized as a level percentage of pay
over 30 years of open group payroll. For actuarial valuation purposes, a discount rate of 3.5% is
assumed, along with a projected payroll growth rate of 2%. Other significant actuarial assumptions
include a health care cost rate for medical and prescription drugs of 9.0% in 2011, with the rate
decreasing by one-half percentage per year an ultimate of 5.0% in 2019 and after. In subsequent years
after 2019 health care cost rates are assumed to remain at 5.0%. Health care costs for dental and vision
were assumed to be 6.0% in 2011, decreasing every 2 years by one-half percentage point for an
ultimate of 5.0% in 2015. In subsequent years after 2015 health care cost rates for dental and vision
are assumed to remain at 5.0%.

The following chart shows the determination of the 2011 annual required contribution (ARC) and

accrual.

Cost Element Amount

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability at 12/31/11 $ 179,994,000

Annual Required Contribution (ARC)
Normal cost (including interest to the end of year) 4,279,000

Amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability

over 30 years using level % of payroll 7,407,000
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 11,686,000

Annual OPEB Cost (Expense)

ARC 11,686,000
Interest on beginning of year CAFR accrual 637,000
Amortization of beginning of year CAFR accrual (770,000)
Fiscal year 2011 OPEB cost 11,553,000

End of Year CAFR Accrual (Net OPEB Obligation)

Beginning of year CAFR accrual 18,210,000
Annual OPEB cost 11,553,000
Employer contribution {benefit payments and expense) (4,335,000)
End of year CAFR accrual $ 25,428,000
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10.

Notes Payable

The following is a summary of note transactions for the year ended December 31, 2011 reflected in
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements:

Governmental Governmental Governmental Governmental

Activities Activities Activities Activities
Special Capital General
Assessment Projects Health Total
Notes Payable at January 1, 2011 $ 13,618,200 $ 19,865,000 $ 14,000,000 $ 47,483,200
New notes issued 9,640,000 39,650,000 13,000,000 62,290,000
Notes retired (12,639,500) (19,865,000) (14,000,000) (46,504,500)
Notes Payable at December 31, 2011 $ 10,618,700 $ 39,650,000 $ 13,000,000 $ 63,268,700

The following is a summary of the City’s future debt service requirements for notes payable as of
December 31, 2011 (in thousands):

Governmental Activities

Fiscal Year Ending Special Assessment N otes General Obligation Notes
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
2012 $ 10,103 $ 163 $ 52,650 $ 703 $ 63,619
2013 516 6 - - 522
$ 10,619 $ 169 $ 52,650 $ 703 $ 64,141

The following notes are backed by the full faith and credit of the City and generally mature within one
to five years. The notes generally are issued in anticipation of long-term bond financing and are
refinanced, if necessary, until such bonds are issued.

Bonds and notes issued by the City of Akron and held by the City as investments at December 31,

2011 amounting to $3,805,249 (see Note 2) are eliminated in the government-wide statement of net
assets.
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Notes Payable (Continued)

Special assessment notes are issued to finance the property owners’ share of improvements. Upon
completion of a project, owners may pay the assessments in full. Bonds are issued in the amount of
any unpaid assessments and are repaid largely from levies on the property owners for principal and
interest collected by the County Fiscal Officer on behalf of the City.

The weighted average interest rates on special assessment notes and general obligation notes at
December 31, 2011 were 1.59% and 1.34% respectively.

Notes payables as of December 31, 2011, are comprised of the following individual issues:

Issued Rate % Issue Final Maturity Amount
Special Assessment Notes:

Governmental Activities:

Paving Notes:

April 18,2007 4.00 1-07 April 18,2012 $ 21,000
September 26, 2007 4.00 5-07 September 26, 2012 441,700
March 14, 2008 4.00 3-08 March 14, 2013 399,700
May 28, 2008 4.00 8-08 May 28, 2013 47,500
Resurfacing Notes:

Sidewalk Notes:

December 24, 2008 4,00 9-08 December 24, 2013 33,600
Street Cleaning Notes:

November 22, 2011 1.35 11-11 November 20, 2012 9,640,000
Utilities Notes:

May 7, 2008 4.00 6-08 May 7, 2013 35,200
Tota Special Assessment Notes $ 10,618,700

General Obligation Notes:

Various Purpose Improvement Notes:

November 17, 2011 1.13 November 15, 2012 39,650,000

Hedth Benefit Notes:

March 16, 2011 2.00 March 15,2012 13,000,000
$ 63,268,700
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11. Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions for the year ended December 31, 2011:

Governmental A ctivi ties

Ohio
Department of Income
General OPWC Development Non-Tax Tax
Obligation Loans Loans Rewvenue Revenue

Long-termdebt payable

at January 1, 2011 § 248558640 $ 10,750,755  § 845086 $ 55,795000 $§ 240,105,000
New Issues:

Capital Projects - 688,000 5,000,000 - 6,405,000
Sewer System - - - - -
Water System - - - - -
Various Pupose Improvements 43,962,237 - - - -
Economic Development 14,035,000
R etivements (52037.697) (732.301) _$_ (155.615) (18.995.000) (12.415.000)
Long-termdelt payable
at December 31, 2011 $ 240483180 § 10,706,454  $ 5689471  § 50,835000 § 234,095,000

Gavernmental A ctivities
Special Special SIB
Revenue Assessment Loans
Long-termdett payable

at January 1, 2011 $ 35115000 $ 8,382,007 § 5782,8%
New Issues:

Capital Projects - 5,110,56 -
Sewer System 11,950,000 - -
Water System 15,215,000 - -
Variows Pupose Improvements - - -
Economic Dewelopmernt
R etirements (35,115.000) (2.252.161) (1.306.948)
Long-termdett payatle
at December 31, 2011 $ 2716500 3 11240502 _§ 4475878

Busin ess-type Activities

General Mortgage

Obligation Revenue Revenue OWDA OPWC Total
Long-termdett payable
at January 1, 2011 $ 632925 § 4392500 $ 27,260,000 $ 34,216816 $ 2,147303 § 713516,448
New Issues:
Capital Projects - - - - - 17203,566
Sewer System - - - 5,895,546 - 17.845,546
Water System - - - - - 15215,000
Various Purpose Improvements 132,197 - - - - 44094,434
Economic Dewelopment 14035,000
R etirements (127.295) (3.560.000) (3.790.000) (6,902.796) (201.514) (137591.327)
Long-termdebt payable
at December 31, 2011 $ 637877 8§ 40,365.000  _$ 2347000 8§ 33,209566 _$ 1.945789 _$  684318,667

The City has entered into contractual agreements for construction loans from the Ohio Water Development
Authority (OWDA). Under the terms of these agreements, OWDA will reimburse, advance or directly pay the
construction costs of the approved projects. The OWDA will capitalize administrative costs and construction
interest and then add them to the total amount of the final loan.

The Sewer Fund has two of these construction loans with amounts outstanding as of December 31, 2011 of

$202,842 and $4,750,980 for various sewer projects. Since the loan repayment schedule has not yet been
finalized, a repayment schedule is not included in the schedule of debt service requirements.
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11. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Long-term debt at December 31, 2011 is comprised of the following individual issues:

Issued Rate % Issue

Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds:

Urban Renewal Public

Improvement Bonds:
February 21, 1991 8 Series 1990
December 10, 1991 8 Series 1991

Various Purpose Improvement Bonds:

October 1, 2003 20t0 525 -
September 1,2005 3.51035.0 Series 2005
December 21,2006 37510 5.0 -
December 3, 2007 375t 5.0 -
December 1,2009 37510 5.0 Series 2009
November 30, 2010 2.0t0550 Series 2010
December 8, 2010 5.625t0 6.50 Series 2010
December 21, 2011 1.50t0 4.0 Series 2011

Total General Govermental Bonds:

OPWC Loans:

July 1, 1997 - Boxwood Ave.
July 1, 1998 - Lakeshore Blvd.
July 1, 1998 - Tallmadge Ave.
July 1, 1999 - Lakeshore Bivd.
July 1, 1999 - Bye Street

July 1, 1999 - Wooster/Fast Ave.
July 1, 2000 - Bishop Street
July 1, 2000 - NW Storm Outlets
July 1, 2000 - N. Arlington Bridge
July 1, 2001 - Darow Road
July 1, 2003 - US 244 Phase 11
July 1, 2005 - Manchester RdPhl
July 1, 2005 - Arlington St Signalization
July 1, 2005 - E. Market St Widening
July 1, 2006 - W. Market Street
Tuly 1, 2006 - Tallmadge Ave Singalization
July 1, 2006 - Brown and Power St.
November 28, 2008 - Barbara Ave.
November 28, 2008 - Newton Street Bridge
July 1, 2008 - Mill St. Bridge
March 13, 2009 - Dover Ave.
October 11,2011 - Carroll Street

Total General Govermental OPWC
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Final Maturity Amount
December 1, 2020 $ 761,960
December 1, 2021 1,388,000
December 1, 2024 11,635,000
December 1, 2026 54,115,000
December 1, 2027 18,380,000
December 1, 2028 17,790,001
December 1, 2028 12,866,612
December 1, 2031 72,209,370
December 1, 2031 7,375,000
December 1, 2023 43,962,237

$ 240,483,180

July 1, 2018 $ 266,000
January 1, 2020 456,300
July 1, 2021 416,818
July 1, 2022 128,519
July 1, 2022 146,250
July 1, 2022 314213
July 1, 2022 67,100
July 1, 2022 259,494
July 1, 2022 182,331
July 1, 2023 514,868
July 1, 2025 628,358
July 1, 2027 47,250
July 1, 2027 622,574
July 1, 2027 1,455,450
July 1, 2028 889,200
July 1, 2027 147,520
July 1, 2027 750,600
January 1, 2040 186,134
January 1, 2040 861,700
July 1, 2039 1,299,000
January 1, 2030 378,775
July [, 2041 688,000
S 10706451



11. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Issued Rate % Issue
Governmental A ctivities (Continued)

Ohio Department of Development Loans:

November 26, 1996 3 1997 Incubator
March 1,2003 1/2 Prime 2003 Univ Tech Pk
March 31, 2011 2 Goodyear 106 Loan

Total General Governmental Ohio Department of DevelopmentL oans:

Non-Tax Revenue Bonds:

December 15,2006 5.0l to 561 2006
September 18, 2008 7.375 2008
‘December 15, 2011 20t0225 2011

Total General Governmental Non-tax Revenue:

Income Tax Revenue Bonds:

December 15, 2011 20t03.75 2011
CLC Income-Tax Revenue Bonds:

January 1, 2004 4010525 2004A
January 1, 2004 201t0 6.0 2004B
July 28,2010 30to 45 2010A
July 28,2010 5.074 to 6.463 20108
July 28,2010 5.87 2010C

Total CLC Income-Tax Revenue Bonds:

Special Revenue Bonds (JEDD):

December21, 2011 2751t 5.0 2000
December 21, 2011 275t 5.0 2000
December 21, 2011 275t 5.0 2002
December 21, 2011 2.751t0 5.0 2002

Total Special Revenue Bonds (JEDD):
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Final Maturity

February 1, 2012
March 1,2018
December 1,2030

December 1, 2026
December 1, 2028
December 1, 2018

December 1, 2023

December 1, 2033
December 1, 2014
December 1, 2033
December 1, 2033
December [, 2026

December 1, 2020
December i, 2020
December 1, 2022
December 1, 2022

Amount

$ 10,733
678,738
5,000,000

$ 5,689,471

16,750,000
20,050,000
14,035,000

$ 50,835,000

$ 6,405,000

$ 6,405,000

$ 165,000,000
17,690,000
17,880,000
12,060,000
15,060,000

$ 227,690,000

$ 6,415,000
6,425,000
8,800,000
5,525,000

M 27,165,000




11. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Issued Rate %
Governmental Activities (Continued):
Special Assessment Obligations:
Street Inprovement Bonds:
Septenber 1, 1978 725
Septenber 1, 2002 1.5t03375
Septerrber 1, 2003 204
Septenber 1, 2004 4
March1, 2004 4
December 1, 2004 4
Septenrber 29, 2005 3.707
March 1, 2006 4
Septerrber 14, 2006 40155
March 1, 2007 4
Septenber 5, 2007 4.1
March 11,2008 4
Decerrber 1,2009 4521
June 1,2010 4
November 22, 2011 245
Decenber 21, 2011 1.5t04.0
Total Special Assessment Obligations:
State Infrastructure Bank (STB) Loans:
July 12,2004 00103.0
Septerrber 30, 2004 00t03.0
June 21,2005 00t03.0
Total SIB Loans:
Business-type Activities:
Enterprise General Obligation Bonds:
Off-Street Parking Facility Bonds:
November 30,2010 235t01.55
December 21,2011 1.5t104.0

Total Enterprise General Obligation Bonds:

Issue

Rosemary Blvd.

2002
2003
2004
2004
2004B
2005
2006
2006
2007
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2011

U.S.224 Ph 1&2

Bridges
Bikeway

Canal/Tell
Canal/Tell
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Final Maturity

September 1, 2014
December 1, 2012
December 1, 2013
December 1, 2014
December 1, 2014
December 1, 2014
December 1, 2015
December 1, 2015
December 1, 2016
December 1, 2016
December 1, 2017
December 1, 2017
December 1, 2014
December 1, 2019
December 1, 2021
December 1, 2014

September 1, 2014
September 30,2014
September 1, 2016

Decenber 1,2020
Decenber 1,2022

Amount

$ 9,000
230,000
650,000

1,195,000
20,406
17,678

1,060,000
28,485

725,000
11,978
585,000
155,050
53,387
1,388,952
5,015,000

95,566

$ 11,240,502

$ 1,850,556
1,426,565

1,198,757

5 4475878

$ 505630

132,197

$ 637,827



11, Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Issued Rate % Issue Final Maturity Amount

Business-type Activities (Continued):
Enterprise Mortgage Revenue Bonds:

Waterworks System Bonds:

July 1, 2003 2t03 2003 September 1, 2014 $ 7,300,000
August 1, 2006 4t0 4.5 2006 March 1,2026 10,985,000
September 17, 2009 25w 5.0 2009 March 1,2034 22,080,000
Total Waterworks System Bonds: $ 40,365,000

Enterprise Revenue Bonds:

Sewer System Improvement Bonds:

April 1, 1998 37155 Sewer 1998 December 1, 2017 $ 2,250,000
December 1, 2005 3.5t05.00 Sewer 2005 December 1, 2018 21,220,000
Total Enterprise Revenue Bonds: $ 23,470,000

Enterpriss OWDA Loans:

March 30, 1995 4.56 Sewer July 1, 2015 $ 4257862
April 27,1995 4.56 Sewer July 1, 2015 4,964,416
September 30, 1999 2.01 Water July 1, 2019 566,554
May 25, 2000 4.64 Water July 1, 2021 4,567,304
April 26,2001 3.9 Water July 1, 2011 6,063
January 29,2004 3.5 Water January 1, 2014 821,952
September 30, 2004 3.81 Sewer July 1, 2015 3,669,120
December 16, 2004 335 Sewer July 1,2014 4,451,397
October 30,2008 3.52 Water January 1, 2020 1,347,974
October 30,2008 3.52 Sewer January 1, 2020 1,347,973
January 14,2010 325 Sewer January 1, 2030 915,497
November 19,2009 325 Sewer July 1, 2030 130,147
December 10, 2009 325 Sewer July 1, 2020 124,594
December 10, 2009 325 Sewer January 1, 2015 61,394
December 10, 2009 325 Sewer January 1, 2030 81,773
February 24, 2011 4.14 Sewer January 1, 2031 225,463
February 24, 2011 4.14 Sewer January 1, 2031 1,470
March 31, 2011 4.72 Sewer January 1, 2031 613,097
August 25,2011 452 Sewer January 1, 2017 101,694
Total Enterprise OWDA Loans: $ 28,255,744

Enterpriss OPWC Loans:

July 1, 1995 0 Water July 1, 2016 $ 409,662
December 1, 1995 0 Sewer January 1, 2017 149,166
July 1, 1996 0 Sewer July 1, 2017 385,589
July 1, 1997 0 Sewer July 1, 2018 282,625
July 1, 2000 0 Water July 1, 2021 581,750
July 1, 2005 0 Sewer July 1, 2025 136,997
Total Enterprise OPWC Loans: $ 1945789
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Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The following is a summary of the City’s future debt service requirements as of December 31, 2011
(in thousands):

Ohio Department
Fiscal General of Development
Year Obligation Bonds OPWC Loan Loans
Ending
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 11,425  § 10,435 620 §$ - 107 § 27
2013 13,616 10,094 656 - 100 23
2014 16,059 9,559 656 - 104 18
2015 16,148 8,948 656 - 108 14
2016 16,719 8,348 656 - 243 66
2017-2021 84,411 31,028 3,117 - 1,722 475
2022-2026 58,995 14,244 2,212 - 1,750 285
2027-2031 23,110 3,609 963 - 1,555 80
2032-2036 - - 570 - - -
2037-2041 - - 564 - - -
2042-2046 - - 36 - - -
240483  § 96,2653 10,706  § - 5689 % 988
Fiscal Non-Tax Income Tax Special
Year Revenue Bonds Revenue Revenue Bonds
Ending
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 755§ 2,677 5,825 $ 11,713 -3 1,085
2013 1,605 2,648 7,065 11,428 - 1,149
2014 3,620 2,585 8,095 11,085 1,920 1,149
2015 4,343 2,471 6,270 10,720 3,215 1,072
2016 4,510 2,301 6,695 10,413 3,323 944
2017-2021 16,640 8912 41,565 46,769 16,835 2,147
2022-2026 15,256 4,633 55,115 34,721 1,870 59
2027-2031 4,106 460 69,220 19,610 - -
2032-2036 - - 34,245 2,642 - -
2037-2041 - - - - - -
2042-2046 - - - - - -
50,835 § 26,687 234,095 $ 159,101 27,165 ¥ 7,605
Fiscal Special State
Year Assessment Bonds Infrastructure Bonds
Ending
December31 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 2649 § 373 1347 § 124
2013 2,371 277 1,387 84
2014 2,141 191 1,429 42
2015 1,219 116 313 7
2016 963 77 - -
2017-2021 1,898 138 - -
2022-2026 - - - -
2027-2031 - - - -
2032-2036 - - - -
2037-2041 - - - -
2042-2046 - - - -
4476  $ 257

Governmental Activities

11,241 § 1,172
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11. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Fiscal
Year
Ending
December 31

2012
2013
2014
2013
2016
2017-2021
2022-2026
2027-2031
2032-2036
2037-2041
2042-2046

Fiscal
Year
Ending
December31

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017-2021
2022-2026
2027-2031
2032-2036
2037-2041
2042-2046

Fiscal
Year
Ending
December 31

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017-2021
2022-2026
2027-2031
2032-2036
2037-2041
2042-2046

Business-type Activities

General Mortgage
Obligation Bonds Revenue Revenue
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 3 $ 27 $ 3,190 $ 1,758 3,955 $ 1,125
3 28 3,340 1,608 4,130 950
15 28 3,475 1,471 4310 769
72 27 3,625 1,322 4,525 554
76 24 3,805 1,143 4,750 328
404 59 11,560 3,462 1,800 90
65 2 6,675 1,872 - -
- - 2,715 830 - -
- - 1,980 152 - -
$ 638 $ 195 $ 40,365 $ 13,618 23,470 $ 3,816
OWDA Loans OPWC Loans
Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 5,579 $ 1,108 $ 202 $ -
5,823 871 201 -
5,886 635 202 -
4,365 412 201 -
970 264 202 -
4,127 690 758 -
681 234 180 -
825 91 - -
$ 28,256 $ 4,305 $ 1,946 $ -
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Grand
Total To tal Total
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 22,728 $ 26,434 $ 12,929 $ 4,018 35,657 $ 30,452
26,800 25,703 13,497 3,457 40,297 29,160
34,024 24,629 13,888 2,903 47912 27,532
32,272 23,348 12,788 2,315 45,060 25,663
33,111 22,149 9,803 1,759 42,914 23,908
166,188 89,469 18,649 4,301 184,837 93,770
135,198 53,942 7,601 2,108 142,799 56,050
98,954 23,759 3,540 921 102,494 24,680
34,815 2,642 1,980 152 36,795 2,794
564 - - - 564 -
36 - - - 36 -
$ 584,690 $ 292,075 $ 94,675 ) 21,934 679,365 $ 314,009

e t—
—
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11.

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

All bonds and notes are backed by the full faith and credit of the City except revenue bonds. Water
Mortgage Revenue Bonds are collateralized by the capital assets of the Water System that had net
carrying values of approximately $142,787,558 at December 31, 2011. It is the City’s policy to pay
debt service of the Enterprise and Internal Service Funds from the receipts of those funds.
Accordingly, such debt is reported in those funds. Any deficiency is paid from the City’s General
Fund. Revenue bonds and OWDA loans are retired entirely from the excess of operating revenues
over operating expenses of the applicable enterprise activity. Therefore, the City is under no
obligation to repay these long-term obligations from the City’s General Fund.

Bond Indenture Agreements for the Sanitary Sewer System Revenue Bonds dated June 1, 1996, the
Sanitary Sewer System Revenue Bonds dated January 1, 1997, the Sanitary Sewer System
Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bond dated April 1, 1998, the Waterworks System Mortgage
Revenue Improvement and Refunding Bonds dated July 1, 2003, and the Waterworks System
Mortgage Revenue Improvement Bond dated August 10, 2006 require deposits to a Debt Service Fund
based on a calculation of net operating revenues. The Sewer System Revenue Bond Indenture
Agreement dated April 1, 1998 requires that a Debt Service Reserve Fund be created and maintained
at a minimum of $1,217,306 for the Series 1996 Bonds, the Series 1997 Bonds, and the Series 1998
Bonds. The balances in the Debt Service Reserve Fund and the Debt Service Fund at December 31,
2011 were as follows:

Sewer System

1996,1997, Waterworks Waterworks
and System System
1998 Issues 2003 Issue 2006 Issue
Minimum balance of debt
service reserve fund $ 1,217,306 $ - $ -
Actual balance of debt
service reserve fund 4,409,073 1,814,150 522,924
Excess $ 3,191,767 $ 1,814,150 $ 522924

The debt service and debt service reserve funds for Mortgage Revenue Bond issues are included in the
applicable enterprise fund for reporting purposes.

The Ohio Revised Code provides that the net debt of a municipal corporation, whether or not approved
by the electors, shall not exceed 10.5% of the assessed value of all property in the municipal
corporation as listed and assessed for taxation. In addition, the unvoted net debt of municipal
corporations cannot exceed 5.5% of the total assessed value of property. At December 31, 2011, the
City’s total net debt amounted to 5.7% of the total assessed value of all property within the City and
unvoted net debt amounted to 5.7% of the total assessed value of all property within the City.
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11.

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

On December 15, 2011 the City issued $14,035,000 in Non-Tax Revenue Economic Development
Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 maturing on December 1, 2013 through 2018 with interest rates ranging
from 2% t0 2.25 %. Out of the net proceeds of $13,756,706 (after payment of $278,294 in
underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance costs), $13,478,412 was used to provide cash to
provide for debt service payments for the Non-Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1997.

As a result, the above Series 1997 Bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for these
bonds has been removed from the financial statements. The City advance refunded these bonds to
reduce its total debt service payments for the refunding by approximately $1,538,164 and incurred an
economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new
debt) of approximately $1,404,158. The net difference between the reacquisition price and the
carrying amount of the old debt has been recorded as a component of deferred bond issuance costs and
is being amortized over the previous remaining life of the old debt.

On December 15, 2011 the City issued $6,405,000 Income Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 maturing
December 1, 2013 through December 1, 2023 with interest rates ranging from 2% to 3.375%. Out of
the net proceeds of $6,312,862 (after payment of $144,520 in underwriting fees, insurance and other
issuance costs, and including a premium of $17,905), $6,060,820 was used to provide cash to provide
for debt service payments for the Income Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1999,

As a result, the above Series 1999 Bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for these
bonds has been removed from the financial statements. The City advance refunded these bonds to
reduce its total debt service payments for the refunding by approximately $657,828 and incurred an
economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new
debt) of approximately $631,035. The net difference between the reacquisition price and the carrying
amount of the old debt has been recorded as a component of deferred bond issuance costs and is being
amortized over the previous remaining life of the old debt.

On December 21, 2011 the City issued $27,165,000 in special revenue bonds (JEDD) Joint Economic
Development District Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 maturing December 1, 2014 through
December [, 2022 with interest rates ranging from 2.75% to 5%. Out of the net proceeds of
$30,982,152 (after payment of $410,845 in underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance costs,
including a premium of $2,495,675), $28,738,996 was used to provide cash to provide for debt service
payments for the Special Revenue Bonds (JEDD) Series 2000 and 2002.

As a result the above Series 2000 and 2002 Bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for
these bonds has been removed from the financial statements. The City advance refunded these bonds
to reduce its total debt service payments by approximately $3,384,869 and incurred an economic gain
(difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of
approximately $3,051,990. The net difference between the reacquisition price and the carrying amount
of the old debt has been recorded as a component of deferred bond issuance costs and is being
amortized over the previous remaining life of the old debt.

On December 21, 2011 the City issued $44,094,434 in general obligation bonds Various Purpose
Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 maturing December [, 2012 through December 1, 2023 with interest
rates ranging from 1.5% to 4%. Out of the net proceeds of $43,741,359 (after payment of $456,193 in
underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance costs and including a premium of $1,641,226),
$44,926,392 was used to provide cash to provide for debt service payments of the General Obligation
Bonds, Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2001, 2002 and 2003.

As a result the above the Series 2001 and 2002 and a portion of the Series 2003 Bonds are considered
to be defeased and the liability for these bonds have been removed from the financial statements. The
City advanced refunded these bonds to reduce its total debt service payments by approximately
$3,599,174 and incurred an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt
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Long-Term Debt (Continued)

service payments on the old and new debt) of approximately $3,414,424. The net difference between
the reacquisition price and the carrying amount of the old debt has been recorded as a component of
deferred bond issuance costs and is being amortized over the previous remaining life of the old debt.

The City has defeased certain debt issues by placing investments in U.S. Government obligations in
irrevocable escrow accounts. Such accounts will be used, together with interest earned thereon, to
provide for the payment of all principal and interest on the defeased bonds on their scheduled due
dates. Accordingly, the escrow accounts and the defeased bonds summarized below are not included
in the accompanying financial statements at December 31, 2011:

Principal
Defeasance Outstanding
Issue Date Defeased Escrowed at 12/31/11
Waterworks System First Mortgage
Revenue Bonds Series 1991 1996 $ 19,090,000 $ 20,726,104 $ 2,675,000
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 1992 2001 10,785,000 11,869,971 1,190,000
Street Improvement Bonds, Series 1992 2001 1,940,000 2,135,164 100,000
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 1994 2001 15,825,000 18,761,930 2,970,000
Waterworks System Mortgage
Revenue Bonds Series 1994 2003 19,405,000 20,820,490 7,070,000
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 1993 2005 5,555,000 - 1,290,000
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 1995-2 2005 3,855,000 - 1,425,000
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 1996 2005 2,600,000 - 1,695,000
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 1996-2 2005 7,900,000 - 3,900,000
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 1997 2005 11,960,000 - 5,915,000
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 1999 2005 14,310,000 - 8,490,000
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2000 2005 14,265,000 - 10,255,000
60,445,000 40,208,751 32,970,000
Sanitary Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 1996 2005 12,655,000 - 4,725,000
Sanitary Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 2005 11,245,000 - 8,840,000
Revenue Bonds, Series 1998 2005 6,165,000 - 5,235,000
30,065,000 30,839,036 18,800,000
Revenue Bonds, Series 1996 2009 7,780,000 2,715,000
Revenue Bonds, Series 1998 2009 6,570,000 5,345,000
14,350,000 14,464,701 8,060,000
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 1998 2010 5,835,000 6,044,651 4,890,000
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2001 2010 13,850,000 14,792,506 11,220,000
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2002 2010 4,660,000 4,993,023 1,610,000
24,345,000 25,830,180 17,720,000
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11. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Original Amount
Principal
Defeasance Outstanding

Issue Date Defeased Fscrowed at12/31/11
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2001 2011 $ 7,425,000 $ 7474871 $ 7,425,000
Various Purpose Inprovement Bonds, Series 2002 2011 19,390,000 20,342,508 19,390,000
Various Purpose Improvement Bonds, Series 2003 2011 15,635,000 17,109,007 15,635,000
42,450,000 44,926,392 42,450,000
Non-Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 2011 16,385,000 16,594 456 16,385,000
Income Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 2011 6,290,000 6,330,767 6,290,000
Special Revenue Bonds (JEDD), Series 2000 2011 16,180,000 16,308,393 16,180,000
Special Revenue Bonds (JEDD), Series 2002 2011 16,400,000 17,153,385 16,400,000
32,580,000 33,461,778 32,580,000
$ 189,260,000
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11. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The City of Akron’s original General Obligation bond ratings are AA- from Fitch, Al from Moody’s
and AA- from Standard and Poor’s. The insured Water and Sewer Revenue bonds were originally
rated AAA from Fitch, Aaa from Moody’s and AAA from Standard and Poor’s. As of December, the
City’s bond ratings are as follows:

Moody's
Investors Standard Fitch

Service and Poor's Ratings

Current Current
Description Rating Current Rating Rating
2005 Refunding Certificates of Participation n/a A+ A
2005-A Certificates of Participation WR A+ n/a
2007 Certificates of Participation WR A+ n/a
2010 Steam Utility Certificates of Participation n/a A+ n/a
1997 Various Purpose Improvement Bonds (Advance Refunded) Aa3 n/a n/a
1999 Various Purpose Improvement Bonds (Advance Refunded) Aal n/a WD
2001 Various Purpose Improvement and Refunding Bonds (Advanced Refunded) Aal AA- AA-
2002 Various Purpose Improvement and Refunding Bonds (Advanced Refunded) Aal3 AA- AA-
2003 Various Purpose Improvement Bonds Aa3 AA- AA-
2005 Various Purpose Improving and Refunding Bonds Aa3 AA- AA-
2006 Various Purpose Improvement Bonds Aaj AA- AA-
2007 Various Purpose Improvement Bonds Aa3 AA- AA-
2009 Various Purpose Improvement Refundng Bonds n/a AA- n/a
2010 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds, Series A n/a AA- AA-
2010 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds, Series B n/a AA- AA-
2010 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds, Series C n/a AA- AA-
2010 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds, Series D n/a AA- n/a
2011 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds Aa3 AA- n/a
2011 Various Purpose Improvement Notes MIG | SP-1+ n/a
1999 Pension Refunding Income Tax Revenue Bonds (Advance Refunded) Al n/a Not rated
2004A Income Tax Revenue Bonds (CLC) Al AA+ AA-
2004B Income Tax Revenue Bonds (CLC) Al AA+ AA-
2010A Income Tax Revenue Bonds (CLC) n/a AA+ n/a
2010B Income Tax Revenue Bonds (CLC) n/a AA+ n/a
2010C Income Tax Revenue Bonds (CLC) n/a AA+ n/a
2011 Pension Income Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds Al n/a n/a
2011 Health Benefit Claims Notes n/a SP-1+ n/a
2000 Sanitary Sewer System Special Revenue Bonds (Advanced Refunded) WR n/a Not rated
2002 Sanitary Sewer System Special Revenue Bonds (Advanced Refunded) Baa2 n/a Not rated
2000 Waterworks System Special Reveue Bonds (Advanced Refunded) WR n/a Not rated
2002 Waterworks System Special Reveue Bonds (Advanced Refunded) Baa2 n/a n/a
2011 JEDD Revenue Refunding Bonds n/a AA- n/a
1997 Nontax Revenue Economic Dev Bonds (Advanced Refunded) Baa2 BBB n/a
2006 Taxable Economic Development Revenue Bonds Baa2 n/a n/a
2011 Nontax Revenue Economic Dev Bonds Aal3 n/a nfa
2002 Street Improvement Special Assessment Bonds Aal AA- n/a
2003 Street Improvement Special Assessment Bonds Aal AA- nfa
2005 Street Improvement Special Assessment Bonds Aal AA- n/a
2006 Street Improvement Special Assessment Bonds Aal AA- WD
1998 Sanitary Sewer System Improvement and Refunding Bonds WR n/a n/a
2005 Sanitary Sewer System Improvement and Refunding Bonds WR n/a Not rated
2003 Waterworks System Mortgage Revenue Improvement and Refunding Bonds Baa2 n/a n/a
2006 Waterworks System Mortgage Revenue Improvement and Refunding Bonds WR n/a n/a
2009 Waterrworks System Mortgage Revenue Improvement and Refunding Bonds Aa3 n/a n/a
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Long-Term Debt (Continued)

During 2001, the City entered into an amendment and restatement of cooperative agreement among
various parties to unconditionally guarantee the principal and interest payments of the Development
Finance Authority of Summit County Revenue Bonds (Akron Civic Theatre Project), issued by the
Development Finance Authority of Summit County. As of December 31, 2011, the principal amount
outstanding was $13,731,070. The City believes that the Development Finance Authority of Summit
County is current on all required debt service payments and will continue to pay all debt service when
due throughout the remaining term of the bonds; therefore, no provision for such guarantee has been
recorded in the financial statements as of December 31, 2011.

During 2004, the City entered into an agreement with various parties to unconditionally guarantee the
principal and interest payments on behalf of The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company for the
Development Finance Authority of Summit County Bonds, Series 2005B. As of December 31, 2011,
the principal amount outstanding was $2,100,000. The City believes that Goodyear Tire & Rubber
Company is current on all required debt service payments and will continue to pay all debt service
when due throughout the remaining term of the bonds; therefore, no provision for such guarantee has
been recorded in the financial statements as of December 31, 2011.

During 2007, the City entered into an agreement with various parties to unconditionally guarantee the
principal and interest payments on behalf of Akron Community Service Center and Urban League,
Inc. for Development Finance Authority of Summit County Bonds, Series 2007. As of December 31,
2011, the principal amount outstanding was $2,310,000. The City believes that the Akron Community
Service Center and Urban League, Inc. is current on all required debt service payments and will
continue to pay all debt service when due throughout the remaining term of the loan; therefore, no
provision for such guarantee has been recorded in the financial statements as of December 31, 2011.

During 2008, the City entered into an agreement with various parties to unconditionally guarantee the
principal and interest payments on behalf of MemPro Ceramics Corporation for the loan issued by The
Huntington National Bank. As of December 31, 2011, the principal amount outstanding was
$195,833. During 2011 the City was required to make principal and interest payment on behalf of
MemPro Ceramics Corporation. The City paid approximately $62,738 in principal and interest that
was due to The Huntington National Bank for principal and interest payments. MemPro Ceramics
Corporation scheduled 2012 principal and interest payments are $50,000 and $9,437, respectively.
The City believes that the amounts are immaterial; therefore, no provision for such guarantee has been
recorded in the financial statements as of December 31, 2011.

During 2010, the City entered into an agreement with various parties to unconditionally guarantee the
principal and interest payments on behalf of the International Soap Box Derby, Inc. for the loan issued
by FirstMerit Bank. As of December 31, 2011, the principal amount outstanding was $540,029. The
City believes that the International Soap Box Derby Inc. is current on all required debt service
payments and will continue to pay all debt service when due throughout the remaining term of the
loan; therefore, no provision for such guarantee has been recorded in the financial statements as of
December 31, 2011.

As of December 31, 2011, the City was obligated to provide half of the funds for any shortfall in
payments for $17.2 million in Taxable Bonds issued by the Development Finance Authority of
Summit County (formerly the Summit County Port Authority) to fund acquisitions by IRG Rubber
City LLC of certain properties for the Goodyear Headquarters Project.
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12.

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

This obligation was rescinded on April 13, 2011, when the City entered into a Cooperative Agreement
with the Development Finance Authority of Summit County, County of Summit, Director of
Development of the State of Ohio, Huntington National Bank, IRG LLC, AGNL Blimp LLC and the
Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company for the Goodyear Headquarters Project. The agreement calls for
the City to repay a $5 million State 166/City Revenue Loan Note with payments beginning in June of
2016. The City also is obligated to transfer net Tax Increment Financing Service Payments to pay for
portions of $15 million in other State 166 Loans issued for the project.

From time to time, the City has issued industrial revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to
private sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities
deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable
solely from payments received by the bond trustees on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon
repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity
served by the bond issuance. The bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the
City and, accordingly, have not been reported in the accompanying financial statements. As of
December 31, 2011, there was one industrial revenue bond outstanding. The aggregate principal
amount payable for the issue was $600,000.

Obligations Under Capitalized Leases and Certificates of Participation (COPs)

In November, 1996, $28.9 million Series 1996 Convertible Capital Appreciation Certificates of
Participation (COPs) were issued by a bank to finance the costs of the construction of a professional
baseball stadium (meeting class “AA” standards) within the City. In connection with the issuance of
the Series 1996 COPs, the City entered into a capital lease agreement (as lessee) for the baseball
stadium. The City will make lease payments during successive annual renewal periods through
November 25, 2016, providing City Council appropriates funds each year for that purpose. If the lease
is paid through November 25, 2016, the City will acquire title to the baseball stadium. The lease
agreement also includes a purchase option during the years 2002 through 2016.

Unspent funds of approximately $94,700 provided from the COPs are recorded as restricted assets in
the governmental activities in the accompanying government-wide statement of net assets as of
December 31, 2011. In the unlikely event the lease is terminated, the restricted funds are available for
payment of the certificates.

The City has defeased certain certificate issues by placing investments in U.S. Government
Obligations in irrevocable escrow accounts. Such accounts will be used, together with interest earned
thereon, to provide for the payment of all principal and interest on the defeased certificates on their
scheduled due dates. Accordingly, the escrow accounts and the defeased certificates summarized
below are not included in the accompanying financial statements at December 31, 2011:

Principal
Defeasance Original Amount Outstanding
Issue Date Defeased Escrowed at 12/31/11
Certificates of Participation, Series 1996 2005 $31,515,000 $33,661,685 $16,200,000
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12. Obligations Under Capitalized Leases and Certificates of Participation (COPs) (Continued)
On November 3, 2010, the City issued $13.2 million Series 2010 Convertible Certificates of

Participation (COPs) for the Akron Energy Systems Project. Total future payments as of December
31, 2011 are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Year Principal Interest
2012 $ 440,000 $ 608,563
2013 455,000 595,363
2014 465,000 582,850
2015 480,000 570,063
2016 495,000 556,863
2017-2021 2,795,000 2,450,500
2022-2026 3,575,000 1,677,500
2027-2031 4,495,000 643,250
$ 13,200,000 $ 7,684,950

The City also has two other capital leases, one for the redesign of the City’s sanitation trash collection
system and one for equipment. The cost of the sanitation redesign equipment is $9,050,203 and is
included in the City’s capital assets in the Statement of Net Assets — Governmental Activities.

The cost of the equipment purchase is $1,952,230 and is included in the City’s capital assets in the
Statement of Net Assets — Governmental Activities and in the Water and Golf Course Funds.

The following is a summary of the capital lease transactions for the year ended December 31, 2011:

Govemnmental Activities Enterprise
COPS COPS Sanitation
Stadium Parking Redesign Equipment Equipment
Capital Lease at January 1,2011 $ 19,440,000 $ 41,920,000 $  5962,836 $ 1,436,231 $ 515,999
Retirements (2,855,000) (2,535,000) (881,469) (172,820) (62,090)
Capital Lease a December31, 2011 $ 16,585,000 $ 39,385,000 $ 5,081,367 $ 1263411 $ 453,909

e ———— S—————————— S —————————err———  ————C—— e——————————————
e, e ——,—,——————eeee,—_—_—_———,e eeee——
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12. Obligations Under Capitalized Leases and Certificates of Participation (COPs) (Continued)

Future lease payments are as follows as of December 31, 201 1:

Governmental A ctivities Enterprise
COPS COPS Sanitation

Year Stadium Parking Redesign Equipment Equipment
2012 $ 3,834,250 $ 4,259,063 $ 11,1297 $ 248,797 $ 89,386
2013 3,829,000 4,215,263 1,152,972 248,797 89,386
2014 3,831,500 4,179,063 1,152,972 248,797 89,386
2015 3,831,000 4,145,438 1,152,972 248,797 89,386
2016 3,827,250 4,108,038 1,152,972 248,797 89,386
2017-2021 - 18,883,188 - 248,797 89,386
2022-2026 - 9,874,000 - - -
2027-2031 - 2,937,000 - - -
Total lease payments 19,153,000 52,601,051 5,764,860 1,492,782 536,316
Less amount representing interest 2,568,000 13,216,051 683,493 229,371 82,407
Present value of lease payments $ 16,585,000 $ 39,385,000 $ 5,081,367 $ 1,263,411 $ 453,909
Netbook value of leased assets * § 20,635,126 $ 63,570,219 $ 4,072,591 $  1,124435 $ 421,915

* Amount represents the entire net book value of the capital lease recorded in the statement of net assets.
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Self-Insurance Funds

The City is exposed to various risks of loss including employee health-care costs and accidents, torts
and legal judgments, and damage or destruction of assets. The City purchases fire and extended
coverage insurance on all buildings and contents up to $175,000,000 per occurrence, with a variety of
deductibles beginning at $250,000. Coverage is purchased on 1,147 vehicles for combined single-
limit liability of $1,000,000. There has been no significant reduction in coverage from the prior year,
and settled claims have not exceeded the City’s insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

The City has a Medical Self-Insurance Fund. The purpose of this fund is to pay medical claims for
City employees and their covered dependents and minimize the total cost of medical benefits of the
City. The plan is internally managed and accounted for as an Internal Service Fund. This Internal
Service Fund has been in existence since 1987.

The City has an Internal Service Fund entitled “Workers’ Compensation Reserve Fund” to account for
self-insured workers’ compensation claims. Workers’ compensation is administered by the State of
Ohio under a retrospective rating plan. The City reimburses the Ohio Bureau of Workers’
Compensation for injured workers’ claims subject to a maximum annual claim limit of $300,000 for
each worker’s compensation claim. All funds of the City participate in the program and make
payments to the Internal Service Fund based on the experience premium that would normally be
charged by the Ohio Bureau of Workers” Compensation. Future claims liabilities are actuarially
determined.

The City has a Self-Insurance Settlement Fund. The purpose of this fund is to pay judgments and
claims. Claims are accrued based upon estimates, past experience, and current claims outstanding.
Actual claims experience may differ from the estimate.

The claims liabilities of $1,896,589, $5,938,649 and $442,316 reported in the Medical, Workers’
Compensation, and Self-Insurance Settlement funds, respectively, at December 31, 2011, are in
accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, and GASB Statement No. 30, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues. These GASB statements
require that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial
statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial
statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The liabilities recorded include the
estimated incremental expenses to be incurred to settle the claims, including legal fees. Claims
liabilities are based on evaluations of individual claims and a review of experience with respect to the
probable number and nature of claims arising from losses that have been incurred but have not yet
been reported. The claims liabilities represent the estimated ultimate cost of settling the claims,
including the effects of inflation and other societal and economic factors. Estimated future recoveries
on settled and unsettled claims, such as subrogations, if any, are evaluated in terms of their estimated
realizable value and deducted from the liability for unpaid claims. Any adjustments resulting from the
actual settlement of the claims are reflected in the financial statements at the time the adjustments are
determined.
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Self-Insurance Funds (Continued)

Changes in the funds’ claims liabilities (both current and long-term) amounts in fiscal 2010 and 2011

were!

Medical Self-
Insurance Fund

2010
2011

Workers' Compensation
Reserve Fund

2010
2011

Self-Insurance
Settlement Fund

2010
2011

Beginning
of Year
Liability

$ 2,154,985
2,172,457

7,384,011
6,606,823

505,268
437,444

Claim
Adjustments

&~
[

(104,745)
(354,032)

94

Current
Period
Claims

$ 25,845,024
23,532,132

866,947
819,338

39,171
358,904

Claim
Payments

$ (25,827,552)
(23,808,000)

(1,644,135)
(1,487,512)

(2,250)

Balance
at End
of Year

$ 2,172,457
1,896,589

6,606,823
5,938,649

437,444
442316



14, Long-term Liabilities

The City reports the following amounts relating to the government’s long-term liabilities for the year

ended December 31, 2011:

Governmental Activities:
Governmental Funds:
Due to other governments
Accrued vacation and leave (Note 8)
OPEB liability (Note 9)
Employment Related Liabilities
Pollution Remediation (Note 20)

Total Governmental Funds

Internal Service Funds:
Accrued vacation and leave (Note 8)
OPEB liability (Note 9)
Employment Related Liabilities
Liability for unpaid claims

Total Internal Service Funds
Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
Enterprise Funds:

Water
Accrued vacation and leave (Note 8)
OPEB liability (Note 9)
Employment Related Liabilities

Sewer
Due to other governments
Accrued vacation and leave (Note 8)
OPEB liability (Note 9)
Employment Related Liabilities

Off Street Parking
Accrued vacation and leave (Note 8)

Other Business-type Activities
Accrued vacation and leave (Note 8)
Pollution Remediation (Note 20)
OPEB liability (Note 9)
Employment Related Liabilities

Total Enterprise Funds/
Business-type Activities

Total

Balance Balance

January 1, December 31,

2011 Additions Deletions 2011
$ 3,974,738 $ 500,000 $ (613,294) § 3,861,444
40,661,599 13,373,925 (18,451,209) 35,584,315
15,882,548 6,058,979 21,941,527
3,367,048 1,945,960 (3,196,100) 2,116,908
379,965 (334,965) 45,000
64,265,898 21,878,864 (22,595,568) 63,549,194
2,379,754 906,731 (1,094,325) 2,192,160
598,368 307,099 905,467
27,025 (27,025) .
5,120,984 (315,960) 4,805,024
8,126,131 1,213,830 (1,437,310) 7,902,651
72,392,029 23,092,694 (24,032,878) 71,451,845
2,892,344 1,192,787 (1,542,398) 2,542,733
1,002,969 505,307 1,508,276
70,625 (70,625) -
295,830 (24,491) 271,339
1,841,526 1,107,476 (1,046,352) 1,902,650
655,620 329,310 984,930
34,475 (34,475) -
59,146 8,467 (67,613) -
158,568 68,819 (31,718) 195,669
- 42,050 42,050
70,313 17,585 - 87,898
2,025 (2,025) -
7,083,441 3,271,801 (2,819,697) 7,535,545
$ 79,475,470 $ 26,364,495 $ (26,852,575) $§ 78,987,390

The above liabilities are liquidated by the various operating funds in which the liabilities exist. See Note 4 for
detailed explanations for the amounts recorded as due to other governments.
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15. Compliance and Accountability
A. Legal compliance
The City has deficit cash fund balances in certain funds and some funds had appropriations
which exceeded the Official Certificate of Estimated Resources and available resources which
are contrary to the Ohio Revised Code.

B. Deficit fund balances

The following funds have fund balance deficits or net assets deficits at December 31, 2011:

Special Revenue Funds:

Emergency Medical Service $ 3,579,381
Street Assessment 6,984,492
Community Development 528,804
Akron Metro Area Transportation Study 213,909
Police Grants 1,164,533
Health Grants 2,671
City Facilities Operating 1,308,875
Debt Service Funds:
Debt Service Bond Payment 5,340,849
Capital Project Funds:
Streets 14,769,340
Parks and Recreation 1,517,644
Public Parking 3,487,123
Internal Service Funds:
Medical Self-Insurance 9,204,240
Workers' Compensation Reserve 4482112
Self-Insurance Settlement 426,623
Storeroom 193,764
Engineering Bureau 2,192,648
Management Information Systems 2,977,480

The Special Revenue Funds that have deficit fund balances at year-end have incurred expenditures that
have not yet received the revenue under federal or state grant agreements or as a reimbursement from
other funds. The Emergency Medical Service will receive subsidy from the General Fund. On a cash
basis, the Street Assessment Fund has a positive balance and is awaiting receipt of assessments from
property owners to retire the S.A. notes. The Akron Metro Area Transportation Study and Police
Grants funds requested grant draws are based on actual cash basis expenditures. The City Facilities
Operating Fund has significantly decreased the deficit during the prior year and will review the
remaining deficit.

The Debt Service Fund that has a deficit balance at year-end has incurred expenditures relating to debt
service.

The Capital Project Funds that have deficit fund balances at year-end have incurred expenditures that
have not yet been reimbursed. The Streets Fund has outstanding G.O. Notes that will be repaid from
future collections. The Public Parking Fund reflects a positive cash position. The City carries out
programs in its capital budget for which pooled cash is spent up front.

The Internal Service Funds, that have deficit net assets balances at year-end, have incurred expenses
above charges for services. User charges will be assessed to eliminate the deficits. In 2011, the City
issued bond anticipation notes for the Medical Seif-Insurance fund. The debt will be repaid through
user charges. The City’s policy is to transfer funds from the pertinent division’s operating budget for
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16.

17.

Compliance and Accountability (continued)

actual claim settlements to reimburse the Workers’ Compensation and Self-Insurance Settlement
Fund. The Storeroom and Engineering Bureau will review its applied overhead rate charged to
projects to address the deficits. The Management Information Systems will review staffing levels and
also the applied overhead rates charged to formulate a plan.

Income Taxes

The City levies a tax at the rate of 2.25% on substantially all income earned within the City. In
addition, residents of the City are required to pay City income tax on income earned outside the City.
However, a credit is allowed for income taxes paid to other municipalities.

On May 6, 2003, Akron voters increased the City’s income tax rate from 2% to 2.25% which took
effect January 1, 2004. However, the additional .25% increase is designated exclusively for funding
the Akron Public Schools’ local share in obtaining State of Ohio grants for the construction and
renovation of community learning centers in Akron. Therefore, the additional .25% will not be
distributed according to City Charter into both operation and capital improvement funds, as described
below.

The proceeds of income taxes, after payment of the expenditures incurred from collection thereof, are
allocated by the City Charter as follows: 27% to capital expenditures and 73% to the General Fund.
The portion allocated to capital expenditures may be utilized for payment of debt service or capital
expenditures of any City fund.

Employers within the City are required to withhold income tax on employee compensation and remit
this tax to the City at least quarterly. Corporations and other individual taxpayers are required to file a
declaration annually and pay their estimated tax quarterly.

Property Taxes

Property taxes include amounts levied against all real and public utility property located in the City.
The Property taxes collected are allocated to the various funds based upon voter authorization.

Real property taxes are levied each October on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1.
Assessed values are estabiished by the County Fiscal Officer at 35% of appraised market value. By
law, a revaluation of all property based on current individual appraisals is required to be completed no
less than every six years. The last revaluation was completed in tax year 2008 for collection in 2009.
The next sexennial revaluation will be completed in 2014 for collection in 2015. In addition, the
County Fiscal Officer is required to adjust (but without individual appraisal of properties except in the
sexennial reappraisal) taxable real property values triennially to reflect true values.

Real estate and public utility taxes attach an enforceable lien on property as of December 31 in the
year levied. Payments are scheduled in two installments in mid-February and mid-July of the
succeeding year and are considered delinquent if unpaid as of December 31 of that year.

To compensate for foregone revenue from tangible personal property tax, the state will make
distributions to taxing subdivisions from revenue generated by a newly enacted commercial activity
tax. Generally, these distributions are expected to fully compensate taxing subdivisions for such tax
losses with gradual reductions in the reimbursement from 2011 through 2017.

The assessed value upon which the 2011 property tax was based aggregated $3,016,351,000. The

assessed value for 2011 (upon which the 2012 property tax will be based) is approximately
$2,672,112,000.
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Property Taxes (continued)

Under the current allocation method, the City’s share was 1.030% (10.30 mills) of assessed value in
2011 for collection in 2012. The City’s Charter limits the maximum total tax rate that could be levied
without a vote of the electors to 1.05% (10.5 mills).

The Fiscal Officer collects property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts in the County including the
City of Akron and periodically remits to the City its portion of the taxes collected. Current real
property tax collections for the year ended December 31, 2011, including delinquencies from prior
years, were 89.5% of the current year tax levy. On a full accrual basis, collectible delinquent property
taxes have been recorded as revenue, while the remainder of the tax receivable is deferred.

JEDD Revenues

In an effort to promote regional growth and economic development, the City has entered into contracts
with four surrounding townships and a bordering municipality to create Joint Economic Development
Districts (JEDDs). The City entered into separate contracts with Copley, Coventry, and Springfield
Townships to create JEDDs in 1994. Voters in each township approved the respective JEDD contracts
in the November 1994 election, which became effective January 1, 1995. In accordance with state
law, each of the Districts’ Board of Trustees levied a 2% income tax effective January 1, 1995. In
accordance with the City of Akron’s income tax increase, as of January 1, 2005, Copley, Coventry and
Springfield’s income tax rate increased to 2.25%. The proceeds of that tax are allocated, in
accordance with the contract, primarily to the City. The City has utilized these JEDD revenues, in
part, to construct water and sewer lines so that the JEDDs have access to the City’s water and sewer
system and to encourage and promote economic development.

In 1998 the City entered into a JEDD contract with Bath Township (Bath) and the City of Fairlawn
(Fairlawn). This contract was approved by voters in November 1998 and became effective on
January 1, 1999. As in the other JEDDs, a 2% income tax has been levied by the District. In
accordance with the City of Akron’s income tax increase, as of January 1, 2006, Bath’s income tax
rate increased to 2.25%. As stated in the contract, the net JEDD revenues are allocated to the City and
Fairlawn, with the City providing water and sewer services.
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Pledged Revenues

Pursuant to GASB No. 48, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Sales and Pledges of Receivables
and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues, the City holds different types of pledged
revenue. Pledged revenues of the City are broken down into water system revenues, sewer system
revenues, JEDD revenues, non-tax revenues, income tax revenues, and CL.C income tax revenues.

Water System Revenues

The City has pledged future water customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses to repay
$83.5 million in water system revenue bonds, Ohio Public Works Commission loans and Ohio Water
Development Authority loans issued at various dates ranging from September 28, 1995 through April
15,2010. Proceeds from the bonds and loans provided financing for various water projects. The
bonds and loans are payable solely from water customer net revenues and have varying final maturity
dates ranging from January 1, 2012 through March 1, 2034. The total principal and interest remaining
to be paid on the bonds and loans as of December 31, 2011 is $63,737,521. Principal and interest paid
for 2011 and total customer net revenues were $7,212,758 and $10,572,286 respectively.

Amount Final Future
Issued of Issue Purpose of Issue Maturity Debt Service Debt Service

07/17/95 1,024,156 Water Main Replacement 07/01/19 51,208 409,662
09/28/99 1,129,039 Water Mains 07/01/20 82,691 680,823
05/02/00 8,108,206 Sedimentation Basin 07/01/20 626,574 5,639,165
07/01/00 895,000 Post Chemical Bldg. 07/01/24 44,750 581,750
04/16/01 476,826 Water Force Main 01/01/12 58,041 6,181
07/25/02 2,433,270 Water Force Main 07/01/11 341,785 -
07/01/03 28,045,000 Various Water Projects 03/01/14 3,437,475 7,764,000
01/29/04 2,900,272 Post Chemical Bldg. 01/01/14 346,242 865,604
08/10/06 13,340,000 Various Water Projects 03/01/26 996,995 14,986,698
09/17/09 22,100,000 Various Water Projects 03/01/34 1,042,125 31,232,225
04/15/10 3,094,122 Water Meter Replacement 01/01/20 184,872 1,571,413

83,545,891 $ 7,212,758 M 63,737,521
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Pledged Revenues (Continued)
Sewer System Revenues

The City has pledged future sewer customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses to repay
$113.3 million in sewer system revenue bonds and Ohio Water Development Authority loans issued at
various dates ranging from July 1, 1994 through August 25, 2011. Proceeds from the bonds and loans
provided financing for various sewer projects. The bonds and loans are payable solely from sewer
customer net revenues and have varying maturity dates ranging from December 1, 2013 through
January 1, 2032. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds as of

December 31,2011 is $51,836,158. Principal and interest paid for 2011 and total customer net
revenues were $10,673,169 and $21,037,297 respectively.

Amount Final Future

Issued of Issue Purpose of Issue Maturity Debt Service DebtService
07/01/94 690,000 WPCS Activated Treatment 07/01/18 21,310 149,167
01/26/95 15,328,600 Sewage Treatment 07/01/15 1,176,440 4,705,758
03/30/95 17,873,704 Relief Sewers 07/01/15 1,371,789 5,487,154
07/01/96 907,265 Main Out fall Sewer 01/01/20 45,363 385,588
07/01/97 595,000 Willow Run Sewer 01/01/21 29,750 282,625
04/01/98 19,140,000 Various Sewer Projects 12/01/13 1,214,231 2,434,388
09/30/04 8,231,733 Meter Replacement 07/01/15 997,645 3,990,578
12/16/04 10,951,961 Storage Basin - CSO 07/01/14 1,571,991 4,715,972
07/01/05 275,000 Barcelona Sewer Lining 07/01/26 9,133 136,997
12/01/05 33,855,000 Various Sewer Projects 12/01/17 3,867,850 24,851,400
11/19/09 137,508 Mill Street Sewer Lining 07/01/30 13,914 175,462
12/16/09 160,226 WPC Control System 07/01/20 48,790 144,706
12/10/09 89,400 WWTP Influent Screen 01/01/15 21,584 65,450
12/10/09 86,741 WWTP Roof Replacement 01/01/30 6,209 109,447
01/14/10 989,338 Sand Run SewerRecon 01/01/30 92,298 1,225,335
04/15/10 3,094,122 WaterMeter Replacement 01/01/20 184,872 1,571,413
02/24/11 1,470 2nd St Pump Station 01/01/32 - 2,175
02/24/11 225463 Massillon Rd Sewer 01/01/32 - 333,738
03/31/11 613,097 Lake Woods Pump Station 01/01/32 - 954,046
08/25/11 101,694 Goodyear CSO Retention 07/01/17 - 114,759

$ 113,347,322 $ 10,673,169 $ 51,836,158

JEDD Revenues

The City has pledged future JEDD revenues to repay JEDD revenue bonds originally issued in 2000
and 2002 for $53.2 million. These bonds were refinanced in December of 2011 with a $27.2 million
refunding bond issue. Proceeds from the original bonds issued provided financing for various water
and sewer projects. The bonds are payable solely from JEDD revenues and have a final maturity date
of December 1, 2022. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds as of
December 31, 2011 is $34,770,415. Total JEDD revenues in 201 1were $11,758,676.

Amount Final Future
[ssued of Issue Purpose of Issue Maturity Debt Service Debt Service
12/21/11 $ 27,165,000 Various Water/Sewer Projects 12/01/22 $ - $ 34,770,415
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Pledged Revenues (Continued)
Non-Tax Revenues

The City has pledged future non-tax revenues, to repay $53.7 million in non-tax revenue bonds issued
December 15, 2006 through December 15, 2011. The December 2011 bonds were issued to refund
bonds originally issued in 1997. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for various economic
development and renovation projects. The bonds are payable from non-tax revenue including fees of
licenses, fines and interest earnings. The maturity dates range from December 1, 2018 through
December 1, 2028. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds as of
December 31, 2011 is $77,521,628. Principal and interest paid for 2011 and total non-tax revenues
were $3,158,141 and $24,806,157 respectively.

NON-TAX REVENUES

Amount Final Future
Issued of Issue Purpose of Issue Maturity Debt Service Debt Service
12/15/06 $ 19,500,000 Various Econ. Dev. Proj. 12/01/26 $ 1,572,078 $ 25,163,947
09/18/08 20,150,000 Various Econ. Dev. Proj. 12/01/28 1,586,063 36,888,895
12/15/11 14,035,000 O'Neils Bldg. Renovation 12/01/18 - 15.468 786
$ 53,685,000 $ 3,158,141 $ 77,521,628

Income Tax Revenues

The City has pledged future income tax revenues, to repay $19.4 million in income tax revenue bonds
and bond anticipation notes issued at various dates ranging from March 17,2011 through

December 15, 2011. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for various liabilities, equipment,
facilities, and improvements. The bonds are payable solely from income tax revenues and have
varying maturity dates ranging from December 1, 2023 through March 17, 2031. The total principal
and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds as of December 31, 2011 is $28,551,726. Principal and
interest paid for 2011 and total income tax revenues were $1,043,154 and $115,015,815 respectively.

Amount Final Future
Issued of Issue Purpose of Issue Maturity Debt Service Debt Service
03/17/11 13,000,000 Health Benefit BAN 03/17/31 $ 1,043,154 20,863,073
12/15/11 6,405,000 Pension Accrued Liability 12/01/23 - 7,688,653
3 19,405,000 3 1,043,154 $ 28,551,726
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Pledged Revenues (Continued)
CLC Income Tax Revenues

The City’s income tax rate includes .25% Community Learning Center (CLC) income tax revenue.
This is designated exclusively for funding the Akron Public Schools’ local share in obtaining State of
Ohio grants for the construction and renovation of community learning centers (CLC) in Akron. The
City has issued bonds totaling $260 million with final maturities in 2014 and 2033. The Akron Public
Schools’ annual contribution towards this debt is $3,000,000. The City has committed each year, from
the supplemental income tax revenue, amounts sufficient to cover the City’s portion of the principal
and interest requirements. Total principal and interest remaining on bonds are $319,506,944. For
2011 total principal and interest paid by the City was $14,595,110 and total income tax revenues were
$11,545,777.

Future Debt
Issued Amount of Issue Purpose of Issue Final Maturity = Debt Service* Service
01/01/04 $ 50,000,000 Community Leaming Centers 12/01/14 $ 6,922,000 $ 19,425,000
01/01/04 165,000,000 Community Leaming Centers 12/01/33 5251,288 215,962,788
11/20/10 17,880,000 Community Leaming Centers 11/20/33 771,650 31,622,525
11/20/10 12,060,000 Community Leaming Centers 11/20/33 765,548 26,378,826
11/20/10 15,060,000 Community Leaming Centers 11/20/33 884,624 26,117,805

$ 260,000,000 $ 14,595,110 $ 319,506,944

* Net of $3,000,000 annual contribution from Akron City School District.

Pollution Remediation

GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Cost
addresses reporting standards for pollution remediation obligations. The City is aware of five sites that
meet the requirements for disclosure. The first site is a vacant, undeveloped piece of land known as
Middlebury East. The City of Akron legally obligated itself by voluntarily commencing cleanup
activities and has obtained a $750,000 grant to assist in the remediation clean-up. The projected cost to
remediate this site is estimated at approximately $1,200,000. Of this amount, $294,000 ($249,000 in
2012 and $45,000 in 2013) is left to be expended and is reflected in the Statement of Net Assets as of
December 31, 2011,

The second site is known as the Westside Depot property where the City of Akron was compelled to
take remediation action. This site use to house an underground storage tank (UST) system. During an
upgrade to this system in 1991, there was evidence of residual petroleum hydrocarbons under the tank
and the associated dispensing equipment. This site also had been the location of a previous UST
system that may have consisted of a diesel tank, gasoline tank, and kerosene tank. The projected
completion date expanded into 2013 with the estimated cost of $79,100. The amount estimated for
2012 is $37,050 and the remaining $42,050 is anticipated to be finished in 2013. These amounts are
recorded as a liability in the Airport Fund as of December 31, 2011.

The third site is for remediation work in the Landmark Building. The remediation work included
asbestos abatement, general waste removal and soil remediation activities. The total project cost was
estimated to be just under $2,000,000. The City has received funding from the Ohio Department of
Development to assist with this project. The Landmark project has been completed and we have
submitted the request for a “No Further Action” letter. Although the project is complete, we have an
outstanding liability of approximately $1,000 for an asbestos coordinator. This amount is recorded as
a liability as of December 31, 2011.
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Pollution Remediation (continued)

The fourth site is referred to as the Imperial Electric/XXth Century property. The City will conduct

demolition and remediation activities at this site estimated at approximately $1,600,000. The City was

awarded Clean Ohio Revitalization Funds to assist in the remediation of the property. The project

completion date was extended to 2012 and the estimated cost of $1,440,582 is recorded as a liability as

of December 31, 2011.

The last site is referred to as Building 116 and is located at 200 South Martha Avenue. The City has

been awarded Clean Ohio Revitalization Funds to assist in the remediation of the property. The
estimated project cost is just under $1,500,000 with $236,681expected to be spent in 2012. The
remaining project costs is recorded as a liability as of December 31, 2011

Transfers and Advances

For the year ended December 31, 2011 transfers presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) are listed in the following table. Interfund transfers are made to cover
expenditures/expenses in various funds or to consolidate inactive funds.

Governmental Funds:
General Fund
Income Tax Capital Improvement
Other Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds:
Off-Street Parking

The table below presents the amounts the City has advanced to various funds during 2011.

Governmental Funds:

General Fund

Transfers In

Income Tax Other Other Internal
Transfers General Capital Governmental Enterprise Service
Out Fund Improvement Funds Funds Funds Total

$ 5,938,822 § - 3 $ 5,408,662 $ 530,160 $ $ 5,938,822
595,182 - - 595,182 - - 595,182
6,172,501 558,143 10,108 5,573,225 - 31,025 6,172,501
12,706,505 558,143 10,108 11,577,069 530,160 31,025 12,706,505
164 164 164
164 164 164
$ 12,706,669 $ 558,143 $ 10,108 $ 11,577,233 $ 530,160 § 31,025 $ 12,706,669

Advanced To

Other
Advanced Governmental
From Funds Total
§ 86,648 $ 86,648 $ 86,648
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24,

Contingencies
) Litigation

The City is a defendant in a number of lawsuits pertaining to matters that are incidental to
performing routine governmental functions. The City Law Director is of the opinion that
ultimate settlement of all outstanding litigation and claims will not result in a material adverse
effect on the City’s financial position.

) Federal and State Grants

The City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review
and audit by the grantor agencies or their designees. Such audits could lead to a request for
reimbursement to the grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the
grants. The City believes that such disallowances, if any, would not have a material adverse
effect on the City’s financial position.

Closure and Post-Closure Care Costs

Pursuant to a ruling by the Ohio EPA, the Hardy Road Landfill officially closed on June 30, 2002.
The City has begun diverting its waste to Waste Management’s American Landfill located in Stark
County. As part of a 1998 agreement, the City agreed to use landfill facilities controlled by Akron
Regional Landfill, Inc., (a subsidiary of Waste Management) for disposal of ninety percent of the
refuse collected by the City’s sanitation division.

On October 4, 2004, the City entered into an Agreement with the Summit/Akron Solid Waste
Management Authority (Authority) implementing a $1.20 per ton increase in the waste management
generation fee by the Authority to help fund the closure and post-closure operations of the landfill.

Jointly Governed Organizations

Reported as a non-major special revenue fund in the City’s CAFR, the Akron Metropolitan Area
Transportation Study (AMATS) is an association of various local political subdivisions in the Akron
area whose purpose is to develop and implement a comprehensive and continuing transportation plan
for Summit, Portage and parts of Wayne County. The operations of AMATS are financed primarily
by federal and state grants and local matching contributions. AMATS is staffed by employees of the
City of Akron Department of Planning and Urban Development, and support functions are performed
by various departments of the City. The City also makes all disbursements on behalf of AMATS and
is reimbursed by the AMATS local share and grant funds. Most of AMATS’ grant funds are deposited
in a trust fund with Summit County (not included in the City’s books), while some funds are deposited
directly with the City of Akron.
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Jointly Governed Organizations (continued)

The Akron/Summit Convention and Visitors’ Bureau (Convention Center) was constructed by the City
of Akron along with the County of Summit and the University of Akron, with the City paying
approximately 26% of the construction costs. The Convention Center contains meeting rooms, an
exhibit hall, and a large ballroom-banquet facility to accommodate a wide range of seminars, trade
shows, and major community events.

Related Organization

The City of Akron, in conjunction with Summit County, University of Akron, Medina County, and
Greater Akron Chamber of Commerce, agreed to form the Summit Medina Business Alliance
(SMBA). SMBA is a not-for-profit corporation which supports economic development of the region.
The organization entered into an agreement with the Kent Regional Business Alliance to carry out
activities in cooperation with the Ohio Department of Development and the Small Business
Administration. The Mayor of the City of Akron appoints three of the five voting members of the
board of trustees of the Summit Medina Business Alliance. The SMBA does not pose a financial
burden on the City of Akron since it receives revenues from the City and other governments in the
area. During 2011, the City paid SMBA $75,000 for operating expenses.
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Fund Balance

Fund balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and/or unassigned based

primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources in the government funds. The constraints placed on fund balance for the major
governmental funds and all other governmental funds are presented below:

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:

Non-financial assets held for resale

Total nonspendable

Restricted for:

General government

Public safety
Public service
Public health

Community environment
Other capital projects

Debt service
Total restricted

Committed to:

General government
Community environment
Other capital projects

Total committed

Assigned to:

General government

Public safety
Public service
Public health

Community environment
Recreation and parks
Subsequent year appropriation of fund balance

Total assigned

Unassigned

Total fund balances
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Income
Community Tax Other Total
General Learning Capital Governmental Governmental
Fund Centers Improvement Funds Funds

$ - $ - $ - $ 3,085,645 $ 3,085,645
- - - 3,085,645 3,085,645

- - - 12,392,759 12,392,759

- 1,629,496 1,629,496

- - - 613,254 613,254

- 10,808 10,808

- 81,330,401 - 8,767,663 90,098,064

- - 6,784,301 - 6,784,301

- - - 31,321,340 31,321,340

- 81,330,401 6,784,301 54,735,320 142,850,022

- - - 914,404 914,404

- - - 4,037,425 4,037,425

- - - 496,452 496,452

- - - 5,448,281 5,448,281

351,169 - - - 351,169
517,450 - - - 517,450
301,231 - - - 301,231
4,454 - - - 4,454

1,279 - - - 1,279
61,889 - - - 61,889
5,000 - - - 5,000
1,242,472 - - - 1,242,472
7,901,719 - ~ (40,623,253) (32,721,534)
$ 9,144,191 $ 81,330,401 $ 6784301 $ 22,645,993 $ 119,904,886
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29,

Restatement of Beginning Balances

Effective January 1, 2011, the City recorded an adjustment to beginning balances for the

reclassification of funds and the implementation of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting

and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. The reclassification of funds resulted in a change in
beginning balances as reported in the financial statements. The following balances were restated:

Balance as of January 1, 2011
January 1, 2011 Restatement as Restated
Governmental Funds:
General $ 6,089,582 $ (3,396,293) § 2,693,289
Community Learning Centers 95,667,171 - 95,667,171
Income Tax Capital Improvement 12,045,876 4,129,564 16,175,440
Other Governmental Funds 26,905,557 (1,010,740) 25,894,817
140,708,186 (277,469) 140,430,717
Proprietary Funds:
Enterprise Funds:
Water 97.982,978 (154,199) 97,828,779
Sewer 195,392,731 129,376 195,522,107
Off-Street Parking 85,489,531 (212,863) 85,276,668
Other Enterprise Funds 9,921,110 308,567 10,229,677
388,786,350 70,881 388,857,231
Internal Service Funds (19,610,364) 206,588 (19,403,776)
Total $ 509,884,172 $ - $ 509,884,172

Fiscal Analysis

On September 30, 2011, the City was declared in Fiscal Caution by the Auditor of State. City
management’s has prepared and provided an acceptable plan to the Auditor of State. The City is
implementing changes and is on schedule addressing remaining items.

Subsequent Event
On February 13, 2012, City Council passed ordinance 43-2012 authorizing the issuance of Health
Benefit Claims Notes in the maximum principal amount of §13,000,000 to pay the costs of

maintaining the self-insurance program for employee health care benefits.

On May 21, 2012, City Council passed ordinance 170-2012, authorizing the issuance and sale of

bonds of the City in a maximum principal amount of $190,000,000 for the purpose of refunding bonds

previously issued by the City for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, improving, renovating,
repairing, enlarging, adding to, reconstructing, maintaining, equipping, furnishing, acquiring interests
in real property in connection with, improving the sites of, and otherwise improving, Community

Learning Centers.
ook ok ook
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Income taxes
Property taxes
JEDD revenues
Inheritance
Local government
Setvice revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Transfer-in
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures and other uses
Expenditures:
Civil Service Commission:
Wages/benefits
Other

Finance:
Wages/benefits
Other

Law:
Wages/benefits
Other

Legislative:
Wages/benefits
Other

Municipal Court - Clerk:
Wages/benefits
Other

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
General Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgged Amounts

Original

Final

Actual Amounts

$ 74,394,500 74,394,500 $ 80,352,236
21,314,863 21,314,863 20,983,845
2,432,330 2,857,080 1,472,000
4,461,030 5,240,060 3,804,916
11,153,531 10,917,224 12,378,170
21,774,100 25,576,470 20,416,440
5,204,540 6,113,390 15,210,527
140,734,894 146,413 587 154,618,134
- 3,650,000 -

1,799,531 1,799,531 1,799,531
1,799,531 5,449 531 1,799,531
142,534,425 151,863,118 156,417,665
754,440 829,440 822,804
94,123 74,123 56,946
848,563 903,563 879,750
1,791,500 1,911,500 1,881,729
4,669,857 4,459,857 4,467,963
6,461,357 6,371,357 6,349,692
2,959,100 2,959,100 2,913,439
941,836 1,031,836 960,834
3,900,936 3,990,936 3,874,273
982,970 982,970 969,247
189,291 189,291 173,713
1,172,261 1,172,261 1,142,960
3,093,550 3,153,550 3,116,353
252,166 272,166 266,049
3,345,716 3,425,716 3,382,402
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Municipal Court - Judges:
Wages/benefits
Other

Office of the Mayor:
Wages/benefits
Other

Planning:
Wages/benefits
Other

Public Health:
Wages/benefits
Other

Public Safety:
Wages/benefits
Other

Public Service:
Wages/benefits
Other
Capital outlay

Fire:
Wages/benefits
Other

Police:
Wages/benefits
Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2011, as restated

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
General Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011
(continued)

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Amounts
3,406,090 3,536,090 3,609,612
177,147 297,147 274,970
3,583,237 3,833,237 3,884,582
1,951,510 1,886,510 1,862,861
258,214 258,214 232,483
2,209,724 2,144,724 2,095,344
870,720 870,720 842,668
132,755 357,755 876,927
1,003,475 1,228,475 1,719,595
250,000 635,000 633,666
5,425,432 4,095,432 4,057,766
5,675,432 4,730,432 4,691,432
5,505,730 4,880,730 4,702,017
9,567,281 9,392,281 9,014,281
15,073,011 14,273,011 13,716,298
11,168,450 12,468,450 12,453,771
17,381,715 23,653,715 22,889,081
- 28,000 15,495
28,550,165 36,150,165 35,358,347
23,382,660 25,182,660 25,182,640
1,423,334 2,623,334 2,583,342
24,805,994 27,805,994 27,765,982
42,584,280 44,384,280 44,081,220
3,710,381 4,910,381 4,443,801
46,294,661 49,294,661 48,525,021
142,924,532 155,324,532 153,385,678
(390,107) (3,461,414) 3,031,987
3,462,346 3,462,346 940,731
$ 3,072,239 $ 932 3,972,718
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Community Learning Centers Fund, Non-GAAP Basis

Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Income taxes
Governmental revenues
Miscellaneous revenue

Other sources:
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures
Department Wide:
Other
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2011

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance- Budget and Actual-

For the Year Ended December 31,2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 13,100,570 $ 2,617,770 $ 11,569,358
1,416,690 283,090 1,079,676
1,416,690 283,090 369,715
15,933,950 3,183,950 13,018,749
450,958 450,958 450,958
450,958 450,958 450,958
16,384,908 3,634,908 13,469,707
15,943,859 18,543,859 14,864,954
372,099 372,099 -
16,315,958 18,915,958 14,864,954
68,950 (15,281,050) (1,395,247)
15,402,265 15,402,265 15,402,265
$ 15,471,215 $ 121,215 $ 14,007,018
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Income taxes
JEDD revenues
Governmental revenues
Gasoline tax
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures
Expenditures:
Department Wide:
Wages/benefits
Other
Captial outlay

Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues and other
sources over expenditures
Fund balance, January 1, 2011, as restated

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 21,330,650 $ 20,690,730 $ 25,907,212
1,093,460 1,060,660 920,000
2,734,040 2,652,020 2,544,369
1,046,930 1,015,520 1,826,000
2,601,040 2,523,010 777,356
28,806,120 27,941,940 31,974,937
193,880 188,060 1,146,056
234,495 234,495 234,495
428,375 422,555 1,380,551
29,234,495 28,364,495 33,355,488
728,610 668,610 650,321
35,732,938 35,732,938 35,899,758
1,163,397 873,397 865,439
37,624,945 37,274,945 37,415,518
(8,390,450) (8,910,450) (4,060,030)
8,917,844 8,917,844 9,202,335

$ 527,394 $ 7,394 $ 5,142305
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City of Akron, Ohio
Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund, Community Learning Centers Fund and Income Tax Capital Improvement Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011
Budgetary Data
The City’s budgetary process is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis
other than on generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The actual results of
operations are presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule in accordance with the City’s
budgetary process (budget basis) to provide a meaningful comparison of actual results with the budget.

The legal level of budgetary control is by category for each department within each fund. The
categories are wages/benefits, other, and capital outlay.

The major differences between budget basis and GAAP basis in the General Fund, the Community
Learning Centers Fund, and Income Tax Capital Improvement are:

1. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget) as opposed to when the liability is
incurred (GAAP).

3. Encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures (budget) as opposed to

allocation of fund balances (GAAP).

Recognition of certain revenues may be reclassified between funds to facilitate matching with the
related expenditures.

Community Income Tax
Learning Capital
General Centers Improvement

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues and other

financing sources over expenditures and

other financing uses (budgetary basis) $ 3,031,987 $  (1,395247) $  (4,060,030)
Adjustments:
To adjust revenues for accruals (10,584,975) 4,911,960 903,773
To adjust expenditures for accruals 12,766,418 (17,887,610) (6,581,863)
To adjust for encumbrances 1,237,472 34,127 346,981
Net change in fund balance (GAAP basis) $ 6,450,902 $  (14,336,770) $  (9,391,139)

*okk KK K
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds - are used to account for types of resources for which specific uses are mandated
by City ordinances or federal and state statutes, The title of the fund is descriptive of the activities
accounted for therein. The non-major Special Revenue Funds are:

To Account for Special Purposes:

Income Tax Collection Canal Park Stadium COPs
Emergency Medical Service Downtown District Heating COPs
Special Assessment Off-Street Parking COPs

Street and Highway Maintenance Public Health

Street Assessment Safety Programs

Tax Equivalency City Facilities Operating

E.D.A. Revolving Loans Various Purpose Funding

Joint Economic Development Districts Deposits

Akron Muni. Court Information System

Federal and/or State Statutes
to Account for Grants and Subsidies:

Community Development H.O.M.E. Program

Air Pollution Control Police Grants

Community Environment Grants Various Domestic Violence
Akron Metro. Area Transportation Study Health Grants
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued)

Debt Service Funds - are used to account for the accumulation of financial resources for, and the
payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. The non-major Debt
Service Funds are as follows:

General Bond Payment Non-Tax Revenue Bond Payment
Debt Service Bond Payment Pension Obligation Refunding
Special Assessment Bond Payment JEDD Bond Payment

Main Place Bond Payment CLC Bond Payment

Market Valley Urban Renewal Bond Payment ~ Taxable Revenue Bond Payment
Downtown Hotel Bond Payment

Capital Project Funds - are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by Proprietary Funds). The non-major
Capital Projects Funds are as follows:

To Account for Grant Revenue and Other Funding_Sources:

Non-appropriated Capital Projects Parks and Recreation

Road and Bridge Improvements Public Facilities and Improvements
Streets Public Parking

Information Technology and Improvements Economic Development
Transportation
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Income Tax Collection Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Income taxes $ 5,051,370 $ 4,382,320 $ 5,721,184
Miscellaneous revenues 988,630 857,680 156,297
6,040,000 5,240,000 5,877,481
Other sources:

Previous year's encumbrances 69,783 69,783 69,783
Total revenues and other sources 6,109,783 5,309,783 5,947,264
Expenditures
Expenditures:

General Governmental:
Finance:
Wages/benefits 2,151,190 2,101,190 2,047,148
Other 4,335,813 4,035,813 3,817,728
Total expenditures 6,487,003 6,137,003 5,864,876
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

sources over expenditures (377,220) (827,220) 82,388
Fund balance, January 1, 2011 855,733 855,733 855,733
Fund balance, December 31, 2011 $ 478,513 $ 28,513 $ 938,121
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:

Property taxes

Transport billing

Other revenue

Other sources:

Transfer-in

Previous year's encumbrances
Total other sources

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures
Expenditures:

Emergency Medical Services:

Fire:
Wages/benefits
Other
Captial outlay

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund deficit, January 1, 2011

Fund balance (deficit), December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Emergency Medical Service Fund,

Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 9,236,094 $ 9,236,094 $ 8,255,710
1,790,000 1,790,000 1,736,175
1,360,400 1,360,400 54,013
12,386,494 12,386,494 10,045,898
400,000 13,400,000 -
167,247 167,247 167,247
567,247 13,567,247 167,247
12,953,741 25,953,741 10,213,145
10,591,750 10,791,750 8,571,093
1,310,102 11,354,102 1,331,734
37,145 18,145 17,180
11,938,997 22,163,997 9,920,007
1,014,744 3,789,744 293,138
(3,757,453) (3,757,453) (3,757,453)
$ (2,742,709 8 32,291 $ (3,464,315)
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Special assessments
Service revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Transfer-in
Note/bond proceeds
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures
Expenditures:
General Governmental:
Finance:
Wages/benefits
Other

Public Service:
Wages/benefits
Other
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2011, as restated

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ghio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Special Assessment Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts

$ 1,214,790 $

1,214,790 $ 2,169,702

. - 175,537

25,210 25,210 9,781,271

1,240,000 1,240,000 12,126,510

- 15,500,000 -

. - 9,611,128

137,425 137,425 137,425

137,425 15,637,425 9,748,553

1,377,425 16,877,425 21,875,063

384,440 399,440 394,305

293,675 1,433,675 1,307,882

678,115 1,833,115 1,702,187

- 4,055,000 4,054,768

- 10,905,000 16,336,145

- 109,000 108,611

- 15,069,000 20,499,524

678,115 16,902,115 22,201,711
699,310 (24,690) (326,648)

1,471,807 1,471,807 5,317,198

$§ 2,171,117 $

1,447,117 $ 4,990,550
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Police Pension Employer's Liability Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgﬁed Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 089,581 $ 989,581 $
Total revenues 989,581 989,581 -
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Public Safety:
Police:
Other 373,100 18,100
Total expenditures 373,100 18,100 -
Excess of revenues
over expenditures 616,481 971,481
Fund balance, January 1, 2011, as restated 17,625 17,625
Fund balance, December 31, 2011 $ 634,106 $ 989,106 $ -
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Fire Pension Employer's Liability Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 089,581 $ 089,581 $
Total revenues 989,581 989,581
Expenditures

Expenditures:
Public Safety:
Fire:
Other 373,100 18,100

Total expenditures 373,100 18,100

Excess of revenues

over expenditures 616,481 971,481
Fund balance, January 1, 2011, as restated 17,625 17,625
Fund balance, December 31, 2011 $ 634,106 $ 989,106 $
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-

Street and Highway Maintenance Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Gasoline tax
Motor vehicle license tax
Service revenues
Transfer from State of Ohio
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
General fund subsidy
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures
Expenditures:
Public Safety:
Wages/benefits
Other
Capital outlay

Public Service:
Wages/benefits

Other
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund deficit, January 1, 2011

Fund balance (deficit), December 31, 2011

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Origi_nal Final Actual Amounts

$ 2,651,490 $ 3,358,560 $ 4,018,717
1,144,430 1,449,610 2,438,713
565,150 715,860 592,698
1,554,160 1,968,600 1,406,775
1,106,750 1,401,880 267,662
7,021,980 8,894,510 8,724,565
1,978,020 2,505,490 900,000
231,429 231,429 231,429
2,209,449 2,736,919 1,131,429
9,231,429 11,631,429 9,855,994
. - (340)
4815 15 -
10,000 - -
14,815 15 (340)
5,815,570 6,110,570 4,766,971
2,850,583 3,900,583 3,766,544
- 11,000 10,438
8,666,153 10,022,153 8,543,953
8,680,968 10,022,168 8,543,613
550,461 1,609,261 1,312,381
(1,538,296) (1,538,296) (1,538,296)
$ (987,835 § 70,965 $  (225915)
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues;
Special assessments
Service revenues

Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures
Expenditures:
Public Service:
Wages/benefits
Other

Total expenditures

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Street Assessment Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

sources over expenditures

Fund balance (deficit), January 1, 2011

as restated

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 8,826,830 7,257,610 $ -
173,170 142,390 -
9,000,000 7,400,000 -
768,450 768,450 768,450
768,450 768,450 768,450
9,768,450 8,168,450 768,450
3,543,060 - .
7,695,750 13,283,810 -
11,238,810 13,283,810 -
(1,470,360) (5,115,360) 768,450

5,201,291 5,201,291 (768,450)

$ 3,730,931 85,931 $ -
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Governmental revenues
Income taxes
Service revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures
Expenditures:
Department Wide:
Wages/benefits
Other
Capital Outlay

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues and other

sources over expenditures

Fund deficit, January 1, 2011

Fund balance (deficit), December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Community Development Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 16,161,200 $ 27,294,260 $ 14,044,093
- - 2,036,470
148,790 251,280 875,795
590,010 996,460 2,782,971
16,900,000 28,542,000 19,739,329
- - 235,577
9,501,639 9,501,639 9,501,639
9,501,639 9,501,639 9,737,216
26,401,639 38,043,639 29,476,545
2,737,700 2,537,700 2,250,352
21,600,228 20,550,228 13,154,987
559,701 1,209,701 861,537
24,897,629 24,297,629 16,266,876
24,897,629 24,297,629 16,266,876
1,504,010 13,746,010 13,209,669
(13,742,324) (13,742,324) (13,742,324)
$ (12,238314)  § 3,686 $ (532,655)
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Local emission/asbestos fees
Federal grant
State general revenue
State permit fees
Service revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Public Health:
Wages/benefits
Other
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund deficit, January 1, 2011

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Air Pollution Control Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budggted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 88,240 $ 30,880 $ -
1,176,470 411,760 -
- - 319,735
147,060 51,470 -
588,230 205,890 264,642
2,000,000 700,000 584,377
14,102 14,102 14,102
14,102 14,102 14,102
2,014,102 714,102 598,479
250,000 308,400 308,219
34,102 116,702 40,692
284,102 425,102 348,911
1,730,000 289,000 249,568
(249,568) (249,568) (249,568)
$ 1,480,432 $ 39,432 $ -
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Community Environment Grants Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Governmental revenues $ 337,680 $ 385,300 $ 285,874
Miscellaneous revenues 52,320 59,700 173,424
390,000 445,000 459,298
Other sources:
Previous year's encumbrances 53,129 53,129 53,129
53,129 53,129 53,129
Total revenues and other sources 443,129 498,129 512,427
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Department Wide:
Other 453,129 653,129 345,082
Total expenditures 453,129 653,129 345,082
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures (10,000) (155,000) 167,345
Fund balance, January 1, 2011, as restated 148,514 148,514 74,833
Fund balance (deficiency), December 31, 2011 $ 138,514 $ (6,486) $ 242,178
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Akron Metropolitan Area Transportation Study Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:

Federal/State grants $ 2,094,780 $ 2,433,930 $ 1,948,186

Service revenues 5,220.00 6,070.00 -

Miscellaneous revenues - - 115

2,100,000 2,440,000 1,948,301
Other sources:

Previous year's encumbrances 21,574 21,574 21,574
Total revenues and other sources 2,121,574 2,461,574 1,969,875
Expenditures
Expenditures:

AMATS:
Planning:
Wages/benefits 1,374,870 1,374,870 1,324,335
Other 647,414 647,414 358,860
Total expenditures 2,022,284 2,022,284 1,683,195
Excess of revenues and other

sources over expenditures 99,290 439,290 286,680
Fund deficit, January 1, 2011 (433,935) (433,935) (433,935)
Fund balance (deficit), December 31, 2011 $ (334,645)  § 5,355 $ (147,255)
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
H.O.M.E. Program Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Governmental revenues $ 2,684,310 $ 961,270 $ 817,059
Service revenues 108,820 38,970 -
Miscellaneous revenues 166,870 59,760 65,889
2,960,000 1,060,000 882,948
Other sources:
Previous year's encumbrances 225,001 225,001 225,001
225,001 225,001 225,001
Total revenues and other sources 3,185,001 1,285,001 1,107,949
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Department Wide:
Wages/benefits 117,000 117,000 -
Other 2,033,001 1,533,001 988,083
2,150,001 1,650,001 988,083
Total expenditures 2,150,001 1,650,001 988,083
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures 1,035,000 (365,000) 119,866
Fund balance, January 1, 2011 427,064 427,064 427,064
Fund balance, December 31, 2011 $ 1,462,064 $ 62,064 $ 546,930
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Tax Equivalency Fund, Non-GA AP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:

Taxes and assessments $ 54,640 $ 620,860 $ 937,052

Income taxes - -

Miscellaneous revenues 360 4,140 456,783

55,000 625,000 1,393,835
Other sources:

Previous year's encumbrances 10,983 10,983 10,983
Total revenues and other sources 65,983 635,983 1,404,818
Expenditures
Expenditures:

Department Wide:
Other 561,983 2,361,983 2,262,819
Total expenditures 561,983 2,361,983 2,262,819
Deficiency of revenues and other

sources over expenditures (496,000) (1,726,000) (858,001)
Fund balance, January 1, 2011 1,725,652 1,725,652 1,725,652
Fund balance (deficit), December 31, 2011 $ 1,229,652 $ (348) $ 867,651
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Revenues
Revenues:
Miscellaneous revenues

Total revenues
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Office of the Mayor
Other
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues

over expenditures

Fund deficit, January 1, 2011

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio B-16

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
E.D.A. Revolving Loans Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Amounts

$ 85,000 $ 85,000 $ 53,165

85,000 85,000 53,165

50,000 50,000 590

50,000 50,000 590

35,000 35,000 52,575
(34,372) (34,372) (34,372)

$ 628 $ 628 $ 18,203
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Joint Economic Development Districts Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
JEDD revenues $ 12,069,760 $ 12,436,740 $ 15,428,112
Income taxes - 60,360
Governmental revenue - - -
Service revenues 357,240 368,100 124,434
Miscellaneous revenues 178,520 183,950 147,601
12,605,520 12,988,790 15,760,507
Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds 2,194,480 2,261,210 -
Tranfers-in 25,100,000 -
Previous year's encumbrances 1,383,929 1,383,929 1,383,929
3,578,409 28,745,139 1,383,929
Total revenues and other sources 16,183,929 41,733,929 17,144,436
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Department Wide:
Wages/benefits 231,850 231,850 186,525
Other 13,023,521 40,023,521 15,317,064
Capital Outlay 2,706,558 706,558 234,559
Total expenditures 15,961,929 40,961,929 15,738,148
Excess of revenues and other
sources over expenditures 222,000 772,000 1,406,288
Fund deficit, January 1, 2011 (890,037) (890,037) (890,037)
Fund balance (deficit), December 31, 2011 $ (668,037)  § (118,037  $ 516,251
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City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Akron Municipal Court Information System Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Service revenues $ 315,000 $ 315,000 $ 261,065
Other sources:
Previous year's encumbrances 39,062 39,062 39,062
39,062 39,062 39,062
Total revenues and other sources 354,062 354,062 300,127
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Court Clerk:
Other 101,795 426,795 340,029
Judges:
Other 180,917 255,917 175,463
Total expenditures 282,712 682,712 515,492
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures 71,350 (328,650) (215,365)
Fund balance, January 1, 2011 1,013,553 1,013,553 1,013,553
Fund balance, December 31, 2011 $ 1,084,903 $ 684,903 $ 798,188
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Governmental revenues
Service revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures
Expenditures:
Court Clerk:
Other

Public Health:

Wages/benefits
Other

Public Service:
Wages/benefits
Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2011, as restated

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Public Health Fund, Non-GA AP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

B-19

Ori&inal Final Actual Amounts
$ 119,930 $ 21,360 $ 18,460
557,930 99,360 51,150
52,140 9,280 569
730,000 130,000 70,179
26,890 26,890 26,890

26,890 26,890 26,890
756,890 156,890 97,069
40,000 40,000 -

7,000 7,000 4,857

18,404 463,404 453,973

25,404 470,404 458,830
425,990 990 -
98,586 178,586 -
524,576 179,576 -
589,980 689,980 458,830
166,910 (533,090) (361,761)
536,217 536,217 371,984

$ 703,127 $ 3,127 $ 10,223
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Governmental revenues
Property taxes
Service revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures
Expenditures:
Police:
Wages/benefits
Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

sources over expenditures

Fund deficit, January 1, 2011

Fund balance (deficit), December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Police Grants Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

B-20

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts

$ 2,114,900 $ 3,124,780 $ 1,762,289
- - 806,000

11,540 17,040 -
596,010 880,630 180,199
2,722,450 4,022,450 2,748,488
275,762 275,762 275,762
275,762 275,762 275,762
2,998,212 4,298,212 3,024,250
2,433,470 2,433,470 2,113,342
1,106,542 1,106,542 530,788
3,540,012 3,540,012 2,644,130
3,540,012 3,540,012 2,644,130
(541,800) 758,200 380,120
(719,194) (719,194) (719,194)
$  (1,260,994) $ 39,006 $ (339,074
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City of Akron, Ohio B-21

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Various Domestic Violence Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Governmental revenues $ 28,470 $ 28,470 $ -
Miscellaneous revenues 142,350 142,350 1
170,820 170,820 1
Other sources:
General fund subsidy 189,790 189,790 -
Transfer-in - 40,000 -
Previous year's encumbrances 21,789 21,789 21,789
211,579 251,579 21,789
Total revenues and other sources 382,399 422,399 21,790
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Law;
Other 99,009 124,009 -
Total expenditures 99,009 124,009 -
Excess of revenues and other
sources over expenditures 283,390 298,390 21,790
Fund deficit, January 1, 2011, as restated (295,944) (295,944) (21,790)
Fund deficit, December 31, 2011 $ (12,554) $ 2,446 $ -
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City of Akron, Ohio B-22

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Safety Programs Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Governmental revenues $ 782,830 $ 1,656,690 $ 4,475,646
Income taxes - - 8,000
Service revenues 584,340 1,236,620 1,219,006
Miscellaneous revenues 782,830 1,656,690 202,878
2,150,000 4,550,000 5,905,530
Other sources:
Previous year's encumbrances 294511 294,511 294,511
294,511 294,511 294,511
Total revenues and other sources 2,444,511 4,844,511 6,200,041
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Public Safety:
Wages/benefits 327,510 367,510 357,794
Other 290,470 1,170,470 1,090,504
Capital Outlay 551,677 51,677 5,000
1,169,657 1,589,657 1,453,298
Public Service:
Other 10,000 10,000 2,601
10,000 10,000 2,601
Fire:
Wages/benefits 3,015,190 3,155,190 3,126,003
Other 110,072 115,072 13,860
3,125,262 3,270,262 3,139,863
Police:
Wages/benefits 2,463,820 1,263,820 1,104,417
Other 756,551 781,551 586,377
Capital outlay 60,500 60,500 47,813
3,280,871 2,105,871 1,738,607
Total expenditures 7,585,790 6,975,790 6,334,369
Deficiency of revenues and other
sources over expenditures (5,141,279) (2,131,279) (134,328)
Fund balance, January 1, 2011, as restated 2,183,970 2,183,970 2,093,512
Fund balance (deficit), December 31, 2011 $  (2,957,309) $ 52,691 $ 1,959,184
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Governmental revenues
Service revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Public Health:

Wages/benefits

Other
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2011

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Health Grants Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Origi_nal Final Actual Amounts

$ 5,155,390 $ 1,205,810 $ 1,072,031
822,670 192,420 22,412
548,440 128,270 50,851
6,526,500 1,526,500 1,145,294
479,823 479,823 479,823
479,823 479,823 479,823
7,006,323 2,006,323 1,625,117
144,500 144,500 115,000
876,323 1,956,323 1,461,275
1,020,823 2,100,823 1,576,275
5,985,500 (94,500) 48,842
231,897 231,897 231,897

$ 6,217,397 $ 137,397 $ 280,739
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City Facilities Operating Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Income taxes
Taxes and assessments
Governmental revenues
Service revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds
General fund subsidy
Transfer-in
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures
Expenditures:
Department Wide:
Wages/benefits
Other
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues and other
sources over expenditures
Fund deficit, January 1, 2011, as restated

Fund deficit, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budggted Amounts

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 230,120 $ 236,690 $ 1,445,732
434,680 447,070
2,776,810 2,856,010
424,450 436,550
4,883,720 5,023,020 18,295,921
8,749,780 8,999,340 19,741,653
4,602,450 4,733,720 490,000
1,022,770 1,051,940 3,600,000
- 22,600,000 -
1,380,995 1,380,995 1,380,995
7,006,215 29,766,655 5,470,995
15,755,995 38,765,995 25,212,648
388,180 138,180 -
10,279,643 17,339,643 8,295,944
3,612,872 537,872 266,146
14,280,695 18,015,695 8,562,090
1,475,300 20,750,300 16,650,558
(20,723,290) (20,723,290) (16,237,785)
$ (19,247,990) $ 27,010 $ 412,773
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Income taxes
Governmental revenues
Service revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Interfund transfers
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Department Wide:
Wages/benefits
Other

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2011, as restated

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Various Purpose Funding Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 111,890 $ 89,350 $ 166,600
1,874,110 1,496,650 1,907,974
1,146,850 915,860 1,012,179
839,150 670,140 2,808,841
3,972,000 3,172,000 5,895,594
971,295 971,295 971,295
971,295 971,295 971,295
4,943,295 4,143,295 6,866,889
907,180 607,180 401,621
4,860,095 5,160,095 4,178,377
5,767,275 5,767,275 4,579,998
(823,980) (1,623,980) 2,286,891
1,681,686 1,681,686 2,453,710
$ 857,706 $ 57,706 $ 4,740,601
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Service revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Transfer-in
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures
Expenditures:
Finance:
Other

Planning and Urban Development:

Other

Public Safety:
Other

Public Service:
Other

Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2011, as restated

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Deposits Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
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Ori@al Final Actual Amounts
$ 201,920 $ 201,920 $ -
1,898,080 1,898,080 635,533
2,100,000 2,100,000 635,533
- 3,000 -
670 670 670
670 3,670 670
2,100,670 2,103,670 636,203
3,825,000 3,825,000 1,491,109
5,670 490,670 -
- 17,000 -
338,000 -
- 338,000 -
3,830,670 4,670,670 1,491,109
(1,730,000) (2,567,000) (854,906)
2,567,529 2,567,529 1,760,942
$ 837,529 3 529 $ 906,036
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Property taxes
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures
Expenditures:
Finance:
Wages/benefits
Other

Total expenditures

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-

General Bond Payment Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgged Amounts

B-27

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2011

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

OrigLLal Final Actual Amounts
$ 1,334,167 $ 1,334,167 478,570
- - 342
1,334,167 1,334,167 478,912
1,154 1,154 1,154
1,335,321 1,335,321 480,066
410,200 420,200 416,563
118,854 118,854 105,748
529,054 539,054 522,311
806,267 796,267 (42,245)
907,175 907,175 907,175
$ 1,713,442 $ 1,703,442 864,930
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City of Akron, Chio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-

Non-appropriated Capital Projects Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Governmental revenues $ 2,061,200 $ 2,061,200 $ -
Miscellaneous revenues 304,910 304,910 6,081,637
2,366,110 2,366,110 6,081,637
Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds 1,544,890 1,544,890 -
Transfer-in - 6,500,000 -
Previous year's encumbrances 870,467 870,467 870,467
2,415,357 8,915,357 870,467
Total revenues and other sources 4,781,467 11,281,467 6,952,104
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Public Service:
Other 1,579,314 4,744,314 2,703,785
Capital outlay 451,153 2,226,153 -
Total expenditures 2,030,467 6,970,467 2,703,785
Excess of revenues and other
sources over expenditures 2,751,000 4,311,000 4,248,319
Fund deficit, January 1, 2011 (4,248,319) (4,248,319) (4,248,319)
Fund balance (deficit), December 31, 2011 $ (1,497,319) $ 62,681 $ -
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Governmental revenues
Gasoline tax
Motor vehicle license tax
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds
Transfer-in
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures
Expenditures:
Planning:
Wages/benefits
Other
Capital outlay

Public Service:
Wages/benefits
Other
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues and other

sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2011

Fund balance (deficit), December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Road and Bridge Improvement Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 443,300 $ 443,300 $ -
1,734,000 1,734,000 1,211,767
1,055,480 1,055,480 402,283
21,110 21,110 2,364,313
3,253,890 3,253,890 3,978,363
349,820 349,820 -
- 6,700,000 -
1,614,887 1,614,887 1,614,887
1,964,707 8,664,707 1,614,887
5,218,597 11,918,597 5,593,250
- - 876,891
- - 876,891
20,000 20,000 -
5,556,122 11,306,122 5,729,785
2,058,765 1,558,765 -
7,634,887 12,884,887 5,729,785
7,634,887 12,884,887 6,606,676
(2,416,290) (966,290) (1,013,426)
1,013,426 1,013,426 1,013,426
$ (1,402,864) $ 47,136 $ -
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Income taxes
JEDD revenues
Taxes and assessments
Governmental revenues
Service revenues
Gasoline tax
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds
Transfer-in
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources

Expenditures
Expenditures:
Public Service;
Wages/benefits
Other
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
Excess of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund deficit, January 1, 2011

Fund balance (deficit), December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Streets Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

B-30

Origillal Final Actual Amounts
$ 1,680,860 $ 1,680,860 $ 394,128
- - 132,877

2,140,300 2,140,300 663,622
2,661,370 2,661,370 4,101,241
1,708,880 1,708,880 447,709
3,081,580 3,081,580 651,774
4,801,670 4,801,670 15,065,005
16,074,660 16,074,660 21,456,356
14,175,290 14,175,290 17,927,756

- 22,500,000 -

2,142,966 2,142,966 2,142,966
16,318,256 38,818,256 20,070,722
32,392,916 54,892,916 41,527,078
500,000 500,000 123,814
5,290,605 26,150,605 23,687,449
10,017,361 13,017,361 5,050,082
15,807,966 39,667,966 28,861,345
16,584,950 15,224,950 12,665,733

(15,169,168)

(15,169,168)

(15,169,168)

$ 1,415,782

55,782

$  (2,503,435)

156



City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
[nformation Technology and Improvements Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue $ 550,000 $ 550,000 $ -
550,000 550,000 -
Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds - - 450,000
Previous year's encumbrances 50,118 50,118 50,118
50,118 50,118 500,118
Total revenues and other sources 600,118 600,118 500,118
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Public Service:
Other - 30,000 29,544
Capital outlay 100,118 70,118 4,156
Total expenditures 100,118 100,118 33,700
Excess of revenues and other sources
over expenditures 500,000 500,000 466,418
Fund deficit, January 1, 2011 (420,457) (420,457) (420,457)
Fund balance, December 31, 2011 $ 79,543 $ 79,543 $ 45,961
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Income taxes
Special assessments
Governmental revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds
Transfer-in
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Public Service:

Other

Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues and other

sources over expenditures

Fund deficit, January 1, 2011

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Transportation Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts
$ 41,230 $ 41,230 .
41,230 41,230 -
443,250 443250 -
2,989,290 2,989,290 1,924,702
3,515,000 3,515,000 1,924,702
2,989,290 2,989,290 -
- 2,200,000 -
2,111,356 2,111,356 2,111,356
5,100,646 7,300,646 2,111,356
8,615,646 10,815,646 4,036,058
2,195,956 7,295,956 2,915,094
3,960,400 2,360,400
6,156,356 9,656,356 2,915,094
2,459,290 1,159,290 1,120,964
(1,120,964) (1,120,964) (1,120,964)
$ 1,338,326 $ 38,326 -
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Income taxes
JEDD revenues
Governmental revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds
Transfer-in
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Public Service:
Other
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund deficit, January 1, 2011

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Parks and Recreation Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Origﬂxal Final Actual Amounts

$ 134,800 $ 134,800 $ 171,542
- - 3,136

107,840 107,840 242,430
404,420 404,420 104,959
647,060 647,060 522,067
4,852,940 4,852,940 5,624,108

- 1,400,000 -

834,243 834,243 834,243
5,687,183 7,087,183 6,458,351
6,334,243 7,734,243 6,980,418
2,129,645 6,529,645 6,041,816
3,925,598 1,125,598 650,525
6,055,243 7,655,243 6,692,341
279,000 79,000 288,077
(48,487) (48,487) (48,487)

$ 230,513 $ 30,513 $ 239,590
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Governmental revenues
Taxes and assessments
Income taxes
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Public Service:

Other

Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues and other

sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2011

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Public Facilities and Improvements Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Origina] Final Actual Amounts
$ 6,470 $ 6,390 $ 66,509
12,930 12,780 -

64,660 63,900 193,633

96,970 95,850 86,963
181,030 178,920 347,105
5,818,970 5,751,080 2,064,604
520,169 520,169 520,169
6,339,139 6,271,249 2,584,773
6,520,169 6,450,169 2,931,878
3,831,935 8,541,935 5,666,804
3,188,234 1,413,234 5,370
7,020,169 9,955,169 5,672,174
(500,000) (3,505,000) (2,740,296)
3,512,668 3,512,668 3,512,668

$ 3,012,668 $ 7,668 $ 772,372
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Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Income taxes
Service revenues
Miscellaneous revenues

Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds
Previous year's encumbrances

Total revenues and other sources
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Public Service:
Other
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance, January 1, 2011

Fund balance, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Public Parking Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Bud&eted Amounts

Original Final Actual Amounts
$ - $ - $ 86
. - 100

416,430 264,550 113,444
416,430 264,550 113,630
8,083,570 5,135,450 300,026
278,349 278,349 278,349
8,361,919 5,413,799 578,375
8,778,349 5,678,349 692,005
3,220,864 3,220,864 279,259
5,057,485 5,057,485 826,317
8,278,349 8,278,349 1,105,576
500,000 (2,600,000) (413,571)
2,758,446 2,758,446 2,758,446

$ 3,258,446 $ 158,446 $ 2,344,875
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City of Akron, Ohio B-36

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual-
Economic Development Fund, Non-GAAP Budget Basis

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Amounts
Revenues and other sources
Revenues:
Income taxes $ 24,840 $ 26,170 $ 148,286
Taxes and assessments 5,128,910 5,404,990 3,509,040
Governmental revenues 6,830,260 7,197,920 5,866,478
Miscellaneous revenues 4,656,990 4,907,680 26,285,375
16,641,000 17,536,760 35,809,179
Other sources:
Note/Bond proceeds 6,209,330 6,543,570 4,230,779
Transfer-in - 16,100,000 -
Previous year's encumbrances 1,696,066 1,696,066 1,696,066
7,905,396 24,339,636 5,926,845
Total revenues and other sources 24,546,396 41,876,396 41,736,024
Expenditures
Expenditures:
Department Wide:
Other 13,095,968 30,995,968 30,825,149
Capital outlay 6,722,098 6,722,098 6,644,050
19,818,066 37,718,066 37,469,199
Total expenditures 19,818,066 37,718,066 37,469,199
Excess of revenues and other
sources over expenditures 4,728,330 4,158,330 4,266,825
Fund deficit, January 1, 2011 (3,171,381) (3,171,381) (3,171,381)
Fund balance, December 31, 2011 $ 1,556,949 $ 986,949 $ 1,095,444
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NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds - are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges. The non-major Enterprise Funds are as follows:

Oil and Gas

Golf Course
Airport
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City of Akron, Ohio

Combining Statement of Net Assets - Non-Major Enterprise Funds

Assets

Pooled cash and investments

Receivables, net of allowances
for uncollectibles

Due from other governments

Inventories, at cost

Property, plant and equipment,
net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Due to other funds

Accrued liabilities

Accrued wages

Accrued vacation and leave

Obligations under capital lease

Noncurrent liabilities
Obligations under capital lease
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities
Net assets
Invested in capital assets net of related debt

Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net assets

C-1

Total

305,630
39,965
10,004
58,792

10,524,662

10,939,053

11,434
136,387
45,7117
18,235
40,446
13,785

79,941
325,617

671,562

December 31, 2011
Oil Golf
and Gas Course Airport

$ 227,569 $ - § 78,061
20,735 168 19,062

- - 10,004

- 48,140 10,652

395,485 1,456,345 8,672,832
643,789 1,504,653 8,790,611

248 8,442 2,744

321 129,065 7,001

2,528 3,596 39,593

4,436 7,620 6,179

18,650 9,428 12,368

- 13,785 -

- 79,941 "

53,451 89,864 182,302
79,634 341,741 250,187
395,485 1,362,619 8,672,832
168,670 (199,707) (132,408)

$ 564,155 § 1,162,912 § 8,540,424

10,430,936
(163,445)
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Non-Major Enterprise Funds

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Other

Operating expenses
Personal services
Direct expenses
Rentals and lease
Utilities
Insurance
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Other

Operating income (loss)

Transfers-in

Capital contributions

Changes in net assets

Net assets, January 1, 2011, as restated

Net assets, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

C-2

Oil Golf
and Gas Course Airport Total

3 373,269 § 807,693 § 76,912 $ 1,257,874
- 333,731 133,258 466,989

373,269 1,141,424 210,170 1,724,863

198,827 648,408 297,126 1,144,361

39,669 276,136 421,840 737,645

- 109,511 - 109,511

332 88,114 32,322 120,768

15,220 3,135 13,936 32,291

- 50,517 244,788 295,305

1,060 - 2,300 3,360

255,108 1,175,821 1,012,312 2,443,241
118,161 (34,397) (802,142) (718,378)

- 300,000 230,160 530,160

- - 226,032 226,032

- 300,000 456,192 756,192

118,161 265,603 (345,950) 37,814

445,994 897,309 8,886,374 10,229,677

$ 564,155 § 1,162912 § 8,540,424 $ 10,267,491
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C-3
City of Akron, Chio
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Non-Major Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Total
Non-Major
Oil Enterprise
and Gas Golf Airport Funds

Operating activities

Cash received from customers $ 352,534 $ 807,525 $ 94,373 $ 1,254,432

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (55,304) (488,032) (473,123) (1,016,459)

Cash paid for salaries and employee benefits (179,940) (638,077) (245,871) (1,063,888)

Other revenues - 333,731 133,258 466,989

Other expenses (1,060) - (2,300) (3,360)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 116,230 15,147 (493,663) (362,286)
Non-capital financing activities

Transfers from other funds - 300,000 230,160 530,160

Transfers in for negative cash balances - 124,334 - 124,334

Transfers out for negative cash balances - (735,227) - (735,227)
Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital

financing activities - (310,893) 230,160 (80,733)
Capital and related financing activities

Acquisition and construction of capital assets - (12,821) (10,004) (22,825)

Capital Contributions - - 226,032 226,032
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related

financing activities - (12,821) 216,028 203,207
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 116,230 (308,567) (47,475) (239,812)
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1, 2011, as restated 111,339 308,567 125,536 545,442
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31, 2011 $ 227,569 $ - $ 78,061 $ 305,630
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C-3

City of Akron, Ohio
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Non-Major Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Total
Non-Major
Oil Enterprise
and Gas Golf Airport Funds
Operating income (loss) $ 118,161 $ (34,397) $ (802,142) $ (718,378)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization - 50,517 244,788 295,305
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Receivables (20,735) (168) (19,062) (39,965)
Due from other governments - - 36,523 36,523
Inventories - (306) 3,304 2,998
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable (48) (1,905) (2,940) (4,893)
Due to other funds (35) (8,925) (5,389) (14,349)
Accrued liabilities 2,984 5,655 18,369 27,008
Accrued wages 1,222 1,596 (639) 2,179
Accrued vacation and leave 14,681 3,080 33,525 51,286
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 116,230 $ 15,147 $ (493,663) $  (362,286)
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds - are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or to other governmental units, on a
cost-reimbursement basis. The title of the funds indicate the type of service provided. The Internal
Service Funds are:

Motor Equipment

Medical Self-Insurance

Workers' Compensation Reserve
Self-Insurance Settlement
Storeroom

Telephone System

Engineering Bureau

Management [nformation Systems
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City of Akron, Ohio

Combining Statement of Net Assets - Internal Service Funds

Assets

Pooled cash and investments

Receivables, net of allowances
for uncollectibles

Due from other funds

Inventories, at cost

Property, plant and equipment,
net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Accrued liabilities
Accrued wages
Accrued vacation and leave
Liability for unpaid claims
Debt:
General obligation notes
Noncurrent liabilities
Due in more than one year
Bonds, notes, loans

Total liabilities
Net assets
Invested in capital assets net of related debt

Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net assets

December 31, 2011

Medical Workers'
Motor Self- Compensation
Equipment Insurance Reserve

$ - 5,880,207 $ 2,841,055
132,802 - 30,228
1,327,499 - -
821,348 - -
1,875,803 - -
4,157,452 5,880,207 2,871,283
305,819 183,377 7,564
545,227 4,481 4

37,004 - 1,407,178

78,765 - -

175,529 - -

- 1,896,589 1,133,625

911,983 - 4,805,024

- 13,000,000 -

2,054,327 15,084,447 7,353,395
1,875,803 - -
227,322 (9,204,240) (4,482,112)
$ 2,103,125 (9,204,240) § (4,482,112)
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City of Akron, Ohio D-1
Combining Statement of Net Assets - Internal Service Funds
December 31, 2011
Self- Management
Insurance Telephone Engineering Information
Settlement Storeroom System Bureau Systems Total

17,246 - 408,098 § - $ - $ 9,146,606

- - - - - 163,030

- 184,104 9,024 281,614 290,160 2,092,401

- 71,665 - - - 893,013

- 25,322 287,067 116,898 173,032 2,478,122

17,246 281,091 704,189 398,512 463,192 14,773,172
1,553 110,337 2,393 40,561 6,362 657,966

- 299,219 - 527,052 831,813 2,207,796

- 4,116 4,579 43,866 8,486 1,505,229

- 2,831 13,056 96,827 23,925 215,404

- 6,464 41,090 363,141 88,474 674,698

442316 - - - - 3,472,530

- - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000

- 51,888 132,431 1,519,713 481,612 7,902,651

- - - - - 13,000,000

443,869 474,855 193,549 2,591,160 3,440,672 31,636,274

- 25,322 287,067 116,898 173,032 2,478,122
(426,623) (219,086) 223,573 (2,309,546) (3,150,512) (19,341,224)
(426,623) $ (193,764) $ 510,640 § (2,192,648) $ (2,977,480) $ (16,863,102)
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Internal Service Funds

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Other

Operating expenses
Personal services
Direct expenses
Claims
Rentals and lease
Utilities
Insurance
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Other

Operating income (loss)
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Interest income
Interest expense
Loss on disposal of capital assets

Gain (loss) before transfers

Transfers-in

Net change in assets
Net assets (deficit), January 1, 2011, as restated

Net assets (deficit), December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Medical Workers'
Motor Self- Compensation
Equipment Insurance Reserve

$ 9,420,528 § 28,843,081 § 2,832,276
73,041 160,175 60,455
9,493,569 29,003,256 2,892,731
2,483,879 - -
6,443,977 1,826,740 839,458

- 23,808,000 1,487,512

100,244 - -

8,844 50,585 .

319,157 - -

6,000 - -
9,362,101 25,685,325 2,326,970
131,468 3,317,931 565,761

- - 54

- (294,270) -

(14,.823) - -
(14,823) (294,270) 54
116,645 3,023,661 565,815
116,645 3,023,661 565,815
1,986,480 (12,227,901) (5,047,927)
3 2,103,125 § (9,204,240) $ (4,482,112)
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets - Internal Service Funds

City of Akron, Ohio

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

D-2

Self- Management
Insurance Telephone Engineering Information
Settlement Storeroom System Bureau Systems Total

- 3 2,052,333 § 632,669 $ 5,065,084 $ 1,693,929 $ 50,539,900

2,000 11,637 - 204,152 - 511,460

2,000 2,063,970 632,669 5,269,236 1,693,929 51,051,360

- 217,816 639,701 4,352,851 1,044,555 8,738,802

8,292 1,090,957 1,277,435 523,308 1,177,206 13,187,373

- - - - - 25,295,512

- 198,788 - 6,798 15,470 221,056

- 2,976 84,389 17,808 2,601 208,018

- - - 14,715 1,090 75,234

- 1.051 56,242 9,593 111,734 497,777

- - - 2,900 - 8,900

8,292 1,511,588 2,057,767 4,927,973 2,352,656 48,232,672
6,292) 552,382 (1,425,098) 341,263 (658,727) 2,818,688

- - - - 54

- - - - - (294,270)

- - - - - (14,823)

- - - - - (309,039)

(6,292) 552,382 (1,425,098) 341,263 (658,727) 2,509,649

- - - - 31,025 31,025

- - - - 31,025 31,025

(6,292) 552,382 (1,425,098) 341,263 (627,702) 2,540,674
(420,331) (746,146) 1,935,738 (2,533911) (2,349,778) (19,403,776)
(426,623) $ (193,764) $ 510,640 § (2,192,648) § (2,977,480) 3 (16,863,102)
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows-Internal Service Funds

City of Akron, Ohio

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid for salaries and employee benefits
Other revenues
Other expenses

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Non-capital financing activities
Transfers from other funds
Transfers in for negative cash balances
Transfers out for negative cash balances
Proceeds sale of notes
Principal paid on bonds, loans and notes
Interest paid on bonds, loans and notes

Net cash provided by (used for) non-capital financing
activities

Capital and related financing activities
Proceeds sale of bonds

Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related
financing activities

Investing activities
Interest on investments

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1, 2011, as restated

Cash and cash equivalents, December 31, 2011

D-3

Medical Workers' Self -
Motor Self - Compensation  Insurance
Equipment Insurance Reserve Settlement

$§ 9,511,407 $§ 28,843,081 $ 2,802,048 § -
(6,685,137) (1,854,372) (852,324) (6,872)
(2,387,408)  (24,083,868) (2,259,884) 4,872
73,041 160,175 60,455 2,000
(6,000) - - -
505,903 3,065,016 (249,705) -
536,257 - - -
(1,042,160) 3,000,000 3,000,000 -

- 13,000,000 - -

- (14,000,000) - -

- (294,270) - -

(505,903) 1,705,730 3,000,000 -

- - 54 -

- - 54 -

- 4,770,746 2,750,349 -

- 1,109,461 90,706 17,246

$ - 5,880,207 $ 2,841,055 § 17,246
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D-3
City of Akron, Ohio
Combining Statement of Cash Flows-Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Management
Telephone Engineering  Information
Storeroom System Bureau Systems Total

$ 2,078,305 § 667,121 $§ 4,896,361 $ 1,787,074 $§ 50,585,397
(1,193,811) (1,367,556) (517,399) (1,178,853)  (13,656,324)
(285,438) (448,545) (4,403,702) (985,159)  (34,849,132)
11,637 - 204,152 - 511,460
- - (2,900) - (8,900)

610,693 (1,148,980) 176,512 (376,938) 2,582,501

- - - 31,025 31,025

297,704 - 403,956 745,832 1,983,749
(908,397) 1,300,000 (580,468) (2,349,925) 2,419,050

- - - - 13,000,000
- - - - (14,000,000)
. - - - (294,270)

(610,693) 1,300,000 (176,512) (1,573,068) 3,139,554

- - - 2,000,000 2,000,000
- - - (49,994) (49,994)

- - - 1,950,006 1,950,006

- - - - 54

- - - - 54

- 151,020 - - 7,672,115

- 257,078 - - 1,474,491

$ - $ 408,098 § - $ - $ 9,146,606
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D-3
City of Akron, Ohio
Combining Statement of Cash Flows-Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(continued)
Medical Self -
Motor Self - Workers' Insurance
Equipment Insurance  Compensation  Settlement
Operating income (loss) $ 131,468 $ 3,317,931 § 565,761 $ (6,292)
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 319,157 - - -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets and other
{Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Receivables 812 - (30,228) -
Due from other funds 90,067 - - -
Inventories (103,351) - - -
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable (22,152) 20,174 (12,866) 1,536
Due to other funds (6,569) 2,779 - -
Due to other governments - - - (116)
Accrued liabilities 96,333 - - -
Accrued wages 8,592 - - -
Accrued vacation and leave (8,454) - - -
Estimated liability for unpaid claims - (275,868) (772,372) 4,872
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ 505903 $§ 3,065,016 § (249,705) $ -
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City of Akron, Ohio

Combining Statement of Cash Flows-Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

(continued)
Management
Telephone Engineering  Information
Storeroom System Bureau Systems Total

$ 552,382 § (1,425,098) § 341,263 §  (658,727) § 2,818,688
1,051 56,242 9,593 111,734 497,777
- - - - (29,416)
25,972 34,452 (168,723) 93,145 74,913
(4,993) - - - (108,344)
104,198 (5,732) 37,997 (30,312) 92,843
(295) - 7,233 47,826 50,974
- - - - (116)
9,412 4,579 91,319 28,628 230,271
(4,551) 13,056 (11,599) 120 5,618
(72,483) 173,521 (130,571) 30,648 (7,339)
- - - - (1,043,368)
$ 610,693 $ (1,148,980) § 176,512 §  (376,938) $§ 2,582,501
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Private Purpose Trust Funds - are used to account for other trust arrangements which benefit
individuals, private organizations, or other governments. The City has the following Private
Purpose Trust Funds:

Claire Merrix Trust

Holocaust Memorial Trust
Police/Fire Beneficiary Trust

Municipal Court Agency Fund - is used to account for assets held by the Municipal Court Clerk for
individuals, private organizations, and other governments.

Police Property Monetary Evidence Fund - is used to account for funds held by the Police Department
that will be returned to other agencies.

Unclaimed Monies Fund - is used to account for unclaimed funds.
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Assets

Cash and investments

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

City of Akron, Ohio

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Private Purpose Trust Funds

December 31, 2011
Claire Holocaust Police/Fire
Merrix Memorial Beneficiary
Trust Trust Trust Total
$ 810 §$ 2,317 § 4,060 § 7,187
810 2,317 4,060 7,187
$ 810 § 2,317 $ 4,060 $ 7,187
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Assets
Cash and investments

Total assets

Liabilities

Due to others

Total liabilities

Net assets

City of Akron, Ohio

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Agency Funds

December 31, 2011

E-1B

Police
Property
Municipal Monetary Unclaimed
Court Evidence Monies Total
$ 734,402 § 15,000 $ 74,363 § 823,765
734,402 15,000 74,363 823,765
734,402 15,000 74,363 823,765
734,402 15,000 74,363 823,765
$ - § - 8 - 8 -
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Additions
Contributions

Deductions
Education and awareness

Excess of revenues over
expenditures

Net assets, January 1, 2011

Net assets, December 31, 2011

City of Akron, Ohio

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Private Purpose Trust Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Claire Holocaust Police/Fire
Merrix Memorial Beneficiary
Trust Trust Trust Taotal

$ - $ 13,531 §% 500 14,031

- 13,531 500 14,031

- 13,013 - 13,013

- 13,013 - 13,013

- 518 500 1,018

810 1,799 3,560 6,169

$ 810 § 2,317 §$ 4,060 7,187
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City of Akron, Ohio

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2011 Additions Deductions 2011
Municipal Court
Assets
Cash $ 786,954 $ - 8 52,552 % 734,402
Liabilities
Due to others $ -3 734,402 § - $ 734,402
Due to other governments 786,954 - 786,954 -
$ 786,954 § 734,402 $ 786,954  § 734,402
Police Property Monetary Evidence
Assets
Cash $ 15,000 $ - $ - $ 15,000
Liabilities
Due to others $ 15,000 § - $ - $ 15,000
Unclaimed Monies
Assets
Cash $ - § 74,363 $ -5 74,363
Liabilities
Due to others $ - 3 74,363 § - $ 74,363
Total All Agency Funds
Assets
Cash $ 801,954 $ 74,363 § 52,552  § 823,765
$ 801,954 § 74363 § 52,552 § 823,765
Liabilities
Due to other governments $ 786,954 $ - 8 786,954 $ -
Due to others 15,000 808,765 - 823,765
$ 801,954 % 808,765 § 786,954 § 823,765
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Statistical Section



Statistical Section

This part of the City of Akron's (City) comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed historical information as a context for understanding what the information in the
financial statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information says
about the City's overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 187

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 194
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's
most significant local revenue sources which are income tax and property tax.

Debt Capacity 199
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue
additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 206
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within the City.

Operating Information 208
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the City's financial report relates to the
services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.

185



(This page intentionally left blank)

186



| 8Inpayog

LTETOE09L VESLLOT'61L 8 8TLTLIVIL § SE8°TTL 6TL 8T L61VIL
(£66°TSS°2E) (PELLTELS) (#16059°7¢) (488°0L1°99) (e91°1€8°€1 D)
Z19°01L°€L 6T 680°88 TTTSEYLS Ov6°861°C8 6¥0° SEL SHT
SOLYYI‘6IL 6EF°ST6°889 0TH'8E1°689 66LV69°€1L 96£°686'189
8YS SOI°16€ 00L°€0T 98¢ 888°811°6LE T8°196°89¢ LYULLE 6VE

(LT1°368) £16°€16°S (P6S°¥ES) (9¥8°65€°9) S96¥89°8
$81°059°6 SYL'SSET1 100°109°1 1 12U TPl 96¥°€09°6
06V €5€°T8E 6E0'VEC89E 18+°750'49¢ L96°8L0°19¢ 989°880°1 £€
6LL°961°69€ PE8°€06°CEE 0¥8°€00°6€€ £10°19L°09¢€ SEI918V9E

(998°459°1€) (LYT1¥8°€9) 0ze911°Te) (8€0°118°65) (8z1°91T°72)
LTV 090°F9 189°€E1°9L 12T¥E0°9Y 617956°L9 £55°1E1°9¢€1
81T'16L°9¢E § 00¥°119°02€ § 6£6°680°6T¢  $ 7€8°S19°T5¢ 01.°006°0S€

1107 0107 600T 8007 L00T
¥82°990°6L9  § 169°106€S9  § LIEESILED § L81°88L79E9 868°100°7¢9

(b68°L6T 6¥1) (LTT599°87%) (SLY €65°0€E) (I¥6°€6L°€S) (sSL122°€D)
0Z8°09L V91 IYTLE9VIE VT L6 VIE 09L°95S°6¥ TRLILLY
85€£°€09°€99 TL9'698°L99 96S°6¥0°€59 89€°ST0°1¥9 118°56°L09
0€9°18L°THE 894°508°SEE 089°1+9°9Z¢ L99°1.8L°1Z€ LLOYLSYIE
IPE01€°€Cl $58°956°¢1 LELYSTTL 18729411 LTTSPSIT
16L°29L°6 1L£°068°8 1L£068°8 909°LET6 961°L10°'8
861°80L°61¢€ wwT'8S6TIE TLS 96¥°S0E 085°280°86C ¥67°T10°8T
YS9 b8T9€E £22°960°81¢€ L89TIS0IE 075°000°S1€ 1L LIS

(s€2°809°791) (280°CT9 TvE) (188 TYe) (TT¥'957°89) (Z86'99L°v1)
620°866'¥S1 $L8°908°S0¢€ $L8°908°50€ PSI6LEOY 989°01L°6¢
098°v68°Ere § 0Er LI6PSE  § PTOESsLYE  § $8L°LE6THE LIS'E8%°TLE

9007 $00T ¥00T £00T 2002

jusunreds( soueUL] OO ‘UODY JO AIID) 120mMOS

SIOSSY JON JUSUILIOAON) ATewitid [ejo],

paroLnsaruf}

paroLnsay

192 paie[ay JO 19N ‘S19ssY fentde)) ut paysaauy
jusunIaAon) Arewntid

S39SSY 19N SaNIAnOY adA | -ssausng [e10]

PO

paloLISay

193 paieley JO 19N ‘S1essy [ende)) up pajsaau]
sanIALOY adA ] -ssouisng

S19SSY JON SOIIATIOY [RJUSUILISAOS) 10 ],

PaOINSaIUf)

paImsay

1G3( PoIEIRY JO 19N ‘SIassy [eade)y ur pajsaau]
SOIALIOY [RIUSWUIdAOD

SI9SSY 10N JUSWUIOAOL) Aretuild] 2101

Pa1oLSAIUN

PaoInsay

19501 paIEIaYy JO 9N ‘stessy fende) ul pajsoau]
JUDUILIDAOD) ATRUILE]

19SSV 19N SaIANOY adA ] -ssouisng [e10]

pajoLNsa)
PaLISY
1G9(] PANRIY JO VN ‘stessy [ende) ut paisaau]
souIAnoY adA | -ssouisng

S1OSSY 19N SIIANOY [BIUSUILISAOD) [10],

POIOLISIRI)

PoILISIY

1Go(] PALIY JO 1N ‘slossy [ende)) ur pajsoaug
SONANIY [RIUSILISACD)

(Bu1puno20p fo sispq pon.2op)
SIed X [eOSI] U] IseT]
jusuodwio)) AqG S195SY 1N

ol ‘uonfY Jo A

187



WELY6 SOV $ VISVIELSY §  ysvesvccy §  8SOELY B0V &  €hS1ChOLY $  LLLSYYOVP §  C9E809CLE §  I11809°99€ §  LISWB6IVE §  860C08SZE § sosuadx] JUSUIIBA0L) ATBWiLL [EI0L,
19V ¥9L16 60L°€8€°€8 18TV LL SSOISEEL 179°620°LL €91°0SSVL 86 SSE 9L Y8T09L°E8 TETEETSL 888°COC 1L sasuadxy sauiAldYy odA-ssausng [eiol
Naoou Nsﬂ,oww, 98669 1657686 SIL VLS £88°6L9 9L8 V9L 606 CIL Y00 9LS 0817969 uodiry
120°€61°1 PLYOLT L 8S1°LZE} SEPLYE'] 112°98L 9L£° €8¢ 619°18€°T 9L¥'99¢E° 1 L8STOE' S¥8'806 98I0 3100
856°SSE°L EVL'8YT'L S8I'L6LYY SOV 1€Y'y 98¢ L1€E"T 66Z°T0L'S 9LL°996'S £29°LEY'S 785°9C1°S 918°L6TY sanyoe Subjred
£79°0ST 0b9'6LY. 6T €Tt CTIEEE6 £51'v0C $66'6L1 £ELVRT 0v1°98T 6vEYTT 975 68T seD R 1O
608°0€L°9Y 780°667 6¢ EIT'LY8'YE IV EVRISE £ES°L8TSE 16£°7CE €S 8¥9° VT LE SLS'LELLE 85£'890°7€ 6EVLIT VE lomag
$81°8CT's¢ 85L°66€ ¥E 651°779°cE 906'6£8'67 SYL'6SYEE 61TTUEEE 967°€EL'0E 197'656°LE 15T°5€8°s¢ 790°€8L°0¢ 1M
SOMAIOY adA | -ssoutsng
188°C8I V1€ 708°0€6 €LE £85°SYO SYE £007C60 SEE T06'T6E ££€ ¥19°'868°59¢ VIvTST96C LIS LYSTT8T 98¢ 1587997 01T 665 VST sasuadxy SAUIANOY [EIUSULIOAOD [ElOL
6£68SE S1 999°0VL b1 96181 Y1 YS9 £l 187818 C1 8TV 690°C1 915 68¢ 11 0L8'9LY 01 £96 L09 6 676 036 8 uoperaaida(y pIIEdO[EUL]
$79'T1ZTT 20T SY8'HT TE6 V61T 6TV TLI'ST 789°5TELT $L8'808°9C 919°LLO'LT S6T'E0V LT 169°€TL'LI 8TETSY'S1 1s910y]
Ls¥108' 8YS'VOL'S 8EL'OLT9 VET1Z9'S 799°008°S 61€7$S°T 09¥'€09°L 617'SE0°'S 6£5°568'Y £6£°0L8°S $3ied pUe UoHEaIoY
8LELIS'E ELL'Y8S 91 SYT'EE8'91 0€1°887°91 118°895°L1 0LT'v0T'L1 0r9'TE8'S1 £VE°955°91 LTEVES LT 0€0°0L1°91 e 2qnd
1LTSSE'8S 800°1L6°9¢ V80'VTLISE 0201817y 950°788°0S L8STIY'Y6 TIYISIT SY'$86°ST TSL'GIELL 9£9'v8T'S 1 JuSUIUONAUT AJUNUIIOT)
$8L°0S6'601 v69'€86T11 TTETIBETL LS6'SE0LIT 115°05€' 711 9PET18'601 905 8Y8 701 YPLY16°901 129°86¥°101 €1L°L85°T01 Aages o1ignd
905°897°05 1Y€'9LL Y01 0L9°TL1°08 ETITITEL 789°568°€9 9ETTE8YY ELI'ET6'YS 18E°12E°LS VEL'6ET9S T9TE01'SS 901198 JHgng
0T6'LIL'SY $  OLS'VTELS $  96E°6L8°€y §  BTIEL8®E §  LIO0OSL'Ov §  €£69°90T'BE  §  I6€°E90°€ES §  OEEPSICE §  6LLS86'Iv § 6leTHYSE § JUSWILISAOY) [BIIUSD)
SOIIABOY [EIUSWILIA0D
sasuadxy
SOL'869°981 §  VSLPOESBIC §  C09C66€91 &  VSO6ECCLL §  COLCCOOLL S  CSLOVZ9T $  OB88LEDSI §  Lv6E00%91 §  LSOWOLLST §  OPIL9ECs] § sanuaAay WEG0l] USWUIA0D Areullid [EIOL
SYIVILY6 OF P L6 €Y OIT 18 STCEv1Ss 8LLISE 18 6618308 180 v6€ 18 [y 6157S8 91¢'€61°08 8L6'SLY'T8 sonuaAaYy wrerdold saniAnoy 9dA 1 -SsauIsng [EI0L
T0E91V'Y €17 8E8'C vLy 109°9 TET680%( 665°816'S 0EE LESTH 885°95E'9 LES7CS6 1T 0L8998°ST 01Z6LES SuoNAQLIUOD) pue SKIELD) [eide)
TL6°9L 981°59 (3411 £ST°881 078 ¢pl LSS 9L 69€°€61 691°081 86¥'vvl L05°961 podiry
£69°L08 ££9'926 LLS'S88 881798 60L°168 658506 8/8°3L8 L56°688 881998 006°T6L 95100 JI0D
OLE0IL'Y 08536y 8¥9°¥89'Y 61L'566'% YOL'T86'Y 195126t €6L1T6'Y 9¢£'601°Y 6L8'L81Y 879°TSTY soni1oe, upired
69T°ELE LETILE 0Z4°69T - 44931 9€1°] - - 8€6°E 9l'y sen ® 10
05.°019'6% 9¢S'6L8'vy HLEL18'SE VELSSESE Y69°€11°9¢ 9€0°859'S€ 006'$9¢°9€ yL6 68T VE S8Y'T65°CE 9T 6YT'SE lomag
TI6'8ILYE 8T1°S9¢°ve 125°T0L°TE 008°059°CE 800°€1£'€E 0TL€0T vE €SS°LL9TE SEY'L6]'EE 8SY1€5°9C 1SEiv9'ee s
:S90IAIG 10] sadrey)
sonAnoy odA | -ssaulsng
LSS'V8616 15€°090°LT1 6178878 671 960 ¥8 ¥TEOvT 68 €SS TLOTS 66LV8S SL 9ESY8Y'8L YL OIS'LL 791716869 SONUBASY WEIZ0IJ SANIANOY [BIUSURLISAOLD [EIOL
9Z9'8LL'BE 858°L9V'BE VLT LST 9T TTL$06 CL LT6 T8 VT L66 €20CL VT L6V 61 £11 656 9T 17E110°8C €65°698 ¥T suonnquUIuo)) pue syien) feyded
SLYTOE"LL 899°815°8¢ 021°109°12 9IL'E91°ET L6T6£6'1C $05°580°0C 679'9€L°0T 709'86L°81 LI¥'68v°81 06108791 suoynqLIue)) pue swern Sufesndo
LES'THT LTS Y1y SIL'IEE Y8LELE 765°€9¢ 191°£8¢ YLI6EE 105009 £68'099 0T60LS SIed pue UoHEsINY
(4343 616'€79 YTI'SLS £06'65S 865VL9 T LT ££0°£8S 608°T0€°C $80°65H°S 08150 PIESH o19nd
L09'L PE6EL s91°61 €8S°TL 99t°¢l 6£5°88Y'LT 48227 YvToLe 00s°561 080°601 JUSWLONAUT ANURUIWOD)
SEELYS 07£°98C'} 609°916. £9y°8L1°] 85L°66%°1 L1S'pE9 155°6L0°1 €1'199'y £95'880°C 8TI0ES’T AaJeg o1ang
SIEY60'ST TE9s8'EE VZI10L°€T EELLES'ST 959°6£L°8T €v6°1TTL (47831374 016's89°¢1 LES'LYO'TL 9TS'8SL T 301A15g QR
05TvL9%6  §  108'BL8°Cl $  BYI'08Y6  §  STIGTI'OL §  OLOLBILT §  8YOEOTOL  §  YES'RIL®  §  pHE66I0L §  £OM'8SSTOl § T96tTL6  § MUSUILIADD) [EIIUDD)
1$201IA19G 10} $a81RYD
SOUIANDY [BIUSUNLSAOD)
SINUIAIY WeIFoly
T10T 010T 600C 300T 100T 900C $00C 00T €00T 00T
(Bununosow fo s1spqg jonioon)
¢ 9INpayos SIB3 A [E0SI] U] jSe]

S198SY JON W saguey)
o ‘uonfy Jo LD

o0
oo

—



Jusunreds(] 2ouRUL] OIYO ‘UONY JO A1) [90IN0g

g6LvOlTY  § 908486 ¥ $  Tr009sl) § €LS6ISST  $  8660CISE §  €65¥9IST  §  vIesbL9l  §  081°S9E § 68C98LV $  V¥8T°LS69 $ SJOSSY 9N U1 9FURY() JUSWWIAA0D Arewiuy [BI0L
L96 08y T18 Y8011 9v0°LST9 S69V8S 61 L157565°9 79179069 88L°€9L 6 EI0vS8 v 066 C1TL 9LL’LS90T sapARoy odA | -ssaursng
978°€9¢'9t  §  (900°0019)  § (ELI'LSLUD)  §  (TTH'SSOY)  § ISYIES’8T  § IEV'S8I'8l  §  9es'k8s’L  §  (eeg'ssy'y)  §  (oL9whD  § (zesooLeD) § SINIANOY [BJUSUILISACH)
$33sSY JIN W aduey)
OEVEPY09T $  €9SW66EVC $  SCLSOSTHC $  LL6CILIST § 6LV 9T6PLL §  8I19CSI€0E §  908LLECEC §  PPE696C0C §  6VL 990681 §  THIC6E08] § WSURLIGAOD) ATeHiLld (2101,
0871881 $ slivice § vevesvc § Sscst $§ 08¢ErCC §  oTrsell § ss9cziy  §  988ve0t  §  S08TSIT 0§ 989v8€6  § sanAndYy adA | -ssoutsng 1e10]
966 675 L90°€6€ 091068 T668°LSE) (0sT°Z88) {157'892) 09v'866 YL EIT YrE v6S 191°19¢'8 S1ojsuel],
I . . - - - sT8°T1 vSs'y $£0°95 (806°¢) stossy [endeD) Jo o[ES UO (50]) UIED
859°05€°1 901°'778°T LS6°LSSL 0IS'SL6Y T6L060°C T9L'SY6 y08'€£8°T S19°L9L°T rR1°60V°1 690°SL8 STIOAUR[JAOSIN
979 $  sv6'9 $  LLETT $  vI6'P0T $  8ELV0S $  s19'09v $  995°08C $  €66'801 $  wi'te $  poLiEst $ sSuures JUSUNSIAU
1SANIANDY AdA ] -ssoulsng
0S1T9$'8ST  §  SWPOLLOVC §  IEC90VOPT $§ ISV OV6OvC §  6S0€89CLT §  C6V¥IOTOE §  1S1CSC8CC $  8SPPIS661 § Vw6 EI698T §  OSVLOOELL § SALIANOY [EIUSWUISAOD) [EI0],
(966 675) (L90°c6¢) (091 068) 668 LSE 0STTSE 157897 (09%'866) WeL'ero) Trveves) (19r°19¢8) SIOJSUEL],
666 6 6¢5°1 - - $£9°€T - 911°659°1 wLz'Lon) - 0L6V88 s1ossy fendeD) Jo 9[es uo (ssof) men
268'650°0€ 920°721°0¢ 618'TE8°E1 6687966 L87°668°01 €ELL8LTT 61T°799°L 09.°981°6 698'601°11 £99°T11°L SNOQURIOISIN
L8ETII"LS 69€ EV0°LS £08°VLE 09 €9L°16T° 1S SI8°EE0°S9 0PT PHL 901 T0V°691°SY €SP SETTE EIVSO1°1€ S6T68T°LT SINUOATY PAIRYS PIIILNSAIUN
TI9ErS £9°PES 987 11¥'T SEP'LSS'E £L6°078Y Y6 9vS 9 £PS°S61°9 $87°079'C €L0°TE0°1 SLY'STI'L s3uluiey jusunsAU]
€61°978°91 88L°061°S1 PY0°€09°S1 088°1£8°L1 $85°155°91 ¥ST'055°91 786°976°€1 611°L09°¢1 06%'¥80°C1 £16°SY6°El sanudAdy AJAr
020°1€8°ST TEL'€10°6T 12£°091°87 090°92¢ €€ pO1'YS1°0€ LLYTYTLE 678°058°LT 192°¢61°8T SLTYLEOE THEEhrIE soxe] Auadold
€80°ELV'PEL  §  96L°LST6IL §  BII'MI60TL §  916°0I90El  $  LOSLPOWYL §  €vO'SLRITL §  0TS99L°9TI §  SLOTSEWIT §  89UTOSIOL §  656'990°L6  § SaXe ], Suioou]
SaXB ],
SANANDY [RIUSWILISAOLD
§JASSY AN Ul SIduey) PYO
PUE I0UIAIY [BAIUIN)
(LE9°8YT61T) § (LSL'6006EC) $ (S8 SOV8ST) § (POVEEL9EC) § (IVV66L680) § (SCOSS6LLY § ((8V 619510 $ WOI'v09200) § (0ov08T¥81) $ (8severell) § asuadx PN JUSUIIBA0N Areurid P10,
L896¥6C 697098 L T8STL69 € 0LTZ9L b1 LELTSEY 90 8€8°S £E18€0°C LTT6SL 1 $81°090°¢ 060 LT 11 sonIANoY 2dA ] -ssoulsng]
(bZ€861°TTT) $  (ISt0L8°9YT) §  (YOV'EL'TIT) §  (hLs's66°0sT) §  (BLSISI'vPD) §  (190°978°€80) §  (519'199°072) §  (I6Te9e'p0T) §  (Syo'Ope'68l) §  (8Y0'B0L¥8L) § SONIATIDY [EIUSUNLISADD)
MNuIAIYHsudXT ) PN
1102 010z 600C 800T L00T 900 $00T ¥00T €00C 200C
(ponumuod)
(Bunumooov fo s1spq [pn42oD)
¢ 9Inpayog SIes A [OST] U3 JSE]

$3108SY 19N W safuey)

oo ‘voryy Jo A

189



(This page intentionally left blank)

190



T 10T 40f suonuyfaq adA] pun.j [ojuamuisaor) pup Sutioday soupjog pun.g ‘pSH# UAWNRIS gSVO Jo Auuojuod ul pasedald usoq sey € J[NPIYIS,

juswiedad aoueUl] OO VOV JO A1) 192IN0G

988°V06°611 §

Spun,{ [EIUSIULLISAOL) [810]

$69°09L°011 SpUn } [BIUSWILIDA0D) JSYLQ) [V [e10],

1102 010¢ 600T 800T L00T 0 —
0 9002 $00¢ $00¢ £002 7002 BRI pougisseun
- - pousissy
000°000°C$ 187°841°S poyuwo)
000°000°t$ TT0°0S8THY pawLnsay
000°000°9$ SP9°680°€ sjqepuadsuoN
000°000°8$ SpUn,{ JeIUSWIIdA0D) IO [V
000°000°01% 161V 1°6 pun [BI3U90) [210],
000'000C13 61L°106°L pau3isseu)
000°000°¥1$ WUyl pausissy
- pauiwuo)
Jdug[eg punyj [BI2Ud5) pauBiSSBl()/PaAIISAIUf) - papLIsay
- $ s1qepuadsuoN
puny jeisusH

1102
981°80L°0V1 § 0T8°S08°06 § €79°986°091 § TVSCSSVTT § LLTTICLET $ TLI'SS6'0ST § 908°CEITTT § SLL'BLOOY § 666°80V'FS § SpUN [EIUSWILIGAOD) JEIO],
¥09°819°%¢€1 TLT09898  LLTTLLIIST LLTEYT T SLOTIFLTT £80°OV6°6£C  0T8°8£6°L0T  LYSO¥9'ST  TLITIO9TH spun, [eJuSWILSA0D) JOYIQ [V [B10],
(zo6'Z11°08)  (SLL°0¥9°79)  (L79°018°8S)  (99c°0es°0E)  (766°098°8E)  (L¥b0s6'SE) (48879869  (6L0bLv'€S)  (0L5'99T+HS) spunj spafoiq reyde)
¥T6°109°TH 1L8°S61°1T 798°0LY 18 $69°LLE LOT 66€°0VE 8T 9E6 VYL Y8 9ET168°68 L9067 Y1 048°98¢°S1 Spuny 2914195 193¢
SI8‘6E°6L SLT96V98  095°908°C6 661,686 LT88LT SO Or8rI8°SST ZSLsIE 8yl 9TT'8ET'ET 608 401°8T Spuny anuIATY [e122ds
. :ut pauoday] ‘poAtasaiun)
L9L 689 106°808°1Y 8Y°50£°9¢ 6v9°078° V€ 197 v$9°TE $SL9EE°SE 91L°165°6¢ 820°T65 1Y £90°9L€°€S paAIIsIYy
Spun,{ [BIUSWUIdA0L) Y10 [[V
785°680°9 8PSSY6°e IPEVIT6 SOV TIOEl 709°668°6 680°C10°T1 986°961°v1 8T6IEV VI LTBLOSTL pun  [BIOUD) [R10]
LIELI6Y 66€°89L°1 1¥9°L78°9 6£0°6v9°C1 TTI688°L $€6°809°8 70€°916°C1 $79°861°¢1 €L6°€SL'S poAIasaIU()
s1gzer’y 6VILLIT § SOL98ET $ 99£°€96 § 0S¥ PIOT  $ SSITCOVT  $ ¥89°089°1 § €0€ELTT § vsgEso’e  § paaIosay
punyg [RIOUdD)

0102 6007 8007 LOOT 9001 $00T Y002 £00¢ 7002

€ |npayog (Sutgunooow fo s1S0q [oN.LD parfipout)

SIBDX [BOSI] UD] ISe]
Spuny [JUWUISA0L) ‘sadue[eg] punyg
o4O ‘uonfy 3o A1)

191



(901°1£9°68)  § (8TH'189°T6)  $ (sv8'str'es) § (evT'ez1L8) § (180°165°LS)  $ (11L°L6€°09) § (0T9°008°LT) § (SvTHILAS)  § (Sbsciv'es) § (€96'166°19) § sonyipuadxy JOpU[] SONUAAY JO SSIOXY
68586068 § LOC0SS'LEY $ 061°CE6'SO § 1€8°I8P'61F $ 80SLIOLIY & S6v'989°chy § TOT0L6TEEC $ I80°LSHOLE § L8S'B08°bTE $ LE6LTEDIE § sarmypuadx g {e10f,
659°85Y°1 179°1€€°C 89L'90¢ - 171°960°1 ULV ELY YTr's1CT Eitatal TL6'ESY Ov6'vEL saimyipuadxz] souenssy puog
9£1°0T9°cE YL8°L59°6T or1°6TI°sT £YE°9L8°8T 0L9°11£°8T 9T6'S6L°LT 6S1°¥90°61 £pS°156°97 86S°911°LI 1L6°16L°S1 152193U]
1£6'618°CY 9LIY6T'SS LLL'669°TE SIv'6¥8°0€ 8T6°TSE'6T STT'9SEvT ELTLYS'EE LO9'S¥9°6T €€L°808°TC €H0'ET8'IT Juswanay [edung

BMAIRS 3g2(d
- 9€5 e 1sLT61 Pr6'EEy'l 628°0TT 68L°TT0°E 856°61 119°986°91 L68BET 1Y LTOVET CF Aepng rende)
LY 08Y'S SIL'8HY'S 098°187°9 PIL'S19'S 0T8°L9S°S 01§°0TY'T 18L°085°L 6L0°9%L'Y 878°LO6'Y LIY'ETS'S SHIEd PUE UONEAIITY
£69°28S6'€ £$8°808°91 L09°0L9°9] 886°7£6°S1 08£°916°91 €ES° 145791 20S°€SL'ST L80°6¥T'91 1+P"880°L1 0€T6LS'ST YB3y atjqnd
89T'LEVLL EI1E6'69 £80°611°0L L06°S15°99 9L 1L 18 6E1°40ST11 YLV $66°CT 9T1'$T9'8T 8T9'8YT¥1 0E1°€E8T Y1 JuBWUONIAUT AVUNWIWOD)
0LOP18°01LT TT9'080°01 1 TL8S66°01 T Obs'€80°LI1T £59°071°011 SL9TST'R0E LZ0°09%FO1 LE6'PP9°T01 015°976°96 068°0¥8°66 Kiogeg onjqng
OvL €IS 1L 9T PES'TI 6LL°SLTE0T 86€°17E911 6v1°696° €01 ST Y9901 10L°L9T'L8 $68°258°69 yrTS9esL 690°€€7°€9 321AIG Aqnd
S8T00¥'Ty  $ 1S98TY6E  § LYS'SITOr  $ TBSTS®9E  § 90THTIOP  § L80°G86°1y  § €06'TES'BE  § 988PIEEE  $ 988°ES9PE  § 0TCP8Y0E  § JUSWUIAOY) [RISUDD)
quaLm)
sasnypuadxy
BYLOV6YE $ 6L8°898°FbE § SPELOSTTLE § 8BSTTSETEE $ VIVOTVESE $ vBL'S8T'ERE  § T8S609°S0E $ 9E8TWLBLT $ THO'S6ELIT § bLESEV'EYT § SINULANY (10 ).
6YEEES T T8$°€L0°0T 918 1€ ST TYLPOT 11 891°7SLTL €66°SS9°TH 121°189°01 7€8°€0S° 11 ISTP06'11 0S8°0€L'8 SNOBUEB[{IISTIA
911°T00'vT 9LL'SLYVT L6E¥9S 6T S8TOIPLT LO0°008°8C 19%°0L9°8T SIE€8THT LY8bPS €T 1£8°€16°1T L86°0E1°0T $301412 103 Sa31EYD)
S18°789'L 79€°TH'8 6€8°9SY'L 9L8°106'6 TTLTPI0L 008°€79°6 12T°T¥9°01 $LO'RSE'S SY1'ELY'8 vL8°165'8 SOUL PUE S33,] ‘SISUAOI]
818° 16V 11T°7€1°9¢ 10S°Z1€°09 0LT01Y'TS 619°L0S°S9 818°99L°601 129°997°9% €9S°19¥°T€ LET'S60°CE L0OO'TI8°9T SONU2AY pareys
601°TLL €1T1e8 v66°60L°T £97°€8¢°C SEPPET'S 089°68¢"L LSTLIT'L 080°126°C 8£6'¥8E"] 698°€€6°1 s3urures] JuLUNSIAU]
68T 1¥8'Sh Y00 1vT St 87L°96$°1 LOB'LLL'61 880°€81°07 965°409°L1 129°ep8°€l 9TT65S°L1 LLO'LYSTT Ly1°80T'81 »yo
9L8°S6L L 6vL€S8 11 1£8°900°9 865 F09°11 TITRLY'TH 8TC'SO9°T 1 L66°198°T1 T9E LT YL 0Z0'68S°11 998°€56°01 yuowdopaasg Auunuwwo)
Sa1pIsqng pue sjuein)
L8 TIE9 YL P LEV'LIS S E0TIV Y1 YTLBLLEL SLEPSLTL 1£9°9€T°¢t LTYYT6'EL 9€8°98L°C1 0EL€8L11 SJUaWSSaAssy [eroadg
866°LLS D1 9LETOPST 18L°9L¥ ST 876°070°91 678°68°L1 08£°198°9( €19°LS0P1 £8L°zee’cl 650°TESTH 17L°08L'¢1 sonuaAsy QQHESl
TLETLIYT 791°0L0'8T 8SO°LI6LT LE6800°VE L1998L°6T Y8LLTYTE 108°968°LT 19L°€61°82 SLTYLE O e ery e soxe] Auadorg
PETSPE'SEL  § 780'8E6IT  $  €TE'909°0CI  § 68LIGEEl § £00'CL6THT  § 699°8T6°LTI  § HICTLSHIL § 188'899°TII $§ OLPHLL00T § 185°990°L6 § SoXe ], 2Woou]
$INUIAY
1107 010t 6007 800¢ L00T 900 $00T 00T €00 700
(Burunooov fo s1spq jpniodv pafipous)
¥ 9INpayds SIesp [edst] U] 1se]

Spun § [ZIUALILISAOCY) ‘SIJUB[eg] punj ul saduey))
oo “UORY Jo A1)

192



yusunreda soueur OO ‘UOINY Jo AIID 30IN0S

%L9'TT %06°CT %8T LI %bL L1 %01°LE iaadt %1081 %9 61 %lbsl %8L Y1 samypuadx] ejidesuon
30 23e1ua0194 ® SE 901AI3S 199(
(1£8°676°00)  $ 99c'206'6r  § (c08'081'02) § (656'898°€9) § {(S69°'9sH'TY)  § (S68°Syo'€l) § 99€7TT8BT  § 1L0°LSOT8L  § (vrToecyl) § (659°'660°1)  § soueeq puny ur sFueyd 13N
SLTSO'6L  § V6L'ERS'THT  §  THO'SHTEd $ PBTO9Z'CT S 68EPEISH § OIRISLOF § 986TTI9S  $ 9LTILLEET $ ITEE80EY § VOET6ED9  $ (s980)) s20mog Suraueul] Y10 101,
($05°90L°C1) (rsesie’er) {(09¢€°85L°TE) (oot eTe'e) (L¥8°296°5) (050°108°6) (1ss'81v'61) (v0L°0L6'S) (L97°L09°€) (196'8L1°09) ino-siojsuel]
YSY SPITH L8TTLL'EY 00T'898°1¢ 666°085°€ L666TE'S 108°1€Z°¢ 160°0¥0°91 086'95L'S 898°908°C SER'ECOYS ul-sigysuel],
- - - - - (€0Z°050°6) - - - - sjessy jeide]y pasueul - 9se]
h - - - - £02°050°6 - - - - asea] ende) jo aouenss]
- - - - - - - - - - 5S0uaA1810,] 1Ga(J U0 §SO7T - WY [r1oadg
- - - - - - - - - - 01057 SUIpUNIOY FdURAPY
(£6T°5€T°€6) - - - - - (89€°€L8°96) - - - suonediqQ Sutpunyay Joj Judwhed
600°€€9°L6 - - - - - 000°$€T°S6 - - - suonediqO punyay Jo spasdord
L8€°50T 5P 109°T LOT'9LY - 9LL6IY 60695t S60°68T°L 91E°SLY'8 086°110°1 0E1'vT8’1 193 "O’D uo wnjudid
- - - - - 18S° 141 - ¥69°1%0°¢ - - §pa320.( Ueo}
£61°09¢°Y - - - - - - - - - wnwalg spuog Surpunjoy Jo spadsoid
- - - - - - - - - - spuog Buipunjay Jo spasdold
- 000°00T°€1 - - r68°0LY° 1 - - - - - $,d0D JO ouenss|
- 69S°6£T7 €06'VLS - 818°58C°C - - - - - SUEO'] JO SOUENSS]
h - - S8ETSLT - - - - - - SDJON JUSWSSASSY [eloads Jo aouenss]
- - - - SYOIEs’l SLS'TLOT 00£°S11°L 0€S'81t'E 00T128°1 00€£°8TY'¢ 210N uonesI|qQ [eIaUaD) Jo ournss]
000°€0L°01 $ OV8'S8TLTI $ TEOVRSTI  § 0000SI0C  $ 9OI'6SL'6E  § 000°0STEr  $ 6IYSELTS  § 09V'6r06IT § OYS000'ly  § 000°68Z19  § puog uonediqQ [2I3U3D) JO 3ouenssy
(sas()) sdaanog Supueul] RYIQ
1oc o10c 600T 800C L0O0C 9002 $00¢ 00T £00Z 00T
(panuiluod)
(Bununooon fo s1spq jpniooD pafipow)
¥ 9InPayos SIBdX [BOSL] uaj jsey

Spunj [BIUSWILLILAOL) ‘saoueies pun,] ui saduey))
ol ‘UoINY Jo KD

193



"saInSy om) Jo UOHBUIQUIOd Y1 ST SANIjNIN 91jgnd 10J anjea [ENIde PABWIISI INJEA PISSISSE A,
26T Aq an[eA passasse oY) ap1alp ‘Auadoid jeuosiad 103 ‘04,6 AQ anjeA PIsSIsse aY) SUIPIAIP Aq PIALIOP SI anfea [enjoe pajewnss oy ‘Auadoad jear jog 910N

swireda(] 23uRUL] OIYQ ‘UODIY JO A1) :90IMO0S

194

00°S¢ 0€01 909°v€9°L TI1°TL9T 026°79T T20°26 - - 989°1LE°L 060°08ST T1oz
00°S€ 0£01 SY1°819°8 16£910°€ 1SV 16T 800°83 - - $69°99¢°8 £VE876T 1102
L6VE 0£01 LTS€6S°8 yT6v00°€ 0S0¥LT LOTE6 - - LLV'61E8 LI8°116T 0102
95 ¢ 0£01 TE6°1EL°8 S9°L10°E 600°98¢ 6L5°96 - - £T6°STE'S €LO°1T6T 600T
£TYE 0€01 £16°L5T°6 79£°691°¢ 128°L8¢ LZ0°L6 413143 £6¥°08 0T1°8¥5°8 8°166°C 800C
LYEE 0€01 658°€89°6 191°08C°¢ 061°05¥ S19°Z11 08€°TV9 $65°091 687°165°8 1$6°900°¢ L00T
09°€€ 0€°01 895°586°6 6tI°cse’e 6vS €Y $80°911 87L°9¢6 Z81°VET 162°68S°8 258°700°E 900T
yIee 001 08.°099°6 965°10T°¢€ £9L°C1S 1,821 808°C8T'1 (43 A K43 60TT98°L €LLTISL'T 00T
€lee 606 Y¥L'C8S°6 68€°GLIE 695°10S 62£°9C1 TIS°€6T°1 8LEETE €99°L8L°L 789°6TLT 00T
% 16'C¢ 606 £€9°606°6 $ $0S°192°¢ § 001°90S $ 01921 § 9P ¥9S1 § pO1°16€ $ LIT6E8°L $ 169°€YLT $ £00T
anjeA [emoy ey anjeA AnjeA onjeA onjeA anjeA AneA onjep anjeA Bi=) ¢
pajewIsy jei0j, 01 10211 [emoy Passassy [emoy Passassy [enioy passassy reny passassy uorjaf[0)
AN[BA PISSISSY [elol. parewnisy pareunisy pajeurnsy parewmnsyg Xe]
[P10] JO 1U3013d [el0L sanyn olqnd Kuodoag rruosiog Auadoid Jeay

(s4vj0p fo spuvsnoy; u)
SIRI A [BISI] US] 1SR}
Auodoid ajqexe] JO anjeA [enidY PIJRWINST PUB SN[RA PISSISSY
G 3INpayos OO ‘UONYY Jo A1)



jusunieda(g aourUL] OO ‘UODYY JO A)1D :921N0S

195

9l 0811 99°1L 0€°01 o 0€°0 0€0 876 [4q1r4
91 08'vl 99°IL oc ol wo 0£0 00 876 110¢
or'l 087l 99°1L 0£'01 wo 0£0 0¢0 8T6 0102
9wl 8LV 99°1L 0€01 wo 0€0 00 876 600¢
W'l L8V 99°1L 0€°01 wo 0€0 0£'0 8C6 8007
9l 14891 99°IL 0£01 o 0£0 0€0 876 L00T
$8°0 9T¥1 9L°¢9 0£°01 wo 0€'0 0¢0 876 900T
€80 9yl 9L°€9 0£01 S} 0€0 0€'0 st'e €00t
$8°0 00°¢€l 9L°¢9 606 €0 0€0 00 SI'8 00T
£80 18°¢1 9L°€9 606 reo 0€0 00 SI'8 €002
syied Ayuno)) LS [0oYoS ey JUSTIAINY uoIsuaq UOISU] Sunesad ICET
ORI oY jlurung AnQ uonyy 121 [e10]. 193d ol o1od uonsf0n
Xe]
sarey Surddep1aa) sorey 1020 A1)

(anppa passassv fo o [ § 42d 20.4)
SIBa X [BOSI] UQ], 1se]
sajey xe] Auadold Surddepraa() pue 10311(]
9 a|npayog oo ‘uonyy jo AuD



juswreda soueur, oy ‘uonyy Jo A1) :39IN0g

% C1'8 LEL'TIT $ % 879 905°L91 $
670 z0v'6 Surystiqnd [ewmof uodeag Yo £6£°9 dio)) Juswadeuey uon|y
8€0 i A PV ‘T [IHH 1odey) LT0 SLI'L 011 semedoid uonyy NIOH
8¢°0 85691 SWRISAS [e3130€ ], UILIR]A PASYP[O0T] LEOD 86L°6 seH onjO iseq
o 9¢5°¢] Oy 158y uoturwo(g LEOD 856°6 Ayiiqer] pojuiry 1omo uosipyg oo
15°0 LES 9T 0D WY2RIqIY "M A V0 08€°11 UOISSIWSURL ], UedLIowy
€L°0 €8L°€T SwdysAg Sunjelg yernay 90 L8ETY uossng ‘(J plewreyg
9L0 €18°yT 2UO}SAIL]/aU0)SIZPLIE LYo 0€S°CI 123UR)) [JIPAIA [ENASOH S,uaIp[iy)
6'0 ST6'6T "0 12qqy 2 211 1B3ApOOD) €S0 PPl pareIodiodu] JyoaIq Y
6C1 LLY'TY odS $9°0 $80°L1 uonjy Jo AJIsIsAtu(
% ¥T'T 8s1cL $ A310u3 1514 % 0S'C 96L'99 § AS1oud 1511
ETTN aneA Iakedxe ], onjeA anfeA JoKeGXR |,
possassy passassy passassy Possassy
Jjqexe] jo alqexe] Jjgexe] Jo Jlgexe]
a3riuaniag 98rusaiag

00T ‘1€ 1quaoaq

1102 ‘1€ 12quadsq

£ 3npayos

(s4vjjop Jo spuvsnoy) u1)
C00Z/1e/C1 PUB 1102/1¢£/C1
siaked xe] Auadoiy [ediouiig

oy ‘vonly Jo A1

196



8 9INpayos

juswpeda(q 2ourulj OO ‘UORY JO A1) :90MMOG

L'S6 L10°9ZL°6T LET'LT6T $'68 1TL86LLT 1E€S790°1 € 1102
v'L6 756'v80°0¢ YTETOL T 6’16 879°€8€'8T TSy rL8 0E 0102
L6 09Z°660°0¢ 600°€S9°1 616 16€°€TY'8C LLY 6£6°0€ 6007
$'86 8P 81T 1€ 091°0€6°1 ¥'Z6 881°887°6C 118°90L°1¢€ 8007
L'S6 e L0 08+°065°1 L06 198°0S1°6C 809°1€1°CE L00T
L6 LIT'EYT 1€ 1v°628°1 $'16 9L C1V'6C £68°SH1°CE 900C
7’86 SEL°C81°6T T1€°8TS°1 €6 €TV LSI'LT €€L°599°6C S007
866 $87°998°5C $95°696°1 L'€6 12L°00E'vT L8Y'VT6°ST 002
€L6 896°C6€°ST ELLIETY L 616 S61°0L6°€T 780°760°9C £00C
% €66 €6L 1LY CT 9rES0Z1 $ % 6'€6 L¥Y997°1C §TT'8E9°7T $ 00T
\A>®w~ ,«o junowy w:O_uoE_oU %>®w~ ,«O junowry JedA _NOm_m 1€/C1
o8ruaniog XeL aSeuasing Yyl Iog Suipug
e 01 mCOﬁo®=OU Euorﬁ u:o:_ucswﬂ \A>vw~ ocu Jo Ied A _mom_ G ﬁ®_>o1— XeJ, I3 A _mom@ R

a4} uiyHm PaJod|[o)

SIBO X [ROSI] US], 1se]

SUOI123[0)) pue S$AAYT xB ], Aadolyg

oo ‘uonyy Jo A1p

197



6 9INPaydg

“aNU2AI S,AHD) 911 JO $20.0MOs 3y} FuipreSal UOHEULIOJUT dAjeWId)fe 3piAoid 0] papuajul aie pajussaid
soL1089180 O |, "9jqe[ieAE JoU 2Ie siaAed onuaAal 1saTie] U9} 2y) Jo sawen 2y ‘sanssi AJ[eruspluod o1 an( 910N

juowiiedo(q 2oueUl OIY(O ‘UODYY JO A} :90IN0g

% 00°001 65195921 $ % 00001 LOTbE
90°LE 86£°606°9Y 00 t1 100°000°1$ 12A0
S8°11 12L°L66V1 010 143 000°000°1$ - 100°05C$
1121 9L6'6TE ST 1€0 ) 000°05T$ - 100°001$
9L 868°8€9°6 10 vl 000°001$ -100°05$
09°61 08Y°LEL61 8L°C 756 000°0S$ - 100°01$
Sy 0STOPLS 8€C €18 000°01% - 100°S$
99°¢ 600°879Y L8E £TE°1 000°S$ - 10S°C$
6v'¢ ZEToTH' Y L1'8 6L 00S°C$ - 100°1$

% LOY 679°¢S1°S $ %S618 1€0°8¢C Jopun pue 0001 $

|0l 3o SUOI}IA[0D ®101L SJUNO2Y [9A97] UO1399[{0))
o8ejuoolad Xe] auwoduj [e1o ] Jo 38wvuaorad Jo JoquinN
110T 18X 189St

% 00°001 1s1°1210C! $ % 00001 Z00°s€
19°L€ VIV OLISY ¥0°0 vl 100°000°1§ 940
90°Cl 16V°Z6t 1 01°0 SE 000°000°1$ - 100°05C$
Y1l LLTTOS ET LT0 $6 000°0S7$ - 100°001%
8L9 LYT'LY1'S $€0 811 000°001$ -100°05$
06'S1 95GC0L 61 85T 206 000°0S$ - 100°01$
437 831°16L°S veT 0Z8 000°01$ - 100°S$
99°¢ 00S°Z6€Y LSE 8l 000°S$ - 105°C$
9¢°¢ 699°08Z°v VLl 60LC 00S2$ - 100°1$

% 9¢'Y 608vET‘S $ 9% C0'€8 190°6C Iopun pue 0001

_SO.H mo wﬁOEQ@——OU ~NaoF maﬁ.:oou< _o>ow— CO_HUQZOU

owmucoohum xmvﬁ oEou:H _.SO,_. ,._O owwwcuuuum ,wo a@D:EZ

0107 JeaA [BdS1]

110¢

pue 0107 S1B9A [BOSId

(S1uno020y 19911(J pue SUIPJOYYIIA) ) JUNOWY UONII[[OD) [BNUUY Aq SUOIIII[[0)) XB] dWodu]
o1y ‘uonfy jo A

198



“ejep awooul jeuosiad pue vonendod 10§ 91 JNPaYog 39S |

yusunreda( soueuy ] ‘Uony Jo A1) :90IN0g

$6'81 LTL'E CESECTITVL 606°€SY 68L°SY6°1 YYLSST 8T 000°0LY €T 000°S9€°0Y LTYLEY 110C
66'61 1€6°¢ VISI6LC8L 666°C1S €0E°LYI‘T 91891 V€ 000°09T°LT 000°SZ6°tY $T6°TE9 010T
7881 11€°¢ LT8TISBIL 0Er 9Ty LI8'SPET 9ET1°69LPE 000°016°0€ 000°SLE LY 089°8€9 6002
8v'61 8TH'c OV oS Pyl IS A XS YLE 6YYT 809°985°0F 000°ST¥ Ve 000°SH8°SH LT6ELY 8002
£1°0¢ wes'e 601°SL8°89L $96°C1S L80°159°C 1ZTTrior 000°08€°LE 000°S¥8°1¢ T6L°008 L00T
01027 LES‘E LTLBSLLYL 6£5°081 109°C$8°C 86L°966°0S 000°99°6¢€ 000°595°LS TTTTT6 900T
LY61 TLE'e €LETSOTEL 1S1°60€ S88°IVI‘E €KTTOE9S 000°S8Y°TY 000°S0T°6Y TLY6EE°] $00T
1€'81 e €L6°19V°669 LST'01S 997°650°¢ S1T'8IS09 000°SET° 1Y 000°S£6YS 188°968°C 00T
€L TI ove'e L61°597°98Y €91°11L TLT6TT'e £86°160°€Y 000°SOV°EY 000°S¥D'6S 961°€9LE £002
% LTTI 6S1°C $ 886°589°89% § 889°€68 $ £06°9LE°C $  06S°600°LY $ 000°069°SY $ 000°0€8°¢s  § 95199y § 700¢
e QUIOdU] [euoSIog e N:QNU 134 JUIWUIIA0D Sasea] oOMdO Yamo QNUIAY QNUIAY COENM:QO Jea X
3O 93ejudoiog [e10], rende) 33e3uoN [elouan edst]

SaniAndY adA ] -ssauisng

- 8L8°SLY P 8LLPIETY T0S0VT°11 000°691°LT 000°S60° V€T 000°5€8°0S 1LY°689°S ¥S¥90L°01 081°€8Y°0%T 1102
- 978°T8L'S L90°65L°89 L60°T8E' 000°11°6¢ 000°501 ‘0% 000°6L°SS 980°SH8 €SL°0SL 01 0v9°855 84T 0102
88Tl L6T9SL9 YL 1S0°SL TIV08L S 000°SES°LE 000°$59°00T 000°S¥1°8S 617°566 LIOFSIT1 £26°8¥9°70T 600¢
621°¢El ¥8L°€STL 7€6°981°6L £16°681°11 000°658°6¢€ 000°099°0T 000°0S€°09 990°0¥1°1 £L606TT1 8LE°06L°T0T 8002
¥1T°891 8ST'8SE°6 6S1°8IY V8 £05°905°¢1 000°060°TY 000°091°01C 000°0€€°TH LL8TST 1 8r1°19€°01 988°68°C1T L00T
629°10T 005°656°6 889°V8L°69 $69°985 V1 000°0VT vy 000°0€1°VIT 000°09¢ ¥¥ £10°60¢°1 SII°1€6%6 YZ6'LLOLOT 900z
019°¢€€T 006°556°6 6£0°€20°6S 795°785°¢1 000°ST£°9¥ 000°S8S°LIT 000°$T€°9 16°€9€°1 8LETET'S 8IS V61 $00T
TTS6ELT 00S°8SL°L LOY'8LE'ET 816°L08°S1 000°STE Y 000°$79°0TT 000°STLLT 9€911°1 £0L°9€€°S TH0'SET Y81 $002
PEOTEOY - §96°999°€T TEEVTOTNI 000°097°0¢ 0000168 000°590°6T TIT'8L6 LTYL6L'S £1¥°57€°861 £002
66T°EVE'9 § - $ 685°608¥C $ ELYELY'ITL $ 000°S¥6°1S $ 000°¢81°6 §  000°0S€0¢ § LOV'LIS  § 8IS 10T § S09°86E°ELT  $ 7002
uonesqo sueo1 gIS SaseI | JUIUWISSISSY INUIAY ANUIATY ANUIATY SuUBOg UBOJ uonesdqO Ied X
[e1auany renden [eroadg Te1dadg XP) 2Woou] Xe ] -UoN Juawdo]aAd(g IMJO |elouan) [eas1 g
AIALS Jo
feuwIdiuj yeda( olyp

SAIANIY [BIUSWUIIA0TN)

0l sinpayos
SIBOX [BOSI] 9] 15%]
adA | Aq sasea] fende)) pue 1qog Surpueising Jo soiey

OO ‘uonfV Jo AiD

199



jusweda(q dourUL] OIYQ ‘UORTY JO AHD) 132IN0S

%58°S %50y %8V %80°S %S6' Y Apadoud e Jo anjea passasse [e30)
Jo 93ejuaniad ® se 1qap 10U PIJOAUN [BI0 ]
%ty 901 %C9'EL %¢€8°L8 %Pe 6 %01°06 Wil 3G9p Jo 9Se1uadiod e se
jrung 03 ajqeoidde 1qap 10u [el0 ],
(s15°29%°6) LEVO9L'EY  § 869°S11°0C  $ T69TILTI  $ 08T°6vT’Ll  $ uidrew 1q9p [eS]
79981 951 868°C€1°TTI 1Z1°SSI°S¥1 v61°8STEST 0€9°690°LS1 uwy 03 3[qedtjdde 1qop 10U [er0],
LY1°996°911 § $€€668°¢91 618°0LT°S91 § 988°0L6°C91 $ 016 vIE Ll $ nury 399
1102 010T 600T 800C L00T
%08y %06'¢ %09 Y %00t %0T'¢ Auadoid e Jo anjeA passasse [e10] Jo
95e1ua010d B Se 1q9p 10U pajoAun [e10],
%1978 %ELTL %v1 18 %L1€L %L1'8S Hunj 3qap Jo d3wuddiad e se
| 03 91qestjdde 1g9p Jau 10|
0L6°TLEIE  § 7C89TE0S  $ vEL'9TO'LT  $ 8v6°058°9y 189°0v0°SL  § ur3ew 1qap [e59]
c88°ce0'6v1 €TLYOTYEL 970 191°811 LYY'S6L LTI 60 THE POl st 03 djqedtdde 1qop 19U [E10],
$S8°80r°081 SPSIES P8l $ 08L°L809L1 § S6EOVIVLIL § SLLT8E 6L $ nung 3qed
900¢ §00T 007 €002 200¢
SIB3 A [BOSI] Ud] 1se]
11 anpayag

(%T/1 §) Wi 1G9 PIOAUN
uorjeuLIoju] uIdIey 19a(] 18397

olyQ ‘uonyy Jo AND

200



%S$8°S %S0y %E8'1 %80°S %S6'Y
%SL'SS 2%96°8¢ %1079y %LE 8y %0 LY
YLO'SYIVTT $ P10°v8S P61 § 668°19€°0L1 $ SIES65C9T § 08E°LILSLL §
799°8Z1°9S | 868°CE1 Tl 611°6S1°SH1

9¢L1LS08C §

T16°91L°91€ §

810°L1SS1E §

$61°85T°€S1 0£9°690°LST

605°€58°91€  $ 010°€8LTEE

110T

%0S'v

%LT Y

010T

%06t

%01°8¢

600¢

%09°'Y

%61 ¥v

800< L00¢

%01V %0T°¢

%£9°8¢ %V6°0¢

0T0I8€°S61 $ TLL'T80'8IT S v€5°909°L81 $ 86£°079°V0C $ 1£6°C159€C §

$88°SE06v1 ETLYOTYEL 9r0°195°8¥1 LYY S6L'8TI v60°Tr6°S01

S06° 91V Ve $ S6v°L8TTSE $ 085°L91°9¢E § SY8SIV'EEE § STO8SHTYE §
900¢ $00¢ v00¢ £00¢ 200¢

uaunteda( 9ourULj OIYO ‘UODY JO 11D :92IN0g
Ayadoid re Jo anfeA passasse
12101 Jo aSeuaniad e se 1qap Jou [RI0 ],

jruri] 3g9p jo aSeuasiad e se
ynuj 03 ajqedrjdde 1qap 10U [RIOL

urgreu Jqop [eSoy
nuny 03 d]qedijdde 1qap jou fero],

nwity 199Q

Auadoad [[e Jo anjeA passasse
12101 Jo o8ejusciad B SB 1qop JOU [BI0],

jrun] 3g9p Jo a8eusdad e se
juny o3 a[qeostjdde 1q9p 10U IO L

urSrew Jqap (B89
ywiy 03 o[qesrjdde 1gop 1ou je10]

i 3o

¢l 3npayos

SIea X [BdsL] ua] 1se]
(%2/1 01) M 199Q [BI0L
uoneuLIOju] WISIB 192 [€59]
o ‘uony Jo Ano

201



jusuntedo(g soueUL] OIYQ ‘UORY JO A1) 190IN0g

6020666 $

00L°8T9°0V $II0N UOnESIqQ [RIAUID
60S°19€°TST $ spuog uonesiqQ [RIOUID

:soxe) Auedoxd wiasoea pe Aas] 01 AIjIqe A1) U1 A Pammoas 18 Yolym JO [je ‘Suimojjo] 2y} Sopnjouy

LL6'6TL'STE $ 199p 10211p pue Suiddepianc [e10],
60T°066T6T $ 00001 * 607°066T6CT $ 199p 19311p A1)
89L°6EL'SE  § 190p Surddepiong
91I°zES el Yo ve 000°690°6¢ 19181(] A1RIqI] AJUNO)) NUILING
10€°210°€ 18°6C 000°G01°01 12151 [00YDS [8207] 9FpLIpoom
0€T°0L IV'eT 000°00€ AIoyiny Jisuel] [pUoI3oY 0N UODYY
98L°08C 9l'¢ 819°C88‘8 1OLISI(] [00YDS [B07] SIIATY
0L5°S9 91'¢ 000°SL0°C PLISIC [oyds AN umepne -Kajdo)
S9L'8LLST  $ 1¥'€C £€68°917°08 $ Auno) yuung

areys sAnD A1) 03 19°a UOISIAIPQNS [B201[0d

0—@&0:&&{ Jo junouwry
JUa213d

T10T ‘1€ 1oquada(] Jo sy
190 SurddeptoaQ pue 19211(] Jo uoneindwo)

€1 anpayossg oo ‘vony jo Ao

202



‘eyep uonendod 10j ‘SOSIEIS OIWOU0DY puk sotydeISours( ‘91 ANPaAYS 39S
"Bep anjeA A11odoid 10y ‘Auadoid ofqexe], JO dN[EA [ENOY PIJRWIST PUE AN[EA PIsSISSY ‘G J[Npaydg 39S |

"SJUSWIAYE]S [RIOURULJ 1) 0) SIIOU Y3 Ul puno} aq ued 1qap Surpueisino s,A1D) oyl Juip1esal s[re1og SAON

jusureda(q 9ouBYl OIYQ ‘UODY JO A1) :20IN0S

€ST°1 LTt 6£5°6VT £T8°C 79€°CST 110¢
18T°1 96'C LOTSST LIET VLS LST 010¢
$96 e 01602 06L°C T61°C1T 600¢C
086 1244 799°T1T 171 €8LV1T 800¢
0S0°1 8¢ £V8°LTT 978°C 69£°0€T L00¢
110°1 LTC v6E61¢ £8€°¢ LLL'TTT 9007
96 01'e 917°607 TSS°T 89L°11¢ §00¢
9¢6 01'¢ 691°€0T 10¥°c 0L5°50T 00T
886 vee 06 V1T 8S¥'e 8¥6'L1T £00¢
6.8 § % €61 Lv8061 $ LLLY $ y79°c61 $ 00T
. ende) Aadold jo EIETN el pun,j AIAI3g spuog PEEY

Isd dlqexe ] [enpdy 39e(] Ut S[qefreay uonesnqo [edstd]

pelewsy Sjunowry :ssa7| IBEETS
JO a8euaoing

(unown vndpo 4a2d 3d20xa ‘SipJjOpP O SpupSnoyl ut)
SIeQ X [BISI] UdJ 15B]
SurpueIsinQ 1q3(] popuog [eI2UD) JO SONBY
71 sIinpayos oIyO ‘UORY JO K1)

203



08°81 $8¢°c 019°C 01LTIY 101 8T°C 1€6Y 91¢L £€6°LT 6vT'se 110T
96'81 125°¢ 0S€°C €TETII €T'1 86€°C LOLY 1SL‘8 SPL'9T 96Y°S¢€ 0102
€L61 vr9°c S0ZT°C SLESII 68°1 916°1 02C9 L6EST €681 068°€¢ 600Z
66’12 £96°C 0€1°C 01Z°¢01 LE] +91°C 0009 991°11 98%°TT 789°ce 8002
91°8¢ 81¢€C 0£0°C LEYTTI 0Tl 1E¥°T 0zL'S 78L°6 vSTYT 9¢0'v¢ L00T
S8°LS TLEl SOp°1 LOT¥91 SE'T ¥€0°C 086t vrv'6 9LT'ST 0TLvE 9007
L6'YE SEYI 00%°[ 0v1°66 LS'1 981°C 0£8‘Y €00°11 6L9°CT 789°c¢ $00¢
08'LT ZYA 0vE1 06L°8L wo 0€5°C 010 S TN 151°0¢ 919°6¢ 002
80°LC 05s°1 S8T°1 1LL°9L £€°0 1#1°C STr'e 878°1 919°LT PPy 6T €002
£€°€T €091 SeT’l 00299 SL1 1L8°C S9T°t zzLiol OLY'€T T61°v¢ 7002
uwm(-®>onu 1salajuf —m&octm mco_ﬁuo:OU owwhu>00 Jsalaju] _wm_u:_un— AMNUIAY ~m@mcoaxm_ AMUAY Ied X
IAIAS 14T Xe | -UoN ANAIRS 192 dqelteAy SuneladQ $SOID) [eas1
PN :S597] Joje M\
SpuOg SNUIAIY Xe] -UON SUROT VAMO PUR DMO ‘SPUOE anUIAY Idje
s8¢ PLLT S8 8591 LT1 0S7°C €Tr's S0S‘EL 691°9¢ YLI‘6Y 1102
65°€ ¥38°1 0TH'T 29¥°S1 9¢°1 125°C L6E°8 26691 966°8¢ 8v6°SY 0102
09°¢ 686°1 02€C LLYST 0TC S95°1 Sis‘e 091°11 1L9°%¢ 1€8°S¢ 6002
e ¥LOT S€TT 120°91 6LC YLl $66°C 0£0°Et LLY'ST LOSRE 800¢
Py 961°C 0S1°C 0€8°L1 01°¢ L9L‘1 S8T'T 8L6°T1 v61°vT TLL9E L00T
6'¢€ [€T°C SLOT 19891 9L Te6°1 08°C 0L0°¢1 0€L°TT 008°S¢ 900¢
97'¢ 00£°C 010°C 8S0V1 8¢ 1€2°C ovv'c €€0°Ct 99%°6C 66V°LE $00Z
01°¢ §9¢°C SE6°1 €eeel 6L°1 PPET 0£€°C 8L.€°8 81€9C 969°F¢ 00T
6T €19°C $89°1 TESTI 07T 0S¥°C §TT'T LLTO1 L6¥°TT VLLTE €002
76§ 6TVl 068 18L°¢1 £L°C 6¥S°T 0S1°C 8871 8S¥TT 96T°S¢ 700T
ow.m.5>omu isalau] _m&o:_um QMUIAIY uwﬁho>oU 1SaJdluf ~m&0ﬁ.~n~ AMNUIAIY _mmmcumxm NUIATY Ieax
901AI9S 199(1 SSOID) IARS 192 dlqe[ieAy SuneiadQ SSOID) 1eosiy
aqaArs 11BN 18897] Jomag
spuog dddr sue0T VAMO PUB DM O Spuoy onlisAdy] 1omag
Gl oihpayos (s4vjjop Jo spupsnoyy u)

SIea [eosI uo] 1se7]

a8e10A0)) onusAay-padpald

oljQ ‘uonyy Jo Ay

204



uonedaxda(y JO 19N

justupreda(] 2oueul] OIYO ‘UOIMY JO AJ1D 192un0g

8T ¢l 886°S 6€6°C €T5°811 960 SP8 Il 0SL‘S 77891 1107
89°¢l $98°C 0£6'y 7£€9°901 80 10¥°01 061°S 908°C1 0107
0S'¥1 805°C 129 %% 181°801 L8O L69°6 099y STY'TI 600C
1299 ¥09°C ¥S0°s €00°611 LO'T 108°6 S91y S16'y1 800¢
LELT 1¥5°C £€6°Y 658621 L60 8/8°6 0S9°¢ PLOEY L00T
6v91 96¢°C €LSYy 8STYIT €0°1 L90°01 0s1°¢ 1L9°¢1 9002
91 809°C 290°s 6€1°CIt 96°0 zeziol SYLT cEY Tl $00T
LEEL L19°C LLO'S 6¥8°701 6L°0 vEv6 000°¢ 0286 ¥00¢
AR 4| LTY'T 1LY YLL0OT 000 - - - €002
sl 8€1°C 0S1°y L90°L6 000 - - - 00T
ow.muo>oU Jsaauy ﬁm&_oﬂﬁm mﬁo_aoo:OU umd._u>onu Jsalajuf E&QE.& mco_ﬁxu:OO IBoA
Qu_tum uQQQ XeJg QEOUH: oom?uow HDOD 210 _Nom_ g
SPUOY aNUIAY Xe ], auwoduj spuogd D10
(psnunuod)
Gl sinpayos (sopjop fo spuvsnoys ur)

SIBd X Jeosl] uaf 1se]
93eI10A0D) SNUSAIY-PITPald

oryQ ‘uonyy jo Ay

205



$R0TAIRG AJTwie,§ pue qof Jo yuswnedsg oo (7)
neamng snsua)) "§ ' (]) QMo

206

'8 857°6S 81 Tye $e8lE 965°L1 vO1PE9°618°C VLO'LIT 700T
T8 85765 81 Tye ce8'le 965°L1 POI‘vEY'618°C YLO'LIT £00C
69 85T°6S 81 Tre ge8°Ie 965°L1 PO1E9618°€ VLO'LIT 00T
99 85T°6S 81 e $E8 1€ 965°L1 YO1PE9618°C VLO'LIT $00C
6S 8ST°6S 81 e Se8°l€ 965°L1 PO1VEQ618°E YLOLIT 9007
6 85Z°6S 81 Ty Se8le 965°L1 YO1'PE9618°¢ YLOLIT L00T
L9 85T°6S 81 Tre Se8°I€E 965°L1 vO1PE9'618°C VLO'LIT 800C
At 85T°65 81 (4% $E8°1¢ 965°L1 PO1‘VES618°E vLOLLT 6002
$6 09L°9S 02 $SE 65€€E 19961 0v0°66T°S16°E 011661 0102
7’6 09L°9S % 0T $se 65€vE $ ¥99'61 $ 0v0°66Z°S16€ $ 011661 1102

(2) ey (1) yuowifjoruzy (1) 1oYsIH 1o (1) 78y (1) swooup (1) owody] (1) dwoduj (1) uonyeindog Tea )
juowAojdwaun) {ooyss 931539(] s Jojoyoeg URIpO]N pjoyssnol| [euosiod [euosIag

- uoneonpy URIPIN enden 104

SIed A [B0SI] U] ISe]
sonsyelg ostwouooy pue siyderowa(g
91 anpayog oo ‘wonyy jo A



08t°6C

juspeda(q 9ouRUL] OIYQ ‘UOR[Y JO KD :92Inog

THLTE

% 0V'LT % 1¥° €€
09'1 01 0ZL°1 1JU3)) [edIPIA [eNIdSOH S,udIp[iy) 6v'C 0t ovt°C AT OFN d[qeD Joute SuIL],
L9'1 6 008°1 "ouy ‘SuIpIAg 6SC 6 LEST uoneodio)) A3xoug)sity
10C 8 091°C uonjy Jo AJsIdAruf] ay L vL'T 8 189°C [endsoH s,usIpfIy) uony
82T L SSHT uonyy jo A SLT L $69°C uonje10di0)) JISINISILY
62T 9 09%°C d10) A310uy 5114 83°C 9 LT8°C LI [00YOS dljqnd oy
6LT S 000°¢ pLSI [00Y2g A1) uonjy 90°¢ S 000°¢ Auedwio)) 1aqqmy 7 AL, 18APOOL)
e 14 oLYE Auno) jwiung 97¢€ 4 861°¢ uon[y Jo AUSISAIUN] Sy,
v9°¢ 3 S16°¢ WRISAS YI[edH [BISUSD) UoDY €b'€ € LSEE jurung Jo Auno)
e r4 000y Auedwio)) 1oqqmy 29 a1 ], Jedakpoon €Ty [4 oSty WRISAS YI[eSH [eIRUSD) UODY
% 81'% [ 005y waIsAS yjjesH eunung % 86'S [ LS8‘S waIsAS yi[esy eurung
juawAojdwrg quey saakoduryg JoAodwy JustAojdwy yuey sashojdwig Jokojdwg
A relo jo ] -{[n g A1) (g0 jo aw -
a8rIua019g a8euadIog
00T ‘1€ 1oquiadag [10¢ ‘1 sunf

21 3Inpayosg

c00¢/1£/C1 pUe 110¢/1/9
siokojdury redrouig

olyQ ‘uonyy Jo Anp

207



- 011 LET 49! vsl 961 851 991 SLLI SLLI wounedsq yiesy
Y3y dtqud
- - - 1 1 - - - - - neaing Surresuiduy
- - - - - ré - - - - oomaom Jowoisn)
0C T €T 67 0€ 0€ 43 1€ 43 143 Sunourduy oyger]
9% 88y €0S ¥1$ L1S 34 11s K4S 8CS s uaunteda 901104
8t¢ £9¢ 1€€ 801 6L¢ 68¢€ 10t $:13 16€ 88¢ usuneda(y o114
LS ¥s S¢S 19 9 £9 ¥9 79 89 69 suoHeoUINWWO) AJ9JeS
- - - - - ! € v 12 12 SoMsea 29 SIYTIoM
Si LY L1 0z 61 0C 61 81 61 61 SUOIEIIUNUIIOY)
- - - 4! 0z 61 0z 44 17 1z uonoadsuy Sutpping
- I I 4 z z 4 z 4 $T judweds yieoy
- - - 1 1 1 ré 7 4 z juouneda(] 9oueul ]
- - - I - - - - ! I s[enyO pajuioddy pue pajos[q
:K393eS 2Nqng
I 1 - 1 - - - - - - neamg Junauiduy
- - - - - - - - 1 I jusugreda(q o104
- - - 1 I I - - - 1 Hawgmn_oﬁ— wE.rE.me
8 01 i €1 Sl 1 61 44 44 Yo sueda( [PUUOSIdg
8 8 8 01 01 11 €1 4| 4! 11 [RUILILID/IALD
SL 8L 08 86 col So1 6 96 L6 86 eunreda( sdueulj
- - - - - - - e € € mcoﬁﬂom ﬁmE:E
- - - 1 1 4 4 z € € suone[Yy JoqeT]
S S 14 8 3 6 01 [ i i1 JuawdolaAs(J SIou0d
g 9% 8% ¥S zs IS IS 1S LY 6v sferyyO pajutoddy pue payodlg
- - - 1 I 1 1 1 I 4 uouRISIUIWPY - IJO SI0ARN
L8 88 68 S6 S6 6 16 16 6 €6 SHNOD
€ € £ Z 4 z £ 3 v 14 Jrouno) AN
JJUIWUWIIA0D) jetoudn)
1102 0102 6002 8002 L0OOT 900T $00¢ ¥00T £00C 200C Wwel3014/uoioun |
8l 9INPaYdS SIed A [BISI] ua] 1se]

weidoiduondun, Aq seakopdwg Juswuisaon A1) Juspeainby awn g -jnyg
oIy ‘vonfy jo Aid

208



Jusuneda(y 9ourUL ] OIY(O) ‘UODYY JO A1) 192In0S

ovL 1561 996°1 Y12°C €VTT We'e Y€ 65€°C 81vC 95H°T :S[EIo L,
1z 1T 0C €C €T € 74 vT € < nesing uoneaIdy
€S 8¢ ¥S $9 99 L9 0L 9L 18 Z8 wauwpedoy Suyuuelg
- - - i 1 1 - - 1 I uQQEQO_0>®D U_Eocoom
[ I I - [4 [4 [4 z [4 4 sferon3O payutoddy pue psyos|g

Juamuoliauy %u_-:EEOU
v 9 9 S 9 9 L L L L $901A10§ SuLIddUISUY
74 ST 9z 8T 6C 8T i]3 0€ 0¢ €€ oouRUSJUIRIA SIed
93 LE LE 6€ LE 123 LE LE 8¢ 6€ Surues|d 1eeng
8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 3% St £9 $9 99 9 89 SIVIAIRS UOENIUES
S¢S 65 79 L9 0L ¥9 89 VL 08 8 souruUIEN AeMUSIH
9 9 8 6 6 L L L L 9 uolRLSIUIWPY SHHOM d1[qnd
- - - - - - - - - L9 oocwcuuﬁ_mz Jamag
002 00T 861 97T 1s2 9T 09¢ 0Lz LT 0cC wouniedaq 191eM
8Y 0S (43 ¥S 95 8¢ 79 L9 vL L9 SIOIAISG SaIIN
1 I 4 € € € € € v € UOLRUSIUIWPY S3BI1) dTqnd
€ € v S 9 9 9 9 S 14 asmo) J1onH
153 153 153 9¢ ¢ 9¢ 6€ 8¢ a4 Ly woawdinbg 1010
9T 8C 8¢ 43 43 LT LT 0€ 0€ 43 douruUIRN Swp[ing
I z 14 S S S S 9 9 9 uodny
3% 9 €S 6S 09 99 89 1L 6L 18 neaing Sueouisuy
L 6 6 11 €1 ra! 1 €l - - omcoawux uo_tuw uoisn)
4 4 z € € 1% % v % S 10ua) spuLIsd pue sueld
61 61 8 L 38 01 4| 2 9] 4 9DIAIRG JOWOISN)
r4 4 z ¥ % v t v 14 % UOURNSIUIWPY IIAILS dlqnd
01 11 - - - - - - - Juoteda(q 2114
- - - - - - - - - 1 juouwnedoq Sutuuerg
- - - - 1 - - - - - uonadsuj Surp[ing
% 4 € 14 12 % S S S S sferoiO pajutoddy pue pajodfg
- - - - - I | I - - J1ouno) A

SIIIAIIG ONgQnd

1102 010z 6002 800C L00Z 9002 $002 £00¢ €002 7002 wes3014/uo1oun g

(panunuod)
gl SINpPaYds SIBJA UQ] ISe]

wesdolduonoun,j Aq saakojdwry JusWIdA0D A)ND) Jusjealnbyg swi ] -{[n]

OO ‘uonfy jo A1)

209



usunreda(] aouRUL OGO WO JO AJ1) :32IM0§

*£007 1uun pajajdwiod Jou Sem 9SO JIOD UMY PN 44
"600¢ Jo SuruuiSaq ayp e jrwwng yo A1uno) sy ynm pagiow juswpredsq Suiping Uon{y Jo AND Y]

£E0°0E $ 6LS1E § LLO'LT 15L°8C 91£°8C 06T $ 090°0€ $ 805°LT § €€9°LT LT9°0€ (spuesnoys ur) pa|[ig slunowy 1oem
¥6L°€8 8YEv8 9158 $9L°€8 LEOV8 vh6°C8 8y C8 $66°C8 ver'es 6£6°C8 SJUNO00Y JAJEM
A3jeA
1106 § €TLLE $ £0£°9¢ 9v'LE 0Ti'LE vLOTE § 18v've §  8zeee § £99°Z¢ y8YHE (spuesnot) ur) pajjig SJUNOUTY 1mag
€59°8L $86°8L SYLSL SE8°6L 12L°6L 606°08 SE0°18 9re18 658°18 768°18 SJUNOIIY Jomag
IIMIG
1119 069°'19 96529 - - - - - - - SJUNOIIY IVIAIDS i)
moom?uvw mmOEm:m
908°01 TEETH 8T 11 Lol 199°01 £16°01 05€°6 70€°6 LLS'9 - 20URPUINY ISIN0OD) JIOD UMY PN 4+
190°0¢ 069°9¢ 195°C€ 960°1€ 189°1¢ [€6°CE 001°€E 61T°1¢ ey Ve YE0'8E Q0URpLUANY 3SIN0J) J[0D) Yied PooD
:c_:wu._uoﬁ ﬁ:a my_l_an—
1LS°€T w0ovve 8L8°IT 969°61 102°0C 9€9°€T $¥9°9Z S18C¢ 856°0C 1€24°02 Pa]1 S3sBD) UOISIAL(Y Surped
€S TE LTT9E oLLOY LT 6E 088°8¢ 069°0% yie LSTEY 999°6H Yy Pali] $95)) UOISIAI(] dyjel | /feuiwil)
STSII [A7A PLYTI T85°S1 SEYSI 880°C1 2R 1S9°El 709°¢1 LO8TI Paftd saSBY) UOISIAI( [IALD
TLECIL LLSEST STT'LYL E8'591 £rT86S1 £05°591 09 pLl 800°LLI 800°LLI L9EWST IAIG 0] s|feD
uu:o&
189 T2 XY 169 00S°L 0€6°L 08Z°L ¥88°L 109°L 00L°L S08°L aN0saY/aut]
9YT e PSLTE vz 1¥6°C€ e £€8°1€ e €LEIE SY6'0€ yLT0E sasuodsay Kouadrowyg
0.:&
$6¢ viv 6vS LSS 649 129 ¥99 0L9 L89 €09 passed savueuipiy [1ouno) A1
€L0°1 001°1 0g1] 90t°T 1£0°9 $91°C 07T LSTT 0LS°T ££6°T panss sHuLdd JO J2qunN 10},
- - - 1437 9LS LLE 0s€ 373 092 V/N uonesnsaAuj Jurejdwo) Suiuoz
- - - 001 ¥l 11 00€ $6T LET L81 SHULS 3SNOH MAN
- - - 100°1 67T1 9.8 ol 10L $69 LIt Mo1AY uEld AZMY JYSIY 7P [RIOIOWWO)
Jusunreda( Suipping.,
JMRUWUIIA0D) [BIIUIN)
1102 0102 6002 8007 L00T 9007 $00T $00T £00T 700T we3o1/uonoun,

61 3Inpayos

SIEQ A [29SI4 U] ISB]

weigold/uonoun | Aq siojearpu] 3unendQ

OO “UODYY JO AU

210



yusunteda(y 9oueUL] OIYO ‘UODY JO AJ1D :90IN0g

01 01 0l ol 0l 01 01 01 8 8 Y22 Supyreq

€1 £1 €1 9| ¢l €1 €1 €1 1 vl slloMm IO
SHI0A A[qnd PYPO

€€ €€ €€ €€ €€ €€ €€ €€ €€ €€ suoneg dumng

60€ 60¢ 60¢ 60€ 60¢€ 60€ 987 L6 96 6 (S9[1w) SI9U] J9MIS PaUIqUIO)) PUE WLIOIS

8¢ 8¢ 8¢ 78¢ 78¢ 78¢ 69C 897 79¢ 09¢ (so[1wx) s19MOG ULIO)S

189 089 089 69 6v9 10L 69 L€8 9% 2% (sopiwn) s1omag Arejiueg
hoaom

Sl Si Si Sl Sl S1 S1 St Sl SI SI10A1959Y 93e101S-UOHNqLISI(]

43 149 14 LE 8¢ ¢ LE 8¢ 8% 114 (suojes jo suorjjiu ur)

a8edming Ajreq s8ereAy

STT'1 €Tl €TT1 1221 €11 €121 SIT1 €171 €121 L601 adid 3o SN
._Oaw?w

z z 4 r4 z 4 z z I | $351n0)) J|0O paesadQ/paumQ A

001°C 001°C 001°C 001°C 001°C 001°C 001°C 001 001°C 001°C (52108 uy) WANSAS Yred A1)
=o_aﬂo.-oo- ﬁ:ﬂ sHied

€l | £l €1 €1 €l €1 €l €l €l SuonelS Jo JoquinN

6C¢ 0S¢ L1€ 1433 €5¢ 6S€ SLE 65€ 99¢ £9¢ S1904JO pue SI1Y3LaIL ] JO JaqunN
thrﬁ

4 4| 4 4 4| 4 4! 4 11 €T S1OLISI(Y JO JaquinN

90P 192% LSY oLV vLY ISP 89 LLY %14 661 SI90113( MI1[0d pIawIojiuf] JO JaqUInN
201104
110Z 0102 6007 8007 L0O0T 9007 $00¢ 7002 £00¢ 7002 weIgoid/uoroun g

0Z @Inpayas

SIea X [e9s1,] Ua], i1se]
wresgolduonoun, £q sonsyelg 19ssy rende)
oIjQ ‘Uonyy Jo Ay

211



Dave Yost - Auditor of State

CITY OF AKRON
SUMMIT COUNTY

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION
This is atrue and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office of the
Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

ivan Pouablitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
OCTOBER 9, 2012

88 East Broad Street, Fourth Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3506
Phone: 614-466-4514 or 800-282-0370 Fax: 614-466-4490
www.ohioauditor.gov
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